
 

BROOKPROP MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly known as BPG India Private Limited) 
Registered Office and Correspondence Address: Unit 1, 4th Floor, Godrej BKC, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai 400 051 

T: +91 22 66000700 CIN: U74999MH2018FTC306865 E-mail: bpindia.legal@brookfield.com; reit.manager@brookfield.com 

November 7, 2022 
 
BSE Ltd.  
Corporate Relationship Department,                                                            
1st Floor, New Trading Ring,                                                                         
Rotunda Building, P J Towers,                                                                     
Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001  
corp.relations@bseindia.com      
SCRIP CODE: 543261 
SCRIP ID: BIRET 

 National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor,                                                                    
Plot no. C/1, G Block 
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra(E), 
Mumbai-400051 
cmlist@nse.co.in  
SYMBOL: BIRET 

   
Subject: Outcome of meeting of Board of Directors held on Monday, November 7, 2022 
 
Dear Sir/Ma’am,  
 
We wish to inform you that Board of Directors of Brookprop Management Services Private Limited, 
the manager of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (“Manager”) at its meeting held on Monday, 
November 7, 2022 has, inter-alia: 
 
(a) Approved the Unaudited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and Unaudited 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
(“Brookfield India REIT”) for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2022. 

 
(b) Declared distribution of ₹ 1,708.94 million / ₹ 5.10 per unit for the quarter ended September 

30, 2022. The distribution comprises of (i) ₹ 810.91 million/ ₹ 2.42 per unit in the form of 
interest payment on shareholder loan and CCDs, (ii) ₹ 30.16 million / ₹ 0.09 per unit in the 
form of dividend; (iii) ₹ 861.17 million / ₹ 2.57 per unit in the form of repayment of SPV debt 
and (iv) the balance ₹ 6.70 million / ₹ 0.02 per unit in the form of interest on fixed deposit.  

 
(c) Reviewed the Valuation Report and declared Net Asset Value of ₹ 336.85 per unit for 

Brookfield India REIT as on September 30, 2022 as per regulation 10(22) of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, based on the 
Valuation Report dated November 6, 2022, issued by Mr. Shubhendu Saha, the valuer of 
Brookfield India REIT. (Refer statement of net assets at fair value in the condensed 
standalone financial statements).   

 
Further, please find enclosed: 
 
1. Copy of the press release to be issued in connection with the Unaudited Condensed Standalone 

Financial Statements and Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of 
Brookfield India REIT for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2022, as Appendix I. 
 

2. Copy of the investor presentation on the financial statements for the quarter and half year ended 
September 30, 2022 as Appendix II. 

 
3. Copy of Unaudited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and Unaudited Condensed 

Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India REIT for the quarter and half year ended 
September 30, 2022, and the reports of the Statutory Auditors thereon as Appendix III. 

 
The related party transactions during the quarter ended September 30, 2022, are set out in the 
Unaudited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements (refer note no. 27) and Unaudited 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India REIT (refer note no. 42). 
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4. Copy of summary valuation report of Brookfield India REIT for half year ended September 30, 

2022 dated November 6, 2022, issued by Mr. Shubhendu Saha as Appendix IV. 
 

5. Kindly note that registered office address of Brookprop Management Services Private Limited, 
the Manager of Brookfield India REIT has been changed to “Godrej BKC, Office No.2, 4th Floor, 
Plot C-68, 3rd Avenue, G-Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai – 400 051”. 
 

The documents referred above are also uploaded on our website at: 
https://www.brookfieldindiareit.in/financial-updates/#results    
 
We also wish to inform you that the record date for the proposed distribution to unitholders for the 
quarter ended September 30, 2022, will be Wednesday, November 16, 2022, and the payment of 
distribution is proposed to be made on or before Tuesday, November 22, 2022. 
 
You are requested to take the above information on record.  
 
Thanking You. 
Yours Faithfully, 
 
For Brookprop Management Services Private Limited 
(as a manager of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust) 
 
 
 
Saurabh Jain 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
CC:  Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound 
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli,  
Mumbai 400 025, Maharashtra, India 
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Press Release 

BROOKFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST REPORTS Q2 AND H1 
FINANCIAL YEAR 2023 RESULTS  

All figure references are in Indian Rupees unless noted otherwise. 

Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (Tickers: BSE: 543261, NSE: BIRET) (“BIRET”), India's only 100% 
institutionally managed REIT, today announced financial results for the quarter and half year ended September 
30, 2022.  

“The office leasing momentum continues to increase steadily with physical occupancy going up on account of 
expansion plans from global captives and technology players. With over 306,000 SF of leasing and 16,000 SF 
of expansion options, we continue to attract marquee tenants in Q2 FY2023. While interest rates continue to 
firm up globally, our long-term growth potential and minimal refinancing requirements ensure that our portfolio 
is de-risked. We received a 5-star GRESB rating in our first submission underlining our commitment to 
sustainable business practices aligned to our global ESG framework. Across our properties in India, we are 
deploying the very best of technologies to achieve our goal of being net zero by 2040.” said Alok Aggarwal, 
Chief Executive Officer, Brookprop Management Services Private Limited.  

The key highlights of the business from H1 FY2023 and Q2 FY2023 were as follows: 

KEY HIGHLIGHTS: H1 FY2023 

• Achieved gross leasing of 0.6M SF in H1 FY2023 with expansion options of 0.1M SF
 Achieved a 9% growth in the net operating income run rate from Q4 FY2022 and have an embedded

growth headroom of 18%
• Inorganic growth pipeline of 6.4M SF of fully built properties to further increase our scale and operating

income
• Distributions for the half year are INR 10.20 per unit, in line with our guidance
• Delivered an attractive total return of 21% since IPO, with a further 12% headroom to NAV

KEY HIGHLIGHTS: Q2 FY2023 

• Recognized as Sector Leader by GRESB for Sustainable Office Development in Asia and received a
5-star rating from GRESB in the first year of submission

• The company received an overall score of 90%, for operational buildings; outperformed global
averages across all criteria, scoring 100% in Social and Governance categories

• Advanced our Net Zero target by 10 years to 2040
• Achieved leasing of 306,000 SF in Q2 FY23 of which 127,000 SF is new leasing and 179,000 SF is

renewals and signed expansion options of 16 000 SF in N1
• Achieved 9% average escalation on 909,000 SF leased area

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• Grew Adjusted Net Operating Income by 48% YoY to Rs 2,413 million, led by the N2 acquisition and
increase in O&M margins from higher physical attendance at our campuses

• Increased Operating Lease Rentals by 32% YoY to Rs. 2,056 million

Appendix I



 

• 4% YoY increase in NAV which stands at Rs 337 per unit as of September 30, 2022 
• Announced distribution of Rs 1,709 million (Rs 5.10 per unit) this quarter, with 52% of distributions 

non-taxable for unit holders 

 

GROWTH HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• Commenced construction of retail led 561,000 SF mixed use development, comprising 174,000 SF 
retail spaces and 387,000 SF office space  

• The 174,000 SF retail development will be a F&B led retail destination with multiple restaurants, cafes, 
large and small format retail outlets, gaming center and an open terrace area, which will substantially 
enhance our occupier experience at K1. The 387,000 SF office development will comprise of high 
quality non SEZ office spaces diversifying our tenant offering 
 
 

ABOUT BROOKFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST 

Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is India's only institutionally managed REIT, comprising of five large campus 
format office parks located in key gateway markets of India – Mumbai, Gurgaon, Noida, and Kolkata. The 
BIRET portfolio consists of 18.7M SF comprising 14.3M SF of completed area and 4.4M SF of future 
development potential. BIRET has the rights of the first offer on an additional 6.7M SF, currently owned by 
members of the Brookfield Group. 

BIRET is sponsored by an affiliate of Brookfield Asset Management Inc, one of the world’s largest alternative 
asset managers and investors, with over US$750 billion of assets under management, across real estate, 
infrastructure, renewable power, private equity and credit strategies and has a global presence across more 
than 30 countries.  

The quality of assets owned by BIRET together with the sponsor group’s expertise in owning and operating 
assets over several years makes it the preferred “landlord of choice” for tenants. 

 

CONTACT DETAILS 
Reema Kundnani 
Email: reema.kundnani@brookfieldproperties.com; Mobile No: +91-9967556572 

mailto:reema.kundnani@brookfieldproperties.com
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Disclaimer

By reading this presentation (the “Presentation”), you agree to be bound by the following limitations:

This Presentation is for information purposes only without regard to specific objectives, financial situations or needs of any particular person, and should not be disclosed, reproduced, retransmitted, summarized, distributed or

furnished, in whole or in part, to any other person or persons. The material that follows is a Presentation on the information pertaining to key updates of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (“Brookfield India REIT”). We don't assume

responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any statements in the Presentation on the basis of any subsequent development, information or events, or otherwise. This Presentation comprises information given in summary form

and does not purport to be complete and it cannot be guaranteed that such information is true and accurate. For ease and simplicity of representation, certain figures may have been rounded. No representation, warranty or undertaking,

express or implied, is made or assurance given that such statements, views, projections or forecasts, if any, are correct or that any objectives specified herein will be achieved. Neither we, nor any of our affiliates, as such, make any

representation or warranty, express or implied, as to, and do not accept any responsibility or liability with respect to, any loss, howsoever, arising from any use or reliance on this Presentation or its content or otherwise arising in

connection therewith. Unless otherwise stated in this Presentation, the information contained herein is based on management information as they exist as of date/date indicated in this Presentation and estimates. The information

contained herein is subject to change without notice and past performance is not indicative of future results.

Certain information contained herein constitutes forward-looking statements. Due to various risks and uncertainties, actual events or results or the actual performance of Brookfield India REIT may differ materially from those

reflected or contemplated in such forward-looking statements. Although Brookfield India REIT believes that the anticipated future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements and

information are based upon reasonable assumptions and expectations in light of the information presently available, you should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements and information because they involve known and

unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of Brookfield India REIT to differ materially from anticipated future results, performance or achievement expressed or

implied by such forward-looking statements and information. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those set forward in the forward-looking statements or information include but are not limited to: general

economic conditions, changes in interest and exchange rates, availability of equity and debt financing and risks particular to underlying portfolio company investments. There is no guarantee that Brookfield India REIT will be able to

successfully execute on all or any future deals, projects or exit strategies, achieve leasing plans, secure debt or receive development approvals as set forth in this Presentation. Projected results reflected herein have been prepared

based on various estimations and assumptions made by management, including estimations and assumptions about events that have not yet occurred. Projected results are based on underwriting. Due to various risks, uncertainties and

changes beyond the control of Brookfield, the actual performance of the Brookfield India REIT could differ materially from the projected results. There is no assurance, representation or warranty being made by any person that any of

the projected results will be achieved and undue reliance should not be put on them. Industry experts may disagree with the assumptions used in presenting the projected results.

Any changes to assumptions could have a material impact on projections and actual returns. Actual returns on unrealized investments will depend on, among other factors, future operating results, the value of the assets and market

conditions at the time of disposition, legal and contractual restrictions on transfer that may limit liquidity, any related transaction costs and the timing and manner of sale, all of which may differ from the assumptions and

circumstances on which the valuations used in the prior performance data contained herein are based. Accordingly, the actual realized returns on unrealized investments may differ materially from the returns indicated herein.

In considering investment performance information contained herein, you should bear in mind that past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results and there can be no assurance that comparable results will be achieved,

that an investment will be similar to the historic investments presented herein (because of economic conditions, the availability of investment opportunities or otherwise), that targeted returns, diversification or asset allocations will be

met or that an investment strategy or investment objectives will be achieved. Any information regarding prior investment activities and returns contained herein has not been calculated using generally accepted accounting principles

and has not been audited or verified by an auditor or any independent party. Nothing contained herein should be deemed to be a prediction or projection of future performance.

Certain of the information contained herein is based on or derived from information provided by independent third party sources. While Brookfield India REIT believes that such information is accurate as of the date it was produced

and that the sources from which such information has been obtained are reliable, Brookfield India REIT does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information, and has not independently verified such information or the

assumptions on which such information is based. This document is subject to the assumptions (if any) and notes contained herein.

The information in this Presentation does not take into account your investment objectives, financial situation or particular needs and nothing contained herein should be construed as legal, business or tax advice. Each prospective

investor should consult its own attorney, business adviser and tax advisor as to legal, business, tax and related matters concerning the information contained herein.

This document is just a Presentation and is not intended to be a “prospectus” or “draft offer document” or “offer document” or “final offer document” or “offer letter” or “offering memorandum” (as defined or referred to, as the case

may be, under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules notified thereunder, and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing

of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended, or any other applicable law). This Presentation has not been and will not be reviewed or approved by a regulatory authority in India or elsewhere or by any stock exchange in India or

elsewhere. None of the information contained herein (or in any future communication (written or oral) regarding an investment) is intended to be investment advice with respect to a proposed investment.

If we should at any time commence an offering of units, debentures, bonds or any other securities/ instruments of Brookfield India REIT, any decision to invest in any such offer to subscribe for or acquire units, debentures, bonds or

any other securities/ instruments of Brookfield India REIT, must be based wholly on the information contained in an offer document or offering circular (including the risk factors mentioned therein) issued or to be issued in

connection with any such offer and not on the contents hereof. Any prospective investor investing in such invitation, offer or sale of securities by Brookfield India REIT should consult its own advisors before taking any decision in

relation thereto.

The securities of Brookfield India REIT have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act, 1933, as amended (“U.S. Securities Act”), or the securities laws of any applicable jurisdiction and these materials do not

constitute or form a part of any offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to purchase or subscribe for any securities in the United States of America or elsewhere in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to

registration under the U.S. Securities Act or the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.



3

Rs 164 B
GROSS ASSET VALUE(2)

Rs 337
NAV PER UNIT(2)

Kolkata (5.7 MSF)

3.1 2.7

Brookfield India Real Estate Trust

India’s first and only 100% institutionally managed REIT, owning 18.7 MSF of class A office 

properties

18.7 MSF
TOTAL AREA

89%
EFFECTIVE ECONOMIC 

OCCUPANCY(1)

6.9 Yrs.
WALE

Delhi NCR 

(11.4 MSF)

Gurugram 3.9 0.1

Noida 5.7 1.6

Total 9.6 1.7

Total Portfolio (18.7 MSF)

14.3

Operating

4.4

Future Dev.

Mumbai (1.6 MSF)

1.6 -

67%

17%

16%

%GAV

(1) Income Support in Candor Techspace N2 is being provided till March 31, 2024 on 805,000 SF of vacant area. The Committed Occupancy of the portfolio is 84%.

(2) As on September 30, 2022.

Note: In-place Rent and WALE are only for the Leased Area and do not consider the impact of Income Support throughout the presentation.

14.3 MSF
OPERATING AREA

Rs 64 PSF
IN-PLACE RENT

72
OFFICE TENANTS
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High Quality Properties in Gateway Cities

CANDOR TECHSPACE, NEWTOWN, KOLKATA (K1)

5.7 MSF | 48 ACRES

KENSINGTON, POWAI, MUMBAI

1.6 MSF | 9 ACRES
CANDOR TECHSPACE, SECTOR 62, NOIDA (N1)

2.8 MSF | 19 ACRES

CANDOR TECHSPACE, SECTOR 135, NOIDA (N2)

4.5 MSF |  30 ACRES

Largest Office SEZ in Eastern India Largest IT Park in a key technology hub of Noida

Largest Office SEZ in NoidaLargest Office SEZ in CBD Gurugram

Mumbai’s only Private SEZ located in Powai

CANDOR TECHSPACE, SECTOR 21, GURUGRAM (G2)

4.0 MSF | 29 ACRES

% OF GROSS ASSET VALUE AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

28% 25%

14%16%17%
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Metric Performance

Stable Distribution Rs 10.20 DPU

Strong Returns 21% Total Return(1)

Further 12% headroom to NAV

Leasing Success 0.6 MSF + 0.1 MSF of Expansion Options
0.4 MSF of new leasing and 0.2 MSF of renewals

Leasing Prospects 2.0 MSF Leasing Pipeline
1.0 MSF of new leasing prospects and 1.0 MSF of expected renewals

Organic Growth 9% increase in NOI Run Rate(2)

Neutralizing the impact of increase in interest rates

Inorganic Growth 6.4 MSF under evaluation
Candor Techspace G1 and Downtown Powai

H1 FY2023 – Half Year Scorecard

We have executed on our stated strategy and have a robust outlook on our business

3

6

1

2

4

5

(1) Pre-tax return to unitholders since IPO basis the closing unit price of Rs 299.90 on November 4, 2022 on the NSE.

(2) From Q4 FY2022 to Q2 FY2023.
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Leader in Asia for Sustainable Office Development

90%
Standing Investments Score

Environment
Global Average: 40

Social
Global Average: 16

Governance
Global Average: 18

ൗ𝟓𝟑
𝟔𝟐

ൗ𝟏𝟖
𝟏𝟖

ൗ𝟐𝟎
𝟐𝟎

96%
Development Score(2)

Environment
Global Average: 38

Social
Global Average: 22

Governance
Global Average: 21

ൗ𝟒𝟗
𝟓𝟏

ൗ𝟐𝟒
𝟐𝟔

ൗ𝟐𝟐
𝟐𝟒

5-star rating
in our first year of 

submission

Outperformed GRESB global averages across all criteria, scoring 100% in Social and 

Governance categories(1), reinforcing our ESG credentials

(1) 100% in Social and Governance categories for Standing Investments.

(2) Score for 1.4 MSF of areas developed or upgraded in 2020 and 2021.

(3) IGBC Platinum for G2, N1 & N2 and IGBC Gold for K1.

(4) 5-Star Rating for N1, N2 and K1.

(5) G2, N1, N2 and K1.

ISO 9001, ISO 14001 & ISO 

45001 CERTIFICATION

BEE STAR RATING ISO 50001 

CERTIFICATION(5)

GOLDEN PEACOCK 

AWARD-SUSTAINABILITY

HEALTH & SAFETY(4)GREEN BUILDING 

RATING(3)
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Consistent Leasing Recovery

“Return to office” programs continue to drive renewals and expansion demand

(1) Average leasing rent and lease term are weighted by area and are provided only for office areas.

(2) Rs 81 PSF including car park rent.

GE Oil & Gas
17%

44%

39%

New Tenants Existing Tenants Renewals

617,000 SF
Accenture

GE Oil & Gas

Mindtree

BT E-Serv

Bluechip

Hospitality

11.0 Yrs.
AVERAGE TERM ON NEW LEASING(1)

1.0 MSF
NEW LEASING PROSPECTS

Rs 80 PSF
AVERAGE RENT ON NEW LEASING(1)(2)

1.0 MSF
EXPECTED RENEWALS

H1 FY2023 LEASING & RENEWALS

+
110,000 SF OF EXPANSION OPTIONS
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Significant Organic Growth Potential

(1) Includes escalations, lease-up and margin recovery during H1 FY2023.

(2) Indicates the contracted NOI for leases signed in H1 FY2023 which will reflect in the NOI in the subsequent quarters.

(3) Mark-to-market increase from expected renewals.

(4) Incremental NOI based on management estimates, net of a) 28% revenue share payable to landowner (GIL) and b) Income Support.

(5) On existing leased areas, we expect NOI Margin to revert to FY2020 levels as occupancy picks up and CAM recovery improves across the properties.

We achieved a 9% growth in the NOI run rate from Q4 FY2022 and have an embedded

growth headroom of 18%

Rs 8,842 

Rs 810 Rs 9,652 Rs 123 
Rs 375 

Rs 993 Rs 207 Rs 11,350 

Q4 FY2022
NOI

Run Rate

Growth vs Q4
FY22

Current NOI
Run Rate

H1 FY2023
Lease-up

MTM on
Renewal

under
discussion

Vacant Area
Lease-up

Margin
Recovery

Stabilized
NOI Run Rate(1) (2)

(3)

+18%

NOI GROWTH POTENTIAL

(MILLIONS)

+9%

(4) (5)
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Attractive Inorganic Growth Prospects

Acquisition pipeline of 6.4 MSF of operating class-A properties, which will further increase

scale and operating income

(1) Excludes 88,000 SF of ongoing densification.

Total Area 3.7 MSF

Committed Occupancy 76%

WALE 7.4 Yrs.

In-place Rent Rs 73 PSF

Total Area 2.7 MSF

Committed Occupancy(1) 88%

WALE(1) 4.1 Yrs.

In-place Rent(1) Rs 158 PSF

DOWNTOWN POWAI, MUMBAI

Prime office portfolio in a 250-acre integrated township (near Kensington)One of the largest high quality office campuses in Gurugram

CANDOR TECHSPACE G1, GURUGRAM
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1% 1% 2% 3%
9%

84%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

H2 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28+

Strong Capital Structure

Backed by high quality assets and robust cash flows, our long-duration borrowings maintain a

AAA credit rating, attract competitive costs and carry a low refinancing risk

7.45%
AVERAGE INTEREST RATE(1)

AAA Stable
CREDIT RATING (CRISIL)

(1) As on September 30, 2022; 100% floating rate loans.

(2) During H1 FY2023.

(3) Weighted average maturity period as on September 30, 2022.

140 bps

69 bps

Repo Rate Brookfield India REIT

INCREASE IN INTEREST RATES(2)

31%
NET DEBT TO

VALUE RATIO

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

(% OF OUTSTANDING DEBT)

Rs 2.1B
UNDRAWN COMMITTED 

FACILITY

10.2 Yrs.
AVERAGE 

MATURITY(3)



11

Leasing
306,000 SF

Gross 

Leasing

89%
Effective Economic 

Occupancy

• Achieved 127,000 SF of new leasing and 179,000 SF of renewals during

the quarter, and signed expansion options of 16,000 SF in N1

• Achieved 9% average escalation on 909,000 SF leased area

• Ongoing discussions on 1.0 MSF of new leasing and 1.0 MSF of renewals

Development 

and Capex

561,000 SF
Commenced 

construction of mixed-

use building in K1

• New tower to offer

o ~387,000 SF of commercial office space comprising high quality non

SEZ offices which will diversify our product mix

o ~174,000 SF of F&B led retail destination with multiple restaurants,

cafes, large and small format retail outlets, gaming center and an open

terrace area, which will substantially enhance our occupier experience

ESG, Health 

and Safety

5-Star Rating

100%
Score in Social and 

Governance categories

• Advanced our target to achieve a Net Zero carbon future by 10 years

to 2040

• Awarded as the winner at the Golden Peacock Global Awards for our

focus on sustainability

• Planted 3,000 tress as part of the Forest of Hope Plantation Drive

Q2 FY2023 | Business Highlights

We witnessed continued leasing demand with 306,000 SF of gross leasing this quarter

(1) Average escalation is weighted by rent; Average escalation in G2, N1, N2 and K1 is ~13.4% (3 year escalations) and in Kensington is 4.4% (annual escalations).
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Q2 FY2023
Growth vs 

Q2 FY2022

Operating Lease 

Rentals (OLR)

(Rs million)

Rs 2,056 32%

• Rs 496 million (31.7%) YoY increase

o Rs 469 million (30.1%) increase due to addition of N2 to

the REIT and Rs 26 million (1.7%) primarily due to recent

new leasing

Adjusted Net 

Operating Income 

(NOI)(1)

(Rs million)

Rs 2,413 48%

• Rs 784 million (48.2%) YoY increase

o Increase in OLR of Rs 496 million (30.4%)

o Increase in CAM margins of Rs 22 million (1.3%) due to

the addition of N2 and of Rs 88 million (5.4%) primarily

due to higher physical attendance leading to increase in

CAM revenues (cost-plus contracts)

o Income Support of Rs 179 million (11.0%)

Gross Asset Value

(Rs billion)
Rs 164 40% • Rs 47 billion (40.3%) YoY increase

Net Asset Value

(Rs per unit)
Rs 337 4% • Rs 13 per unit (4.1%) YoY increase

Q2 FY2023 | Financial Highlights

48% increase in operating income versus Q2 FY2022, led by the N2 acquisition

(1) Adjusted NOI is the aggregate of reported NOI and the Income Support on N2 in Q2 FY2023.
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Q2 FY2023 | Distributions

Rs 5.10
DISTRIBUTION PER UNIT (DPU)

NOV 16, 2022
RECORD DATE

By NOV 22, 2022
PAYOUT DATE

Our distributions are in line with our guidance at Rs 5.10 per unit, of which 52% is non-

taxable(1)

Rs 2.42 , 48%

Rs 0.09 , 2%

Rs 2.57 , 50%

Rs 0.02 , 0%

DISTRIBUTION PER UNIT COMPONENTS

Interest on Shareholder Loan

Dividend

Repayment of Shareholder Loan

Interest Income on Fixed Deposits

Rs 1,709 million
DISTRIBUTION (Q2 FY2023)

(1) For tax treatment of distribution, please refer FAQs on the website (https://www.brookfieldindiareit.in/distribution-history/#overview).

(2) Includes interest on compulsorily convertible debentures.

(2)

Rs 20.25 per unit
FY2023 NDCF GUIDANCE

https://www.brookfieldindiareit.in/distribution-history/#overview


CANDOR TECHSPACE N1, NOIDA

Business & Financial Updates
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Significantly Complete and Stable Portfolio

94% of gross asset value is in operating properties, with an Effective Economic Occupancy of 

89% and a long-dated WALE of 6.9 years

Area (in MSF) Leased Area Metrics

Asset Operating 
Dev. 

Potential
Total

Area 

in MSF

# Office 

Tenants

Committed /

Econ. Occ. %

WALE 

(Yrs.)

In-place 

Rent 

(Rs PSF)

Asset 

Value(2)

(Rs Bn)

Kensington 1.6 - 1.6 1.5 8 95%  2.0 Rs 100 Rs 28 

G2 3.9 0.1 4.0 3.3 14 85% 8.2 80 46 

N1 2.0 0.9 2.8 1.7 26 86% 7.2 48 22 

N2 3.8 0.8 4.5 2.8 21 76% 7.6 54 41

K1 3.1 2.7 5.7 2.6 13 84% 7.1 42 27 

Total 14.3 4.4 18.7 11.9 72(1) 84% / 89% 6.9 Rs 64  Rs 164

28%

39%

16%

17%

ASSET VALUE BY GEOGRAPHY(2)

Gurugram

Noida

Kolkata

Mumbai 94%

6%

ASSET VALUE BY STATUS(2)

Operating

Under
Construction /
Development
Potential

(1) 7 tenants are present across more than one office park.

(2) As on September 30, 2022.

Note: Econ. Occ. % denotes Effective Economic Occupancy.
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Deep Rooted Tenant Relationships

SECTOR DIVERSIFICATION OF TENANTS

Technology, 49%

BFSI, 10%

Consulting, 
18%

Hardware, 
6%

Healthcare, 
5%

Others, 10%

Tenant # Parks
% Leased 

Area

Growth since 

Mar 15(1)

Tenant 

since

Accenture 3 14% +90% 10+ Yrs.

TCS 3 14% - 10+ Yrs.

Cognizant 3 13% +126% 10+ Yrs.

Sapient 2 5% +163% 10+ Yrs.

Genpact 2 4% +5% 10+ Yrs.

RBS 1 4% +7% 10+ Yrs.

Barclays 1 3% +60% 10+ Yrs.

Samsung 1 3% New 1 Yr.

Steria 1 2% - 10+ Yrs.

Telus 1 2% New 4 Yrs.

Total 65%

TOP 10 TENANTS BY LEASED AREA

(2)

Technology-led, high credit quality tenant roster, with an established track record of tenant

expansion

(1) Adjusted for areas in Kensington, which were inherited in 2017 when the property management was taken over.

(2) Banking, Financial Services and Insurance.
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“Business-critical” Campuses

Our tenants perform specialised and high value-add services from our office parks

Technology BFSI

Leading US healthcare company (G2)
Only Global Capability Center in North India 

UK based banking conglomerate (G2)
Largest off-shore center in India 

Fortune 500 consulting company (G2)
Largest delivery center in North India

Top 5 European tech company (K1)
Key hub for Artificial Intelligence and software 

development

Consulting

Healthcare

World leading e-commerce company (N1)
Largest customer services center in North India

Indian IT behemoth (Kensington)
One of the largest offshore delivery centers

Fortune 500 British bank (N1)
Largest captive center in North India

Swiss MNC with Japanese owners (N1)
Captive R&D center, performing testing of product 

lines of EV technology & Smart infrastructure

Others

European consulting giant (N2)
Only office in North India, catering to 

European clients

American management services co (N2)
Providing revenue cycle management solutions to 

their clients such as hospitals, health systems, 

physician groups, etc.



18

New Leasing and Renewals

Tenant / 

Industry
Industry Assets Area (SF)

Innovaccer Healthcare N1 36,000

Mindtree Technology N1 14,000

McGraw Hill Others N1 36,000

Telus Technology N2 23,000

New Leasing 127,000 SF

BT E-Serv Telecom G2 117,000

GE Oil & Gas Oil & Gas Kensington 60,000

Renewals 179,000 SF

Total 306,000 SF

SELECT NEW LEASES / RENEWALS(1)

10.3 Yrs.
AVERAGE TERM ON NEW LEASING(2)

1.0 MSF
EXPECTED RENEWALS

Achieved gross leasing of 306,000 SF during the quarter while progressing on a 2.0 MSF

leasing pipeline

(1) Only includes select office leases and renewals.

(2) Average leasing rent and lease term are weighted by area. These metrics are provided only for office areas.

Rs 61 PSF
AVERAGE RENT ON NEW LEASING(2)

1.0 MSF
NEW LEASING PROSPECTS
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New Leasing and Renewals (Cont’d.)

Rent at expiry (Rs PSF)(2) Rs 84 Rs 77 Rs 78 Rs 60

MTM Spread %(2) 25% 56% 10% 7%

1.0

1.1

0.6

1.0

10%

21% 26%
33%

H2 FY23E FY24E FY25E FY26E

LEASE EXPIRY SCHEDULE

Area Expiring (MSF) Achieved/Expected Renewals Cumulative Expiry (% of Rentals)

Portfolio has a well staggered lease expiry profile and provides an opportunity to capture an

attractive mark-to-market spread in the near term

(1) Primarily due to down-sizing by a large occupier in G2.

(2) Excludes retail and amenity areas.

H1 FY23

0.2

0.1

Expected 

Renewals

Expected H2 

Exits

KEY HIGHLIGHTS (H1 FY2023)

• Expiries: 266,000 SF

• Renewals: 179,000 SF

• Same-store expiries: 245,000 SF 

increase in FY2023(1)
0.7 MSF

44% MTM

0.3 MSF

42% MTM

0.6 MSF

19% MTM
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Property Income | Walkdown

MILLIONS Q2 FY2023 Q2 FY2022 KEY DRIVERS

Income from Operating Lease 

Rentals (OLR)
Rs 2,056 Rs 1,561

• Rs 496 million (31.7%) YoY increase

o Rs 469 million (30.1%) increase due to addition of N2 to

the REIT and Rs 26 million (1.7%) primarily due to recent

new leasing

(+) CAM / Other Revenue 980 556

• Rs 423 million (76.1%) YoY increase

o Rs 262 million (47.0%) increase due to addition of N2 to 

the REIT

o Rs 162 million (29.1%) increase primarily due to higher 

physical attendance leading to increase in CAM revenues 

(cost-plus contracts) and some occupiers moving to 

higher hours of operation

Revenue from Operations Rs 3,036 Rs 2,117

(-) CAM / Other Direct Expenses (802) (489)

• Rs 314 million (64.2%) YoY increase

o Rs 240 million (49.0%) increase due to addition of N2 to 

the REIT

o Rs 74 million (15.1%) increase due to increase in O&M 

expenses compared to previous year because of higher 

physical attendance

Net Operating Income (NOI) Rs 2,234 Rs 1,628

% Margin on OLR 109% 104%

(+) Income Support 179 -

Adjusted NOI Rs 2,413 Rs 1,628
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NDCF | Walkdown

Millions Q1 FY2023 Q2 FY2023 H1 FY2023

Income from Operating Lease Rentals Rs 2,034 Rs 2,056 Rs 4,091 

CAM / Other Revenue 876 980 1,856 

Revenue from Operations Rs 2,910 Rs 3,036 Rs 5,946 

CAM / Other Direct Expenses (742) (802) (1,545)

Income Support 178 179 357

Adjusted NOI Rs 2,346 Rs 2,413 Rs 4,759 

Property Management Fees (58) (60) (118)

Net Other Income / (Expenses) 30 5 34

Adjusted EBITDA Rs 2,318 Rs 2,357 Rs 4,675 

Cash Taxes (Net of Refund) 95 (33) 62 

Working Capital and Ind-AS Adjustments 131 70 201

Addition of Shareholder Debt in N2 335 - 335

Repayment of Tenant Deposits and Brokerage Expense (131) (136) (268) 

Cashflow from Operations Rs 2,748 Rs 2,258 Rs 5,006 

Capex (370) (284) (654)

Net Financing Activities(1) 601 649 1,250

Non Refundable Advances 85 68 153

Interest Cost on External Debt (902) (1,024) (1,926)

NDCF (SPV Level) Rs 2,161 Rs 1,666 Rs 3,827

(1) Including debt drawdown and interest on fixed deposit & security deposit, and netted of investment in fixed deposits, other borrowing cost, repayment of debt and unspent debt 

drawn during the period.
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NDCF | Walkdown

(1) The variance between SPV level NDCF and REIT level NDCF is primarily on account of the addition of shareholder debt in N2 in Q1 FY2023 and utilization of opening cash at the 

SPV level in Q2 FY2023.

(2) Includes changes in working capital and net of interest on fixed deposit.

Millions Q1 FY2023 Q2 FY2023 H1 FY2023

NDCF (SPV Level)(1) Rs 2,161 Rs 1,666 Rs 3,827

Interest on Shareholder Debt 860 825 1,686

Dividends 22 30 52

Repayment of Shareholder Debt 1,196 886 2,082

Investment of Shareholder Debt in N2 (335) - (335)

REIT Expenses(2) (24) (25) (49)

NDCF (REIT Level)(1) Rs 1,719 Rs 1,717 Rs 3,436

NDCF per Unit (REIT Level) Rs 5.13 Rs 5.12 Rs 10.25 

Distribution per Unit (REIT Level) Rs 5.10 Rs 5.10 10.20
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Summary Balance Sheet

MILLIONS SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

Liabilities and Equity

Total Equity Rs 86,144

Borrowings(1) 53,182

Security Deposits 5,049

Other Liabilities 3,800

Total Rs 148,175

Assets

Investment Property Rs 134,708

Investment Property Under Development 1,279

Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,297

Other Assets 9,890

Total Rs 148,175

NOTES:
a) Other Liabilities include trade & other payables, capital creditors, statutory dues, lease liabilities, deferred income & provisions

b) Other Assets include Income Support receivable, income tax advances, security deposits, restricted cash balances, unbilled revenues, trade & 

other receivables 

Our business is well-capitalized, backed by a strong balance sheet

(1) Outstanding borrowings of Rs 53,511 million adjusted for processing fee of Rs 329 million which has been netted off. 



CANDOR TECHSPACE N2, NOIDA

Environmental Social Governance Program Updates
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Our Commitment

2020
Establish baselines

2023
Net Zero plans 

for all buildings

2025
50% of portfolio on 

decarbonization 

pathway

2030

Across the 

Brookfield India 

REIT portfolio  

Accelerate 

decarbonization 

across assets

2040
NET ZERO

Committed to industry-leading sustainable development to deliver long-term value to our 

business, partners and communities
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Progress on Net Zero 

We are actively tracking our emissions and are closely working with all our stakeholders to 

achieve a Net Zero carbon future by 2040 or sooner

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS (‘000 Mt CO2e)(1) ENERGY CONSUMPTION (MILLION UNITS)(1)

WATER USAGE (‘000 KILO LITRES)(1) SOLID WASTE GENERATION (TONS)(1)

1,066 1,147 

435 439 402 

404 
364 

114 120 140 

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 H1FY23

Water Usage Water Recycled

85 
99 

62 61 

30 

17 2 

1 1 

2 

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 H1FY23

Scope 2 Scope 1

127 123 

76 76 70 

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 H1FY23

1,922 
1,660 

354 348 227 

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 H1FY23

Note: Consumption reductions in FY2021 and FY2022 are primarily attributable to lower physical occupancy on account of restrictions due to covid.

(1) Q1 FY2023 and FY2022 metrics include N2 from its acquisition on January 24, 2022.
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Through continuous improvements, we ensure efficient, resilient, future-fit assets that

support the needs of our tenants and communities

Key ESG Initiatives

3,000
TREES PLANTED
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EXCELLENCE CENTRE, GURUGRAM

Forest of Hope - Plantation drives conducted with 

occupants and employees as part of the culmination of the 

Trees of Hope campaign.

24 X 7
EXCELLENCE CENTRE

Inaugurated state-of-the-art, integrated Building 

Management Systems.

Key building parameters of all REIT assets can be 

monitored, controlled and optimized through this Centre.

PLANTATION DRIVE, GURUGRAM

H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 

W
E

L
L

-B
E

IN
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IMPROVEMENT IN AIR QUALITY

INDOOR AIR QUALITY 

DASHBOARDS ACROSS ASSETS

Installation of indoor air quality monitoring and control has 

resulted in improvement of workspace air quality.

>90% 



KENSINGTON, POWAI, MUMBAI

Information Supplement
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50 MSF
TOTAL OFFICE AREA

Sponsor Group’s Real Estate Footprint in India

Brookfield Group is one of the largest real estate investors in India with a high-quality office 

portfolio spanning 50 MSF (including Brookfield India REIT)

BROOKFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE – KEY FACTS OTHER INDIA OFFICE PORTFOLIO (OUTSIDE REIT)

13 Cities
DIVERSIFIED 

PORTFOLIO

5,000+
EMPLOYEES

10+ Yrs.
INDIA PRESENCE

12 Hotels
3,200+ KEYS

19 Centers
14,000+ DESKS

$8B
ASSETS UNDER 

MANAGEMENT

2x
AUM GROWTH

(2020 – 2022)
G1, GURUGRAM

DOWNTOWN POWAI, MUMBAI

EQUINOX, MUMBAI

ECOWORLD, BANGALORE

MILLENIA, CHENNAI

ECOSPACE, BANGALORE
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Detailed Lease Expiry Schedule

Year / Asset Area Expiring (‘000 SF)
% of Gross Rentals 

(Asset / Portfolio)

In-place rent at Expiry (Rs 

PSF)(1)

H2 FY2023E

Kensington 389 28% Rs 106

G2 240 7% 82

N1 38 1% 65

N2 191 7% 54

K1 114 3% 54

Total – REIT 972 10% Rs 84

FY2024E

Kensington 707 40% Rs 87

G2 133 4% 95

N1 235 12% 40

N2 47 2% 56

K1 - - -

Total – REIT 1,123 11% Rs 77

FY2025E

Kensington 109 10% Rs 148

G2 107 3% 112

N1 288 16% 45

N2 49 1% 63

K1 3 1% -

Total – REIT 556 5% Rs 78

FY2026E

Kensington - - -

G2 186 6% 100

N1 45 2% 48

N2 349 11% 54

K1 468 20% 51

Total – REIT 1,049 7% Rs 60

(1) Excludes retail and amenity areas.
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Q2 FY2023: Occupancy Bridge

ASSET JUNE 30, 2022 SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

AREAS IN  ‘000 SF
OPERATING 

AREA

LEASED 

AREA

COMMITTED 

OCCUPANCY

NEW 

LEASING

GROSS 

EXPIRIES
RENEWALS

OPERATING 

AREA

LEASED 

AREA

COMMITTED 

OCCUPANCY

Kensington 1,560 1,483 95% - (58) 60 1,563 1,485 95%

G2(1) 3,881 3,312 85% 0 (125) 117 3,917 3,340 85%

N1 1,952 1,579 81% 104 (2) 2 1,957 1,683 86%

N2 3,764 2,891 77% 23 (72) 0 3,764 2,842 76%

K1 3,061 2,577 84% - (9) - 3,061 2,568 84%

REIT 14,218 11,843 83% 127 (266) 179 14,261 11,918 84%

Existing Towers 12,822 11,101 87% 23 (266) 179 12,860 11,073 86%

Towers Completed 

during covid(2) 1,396 742 53% 104 - - 1,401 846 60%

(1) Amendment in the lease terms of a tenant upon renewal of the break options resulted in increase in leasable area.

(2) Towers completed during covid include Tower 5 and Amenity Block III at N1 and Towers 11 and 11A at N2.
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H1 FY2023: Occupancy Bridge

ASSET MARCH 31, 2022 SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

AREAS IN  ‘000 SF
OPERATING 

AREA

LEASED 

AREA

COMMITTED 

OCCUPANCY

NEW 

LEASING

GROSS 

EXPIRIES
RENEWALS

OPERATING 

AREA

LEASED 

AREA

COMMITTED 

OCCUPANCY

Kensington 1,558 1,409 90% 74 (58) 60 1,563 1,485 95%

G2(1) 3,877 3,232 83% 80 (125) 117 3,917 3,340 85%

N1 1,949 1,507 77% 200 (50) 27 1,957 1,683 86%

N2 3,609 2,891 80% 23 (72) 0 3,764 2,842 76%

K1 3,061 2,577 84% - (44) 36 3,061 2,568 84%

REIT 14,054 11,616 83% 378 (350) 239 14,261 11,918 84%

Existing Towers 12,813 10,934 85% 214 (350) 239 12,860 11,073 86%

Towers Completed 

during covid(2) 1,242 682 55% 164 - - 1,401 846 60%

(1) Amendment in the lease terms of a tenant upon renewal of the break options resulted in increase in leasable area.

(2) Towers completed during covid include Tower 5 and Amenity Block III at N1 and Towers 11 and 11A at N2.
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Q2 FY2023: New leasing & Renewals

ASSET NEW LEASING RENEWALS GROSS LEASING

AREAS IN  ‘000 SF AREA RENT PSF PM(1) AREA RENT PSF PM(1) AREA RENT PSF PM(1)

Kensington - - 60 120 60 120

G2 - - 117 90 117 90

N1 104 55 2 - 106 55

N2 23 60 - - 23 60

K1 - - - - - -

REIT 127 56 179 100 306 83

(1) Rents are given per square foot per month only for office areas and include the car park rent.
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H1 FY2023: New leasing & Renewals

ASSET NEW LEASING RENEWALS GROSS LEASING

AREAS IN  ‘000 SF AREA RENT PSF PM(1) AREA RENT PSF PM(1) AREA RENT PSF PM(1)

Kensington 74 120 60 120 135 120

G2 80 80 117 90 197 86

N1 200 56 27 - 227 56

N2 23 60 - - 23 60

K1 - - 36 48 36 48

REIT 378 75 239 91 617 81

(1) Rents are given per square foot per month only for office areas and include the car park rent. 
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Property Income | Consolidation Details (Q2 FY2023)

MILLIONS

INCOME FROM 

OPERATING LEASE 

RENTALS (OLR)

REVENUE FROM 

OPERATIONS
NET OPERATING INCOME (NOI)(1)

Q2 FY2023 Q2 FY2022 Q2 FY2023 Q2 FY2022 Q2 FY2023 % OLR Q2 FY2022 % OLR

Kensington Rs 447 Rs 415 Rs 482 Rs 441 Rs 420 94% Rs 379 91%

G2 585 605 869 847 629 108% 627 104%

N1 228 183 446 310 266 117% 194 106%

N2 469 - 731 - 491 105% - -

K1 328 358 508 519 339 103% 371 104%

CIOP - - 141 94 88 - 57 -

Intercompany 

Eliminations(2) - - (141) (94) - - - -

Total Rs 2,056 Rs 1,561 Rs 3,036 Rs 2,117 Rs 2,234 109% Rs 1,628 104%

Income Support - - - - 179 - - -

Adjusted Total Rs 2,056 Rs 1,561 Rs 3,036 Rs 2,117 Rs 2,413 - Rs 1,628 -

(1) The NOI at SPV level is presented without intercompany eliminations.

(2) Revenue earned by CIOP gets eliminated with corresponding operating and maintenance expenses at SPV level. 
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Property Income | Consolidation Details (H1 FY2023)

MILLIONS

INCOME FROM 

OPERATING LEASE 

RENTALS (OLR)

REVENUE FROM 

OPERATIONS
NET OPERATING INCOME (NOI)(1)

H1 FY2023 H1 FY2022 H1 FY2023 H1 FY2022 H1 FY2023 % OLR H1 FY2022 % OLR

Kensington Rs 885 Rs 851 Rs 959 Rs 904 Rs 833 94% Rs 781 92%

G2 1,161 1,237 1,706 1,736 1,235 106% 1,302 105%

N1 447 367 843 610 504 113% 391 107%

N2 937 - 1,455 - 987 105% - -

K1 660 722 984 1,059 673 102% 756 105%

CIOP - - 275 167 170 - 94 -

Intercompany 

Eliminations(2) - - (275) (167) - - - -

Total Rs 4,091 Rs 3,177 Rs 5,946 Rs 4,308 Rs 4,402 108% Rs 3,325 105%

Income Support - - - - 357 - - -

Adjusted Total Rs 4,091 Rs 3,177 Rs 5,946 Rs 4,308 Rs 4,759 - Rs 3,325 -

(1) The NOI at SPV level is presented without intercompany eliminations.

(2) Revenue earned by CIOP gets eliminated with corresponding operating and maintenance expenses at SPV level. 
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Capital Structure and Liquidity

Simple capital structure, low-cost asset level debt and significant debt headroom will continue

to be our strengths

Rs 51.2B
NET DEBT(1)

Rs 2.1B
UNDRAWN COMMITTED 

FACILITY

SPV GROSS DEBT SUMMARY (MILLIONS)(2)

ASSETS KENSINGTON G2 + K1 N1 N2 CIOP TOTAL

Shareholder Debt by REIT (12.5% p.a.p.q.) Rs 5,815 Rs 10,424 Rs 2,449 Rs 5,456 - Rs 24,144

External Debt (7.45% p.a.p.m.) 8,610 26,200 3,870 14,831 - 53,511

Total SPV Debt (Gross) Rs 14,425 Rs 36,624 Rs 6,319 Rs 20,287 - Rs 77,655

Less: Shareholder Debt by REIT (24,144)

Consolidated REIT Debt (Gross) Rs 53,511

7.45%
AVERAGE INTEREST RATE(2)

AAA Stable
CREDIT RATING (CRISIL)

31%

49%

Brookfield REIT Regulatory Cap

HEADROOM IN LTV(2)

(1) Gross Debt of Rs 53,511 million net of Cash and Cash Equivalents of Rs 2,297 million.

(2) As on September 30, 2022.
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Ongoing Capex and Upgrades

ONGOING PROJECTS(1)

ESTIMATED 

COMPLETION DATE

PENDING COSTS 

(MILLIONS)

Asset Upgrades/Tenant Improvements

Kensington Q4 FY2023 Rs 101 

G2 Q3 FY2023 63

N1 Q3 FY2023 138

N2 Q4 FY2023 234

K1 Q3 FY2023 7

Sub Total Rs 543 

New Development 

K1 – Mixed Use Development(2) Q3 FY2026 2,453

Sub Total Rs 2,453

Total Rs 2,996 

Rs 3 billion of capex projects underway across new tower developments and upgrades to 

existing towers. Capex including interest during construction to be financed through debt

(1) Capex budgets for asset upgrades and tenant improvements:

- Asset Upgrades: Façade and canopy at Kensington; food court and gym at G2; landscaping, external developments and ongoing fitouts at N1;

and landscaping and façade upgrades at N2.

- Tenant Improvements: At Kensington, G2, N1 and K1.

(2)    The mixed-use tower area has been increased from 524,000 SF to 561,000 SF upon finalisation of the building design, and includes 174,000 SF of F&B led retail destination.
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Ongoing Capex and Upgrades (Cont’d.)

Recently completed the upgrade of the lobby at Kensington, with the freshly unveiled double-

height entrance lobby enhancing the look and feel of the asset
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Glossary (1/2)

Gross Asset Value / Asset Value The market value as determined by the Valuer as of March 31, 2022

Committed Occupancy

Same-store Occupancy
Represents Committed Occupancy for areas where the occupancy certificate was received on 

or before March 31, 2020

WALE
Weighted Average Lease Expiry based on area. Calculated assuming tenants exercise all their 

renewal options post expiry of their initial lock-in period

In-place Rent
Rental income from leased area for the month excluding fit-out and car parking income on a per 

square foot basis

Initial Portfolio Assets comprising of office parks (Kensington, Mumbai; G2, Gurugram; N1, Noida; K1, Kolkata)

G1 Candor Techspace G1 (Candor Techspace, Sector 48, Gurugram)

N2 Candor Techspace N2 (Candor Techspace, Sector 135, Noida)

ROFO Properties
Office assets for which Brookfield India REIT has entered into a right-of-first-offer (ROFO) 

agreement

Re-leasing Spread
Refers to the realized change in base rent between the leases signed and leases expiring at in-

place rents, reflected as a % change

Mark-to-market Headroom / Spread
Refers to the potential change in base rent between new leases signed at market rates and 

leases expiring at in-place rents, reflected as a % change

(Occupied Area + Completed Area under Letters of Intent)

Completed Area
In %
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Glossary (2/2)

Operating Lease Rentals (OLR)
Revenue from leasing of premises including Warm Shell rent, fit-out rent and car parking

Income

Net Operating Income (NOI)
Net Operating Income calculated by subtracting Direct Operating Expenses from Revenue

from Operations

REIT Portfolio NOI
Includes the NOI for the Initial Portfolio for the entire financial year and for N2 since its 

acquisition on January 24, 2022

NDCF
Net distributable cash flows (non-GAAP measure). Please refer to pg. 285-287 of the Offer 

Document for calculation methodology

Effective Economic Occupancy

Income Support
Monetary support provided by Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited (MIOP) to SDPL 

Noida with respect to eligible areas under the Income Support Agreement

REIT Portfolio Together, Initial Portfolio and Candor Techspace N2

Brookfield Group Brookfield Asset Management Inc. and its affiliates

SDPL Seaview Developers Private Limited

CIOP Candor India Office Parks Private Limited

Financial Year
Pertains to the period from April 1 of the previous year to March 31 of the stated year, e.g., 

FY2023 is the period from April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023

Sum of Leased Areas and any eligible areas under any income

support arrangement (excluding Leased Areas)

Operating Area
In %
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Chartered Accountants 

7th Floor, Building 10, Tower B, 

DLF Cyber City Complex, 

DLF City Phase - II, 

Gurugram - 122 002, 
Haryana, India 

Phone: +91 124 679 2000 

Fax: +91 124 679 2012 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED STANDALONE 

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the “Investment Manager”) 

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Brookfield India Real Estate 

Trust) 

Introduction 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial

Statements of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (“the REIT”), (“the Condensed

Standalone Interim Financial Statements”) which comprise of the following:

• the unaudited Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2022;

• the unaudited Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other

comprehensive income) for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2022;

• the unaudited Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash flow for the quarter and half

year ended September 30, 2022;

• the unaudited Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity

for the half year ended September 30, 2022;

• the unaudited Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at September 30, 2022;

• the unaudited Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value for the half year ended

September 30, 2022

• the unaudited Condensed Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the quarter

and half year ended September 30, 2022; and

• summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes

These Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements are being submitted by the REIT 

pursuant to the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate 

Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines 

and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 

December 29, 2016 (the “REIT Regulations”). 

2. The Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the

Investment Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager,

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the REIT Regulations; Indian

Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“Ind AS 34”), prescribed under Rule

2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and

other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with

the REIT Regulations. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed

Standalone Interim Financial Statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

3. We conducted our review of the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements in

accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 ‘Review of Interim

Appendix III



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information 

consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager’s personnel responsible 

for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. 

A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards 

on Auditing issued by ICAI and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we 

would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. 

Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

Conclusion 

4. Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 

accompanying Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements, have not been prepared 

in accordance with the REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34, prescribed under Rule 2(1)(a) of the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT 

Regulations. 

Emphasis of matter 

5. We draw attention to Note 10(a)(i) which describe the presentation of “Unit Capital” as 

“Equity” to comply with REIT Regulations. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this 

matter. 

 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 

      Chartered Accountants 

            (Firm’s Reg. No. 015125N) 

 

 

 

 

 

   Anand Subramanian 

                         Partner 

                                                                   (Membership No. 110815) 

      (UDIN:22110815BCIWJB5845) 

 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: November 7, 2022 

 

 

 

 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condcnsrd Standalone Finnntinl Statements 
(All amounts arc in Rupees millions unless olhcnvisc staled) 

Condensed Standalone UHh1nce Sheet 

Particulurs 

ASSETS 
Non-Current 2ssets 
Financial asst:ls 
-Investments 
-Loans 
-Other financial asscls 
Non-<:uncnl la., assets (ncl) 
Totnl non-current usscts 

Current assets 
Financial assets 
-Cash and cash c'quivalcnts 
-Other financial assets 
Other current assets 
Total currcnl assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equily 
Uni! Capital 
01her equity 
Total equity 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 
Financial liabililics 
-Trade payables 

total outstandinA; ,Jues of micro enterprises and small cnlc1prises 
total outs landing dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 

-Other financial liabilities 
01her cuncnt liabililic-s 
Current la., liabilities (nel) 
Total current liabilities 
Tot,,I li•bilitics 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Significnnl uccounling policies 

Jl!ole 

3 
4 
5 
6 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 

12 

13 
14 
15 

2 

Asal 
30 September 2022 

(Unaudited) 

62.941.15 
24.144 .50 

0.59 
87,086.24 

1.718.40 
628.46 
138.49 

2,485.35 
89,571.59 

88,289.05 
1.174.02 

89,463.07 

0.11 
33.43 

72.49 
0.36 
2.13 

108.52 
108.52 

89,571.59 

Asal 
31 March2022 

(Audil<d) 

62.965.85 
25.891.50 

30.00 
17.51 

88,904.86 

1.755.13 
645.72 

0.12 
2,400.97 

91,305.83 

89.867.31 
1.387.46 

91,254.77 

31.72 

6.32 
13.02 

51.06 
51.06 

91,305.83 

The accompanying notes from I to 33 form an integral pan of these Condensed Standalone Financial Slalemenls. 
As per our rcpon of even date attached 

For DELOITTE IIASKINS & SELLS 
Chancrcd Accoun1an1s 
Firm Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian­
Panncr 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bcngaluru 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Oircclors of 
Urookprop Management Services Private Limit<d 
(as Manager lo lhe Brooklicld India REIT) 

AnkurGupta 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

Sanj<cv KumnrShum• 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

Alok Aggarwal 
ChiefExcculivc Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Da1e: 07 November 2022 



Broeldldd lndls Reaf ~ tare Tnast 
CoadtaHd S1udaloae Fl■uc.W Sll1tftlfflU 
(AD amounts an la Rupea mi1Jon1 anleu othuwlae 1tafed) 

C.dmted Standalone Staltmt11t .CPnflt 111d Loa 
For dat quarter mded For the cauart,r endtd For tht quu'leradtd 

P&rtfculan Note J0S.pltTDb<r2011 J0Jane2012 JO September 2021 
(lh, ■udlt•d) (Un■udlt") (Unaudited) 

lnca1111and 1Ull1 
Divid<nd J0.00 22.00 l0.00 
Interest 16 13l.l2 lll.00 l , ll,Ul 
Other income 11 

Total Income 165.32 177.00 1,IIIUJ 

Ezpm1u and loau 
Valwition Expenses 09 1.67 2.99 
Audit Ftcs ◄.05 l.◄◄ 2.36 
Investment management r,es 20.26 20.32 24.92 
Tnaslet fees 0,74 0.74 0.74 
Legal and profeaiol\&l t,cpaue UI l .l7 Ol 
Other expenses 18 Jl.23 1.24 4.16 

Totalapm1a 65.41 42.91 40.11 

Profit btfan. Income tu 799.14 134.02 1,144.61 

Tuupu,e: 19 
Current IIX J ,]7 4.J0 4.12 
Deferred tu 
Tu upaue rar the period/ yur l.37 4.30 4,12 

Profit (or the period/ yur &flu lncome tu 796.47 129,71 1,U0.O 

Otbrr tompnhmftn iatemt 

Items thtt will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
- Remeasurement of demed bale.fit obti1atiom 
• IMome llX rel11ed lo items thtt \\111 not be rtdusifitd to pro6t or loss 
Other compRbtmfvt Income ror tbc pRriod/ yHr, att or tu 

Total compnhmslYe income (or the pni1d/ year 7'6.4' 829.71 I 140.49 

Eaml■p~•nil 24 
Basic 2.31 2.41 l.77 
llilured 1.ll 2.41 l .77 

Signi&ctnt accountflC policies 

The &ec:0mpanyina notes &am l toll form an inlea,nl pan of these Condensed Standalone Fin.lncial S11temen1s, 

AJ per our repon of' even date ana.chtd 

For D£LOITTE UASKINS & SELLS 

Ol■n<r .. A«ollllllntS 
Faml\,(lislrltionNo.: 0lll2lN 

Anand Subnmaniaa 
P■nnu 
Manb<nhip No: II Oil l 

Pltce: Benga!W11 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

For and on bdwto(lhe: Board ofDirutor, or 

Braokprap Mlllalfflldll Stnfcet .Prl,,atl Umiltd 
(u M.,naccr 1G the Bruoltfidd India REIT) 

JJ-"t;;:- <-1 e' Cc-'7?7 _,p c~~ 

DIN No. 01617570 

Plt ce: Mumbai 
Date: 07 NaVflffler 2022 

AJokAnarwal SanjttV Kum1rSb1nna 
a..fEncutiw Otlim Cltid'f'111■ociol OBie<r 
Plac:t: MWT'Dli Pia.er..: Murnbm 

Dile: 07 Nov,mb<r 2022 Dale: 07 NoYmi><r 2022 

For the halfyearendtd For tllt bltr yur n.dtd Far Ille half yur adtd Far the ye■ r mdtd 
30 Sept..,.btr 2011 l!Mu-dt2012 JO S.pl<mbu 2921 JI Mirth 2012 

(lh, ■udlt") CU,,■adlt") (Un■udlt•d) (Audll<d) 

l2.00 42.00 110.00 222.00 
1,690.32 2,061.11 2,297.17 4,359,61 

126.71 126.71 

l ,7◄ 2.32 2,230.59 2,◄ 17.17 .. 1708.46 

6.06 7.67 l .93 11 .60 

l .49 1.26 l .90 14.16 
40.ll ll.J0 4l .91 11.21 

1.41 1.47 l ,41 2.9l 
IJ.JI 12.60 7.17 19,77 
]9,47 11.34 J0.41 41.75 

101,46 76.64 94.10 171.◄◄ 

l,6JJ.16 2,153.95 2,313.07 4,537,01 

7.67 7.l0 4,77 12.27 

7,67 7,50 4,77 12.17 

1,626.19 l 1146.A5 2,371.JO 4,514.75 

1525.19 2,146.15 2,378.30 4,514.75 

4.ll 6.81 7.15 14 .64 
4.ll 6.11 7.ll 14 .64 

;. 

* I Jtg.; 
fa· ~ 

~ 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statement! 
(All amounts are in Rupee.! Millions unleu otherwise stated) 

Condensed Standalone Statement of Cub Flows 
For the quarter ended For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 
30 September 2022 30 June 2022 30 September 2021 

Particulars (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

Cub flows from operating activities : 
Profi l before lax 799,84 834,02 1,144.61 
Adjustments for : 
Dividend income (30,00) (22.00) (30.00) 
Interest income on loans to subsidiaries (808. 15) (825,65) (1,145.21) 
Interest income on debentures (19.29) (19.29) 
Interest income on fixed deposits (7,88) (8,88) (9.62) 
Loss/(Gain) on investment in 15% Compulsory Convertible Debentures at fair value 24.70 
through profit or loss 

Operating cub flows before working capital cbang~ (40.78) (41.80) (40.ll) 

Movement! in working capital: 
(lncreB3e)/DecreB.!e in other current end non current assets (63,30) (9.58) (0,82) 
Decrease in current and non current financial assets -other 30,00 

Increase/ (Decrease) in current financial liabilities - trade payables 3,03 (1.21) 5.52 
(Decrease)/ Increase in current and non current financial liabilities - others (2.32) 2.32 (7.57) 
lncrease/(Decrease) in other current and non current liabilities 0,67 1.49 0,63 
Cub und in operating activities (72.70) (48.78) (42.46) 
Income taxes (paid)/ refunds received (net) (2.72) 14.10 (3.83) 
Net cash u.nd in operating activities (A) (75.42) (34.68) (46.29) 

Cub 0ows from inve.!ting activities : 
Loan to subsidiaries (335,00) (188,00) 
Loan repaid by subsidiaries 886.00 1, 196,00 605,00 
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary (11.52) 
Investment in debentures issued by subsidiary 
Interest received on fixed deposits 8.16 8.77 9.40 
Interest received on investment in debentures 19.29 19.29 
Interest received on loan to subsidiaries 807,93 842.96 1,315.26 
Dividend received 30,00 22.00 30.00 

Net cub generated from/ (used in) investing activities (B) 1,751.38 1,742.50 1,771.66 

Cash Daws from financing activities : 
Proceeds from issue of units 
Expense incurred towards initial public offerings (18.08) 
Expense incurred towards preferential a11otment (4.00) 
Distribution to unitholders (1,707.68) !1,708,83) (1,816.81) 
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (C) !1,707,68) 11,712.83) (1,834.89) 

For the half year ended 
30 September 1011 

(Unaudited) 

1,633,86 

(52,00) 
(1,633.80) 

(38,58) 
(16.76) 

24.70 

(81.58) 

(72,88) 
30.00 

1.82 

2.16 
(111.48) 

11.38 
(110.10) 

(335,00) 
2,082.00 

(11.52) 

16.93 
38.58 

1,650.89 
52,00 

3,493.88 

(4.00) 
(3,416.51) 

!3,420.51) 

For the half year ended For the half year ended 
31 Marth 1021 30 September 1011 

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

2,153.95 2,383.07 

(42.00) (180.00) 
(2,029.32) (2,286.72) 

(14,94) 
(17.55) (11.15) 

(126.78) 

(76.64) (94.80) 

5.26 (5.38) 

0.22 9.71 
(3.73) (79.20) 

(1.97) (4.71) 
(76.86) (174.38) 

(8.79) (4.07) 
(85,65) (178.45) 

(5,773.50) (188,00) 
15,268,00 902,00 

(7,946.85) 
(5,311.17) 

17.83 10.54 
42.97 387.08 

1,757.42 2,457.21 
42.00 180,00 

(1,903.30) 3,748.83 

4,949.83 
(225.74) (976.23) 

(44,92) 

(3,330.72) (1,816.81) 
1J48.45 !11793.04) 

~

/ ) 
«;, C';. \ 

01 
* ::n 

r,; I 
[J.) ' 

.,,,'5' ' .I'), ,.. / 
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For the year ended 
31 March 1012 

(Audited) 

4,537.02 

(222.00) 
(4,316.04) 

(14.94) 
(28,70) 

(126,78) 

(171.44) 

(0.12) 

9,93 
(82.93) 

(6,68) 
(151.24) 
(12.86) 

(264.10) 

(5,961.50) 
16,170.00 

(7,946.85) 
(5,311.17) 

28.37 
430,05 

4,214.63 
222.00 

1,845.53 

4,949.83 
(1,201.97) 

(44,92) 
(5,147.53) 

!1,444.59) 



Brookntld Jndl■ Rt.al E!t1le. Trust 
Condensed S11ndalaat Flaandal Slattmnts 
{All amounts ■ re ia Raptu MOllons anltu alhtrwin st■ttcl) 

Condtaat~ Sl ■ ndaJoae Slatem,n( orCuh Flow1 

P•rtitular, 

Net (dtcreau) I increase in cath and cuh rqui¥■1tnl.s (A+B+-C) 

Cath and cuh ,qulYdtnLS at lbt btclnnlng aftht period/ yrar 

Cash ■ad cub equivalents at the end ortht period/ yu.r (re.ftr aatt 7) 

Compontnll' of cash ■ad C.A!.h equh,;ale.nts at the tnd oflht period/ year 
Balances with banks 
- in CUfftnf account 
• in escrow acccunt 
- in deposit account 

For the. qu■rftr tnded 
30 S,pltmber 2012 

(Un1udlttd} 

(31.71) 

1,750.12 

1,711.40 

2AO 

1.716.00 
,,,11.40 

Far the qu ■ rttr tadtd For the. quarter ended For the h■lfye■r ended 
30 June 2012 30 S,pttmber 2021 30 Septembtr 2022 
(Unaudited) (Un■udiltd) (Un■udlled) 

(5.01) (109.52) (36.73) 

1,755.13 2,505.15 1,755.13 

1,750.12 1,395.63 1,711.40 

17. 12 2.4 .66 2.40 
IS0.97 

1,733.00 ~220.00 1,716.00 
J
1
7SD.ll li;!9S,63 11711.40 

I. The cash flow statement ha been pre.pared in nceordance 'Nith "Indirect Method" as set out in lndian Accounting Standud .7 : •statement on Cuh Flows•. 

For the. half year ended Far tke halfyur ended 
31 Morch 2012 30 S,pt,mber 1011 

(Un■udlltd) (Unaudited) 

(640.SOJ 777.34 

1,395.63 l,6ll.l9 

1,755.13 2,395.63 

35, 13 24.66 
150.97 

1,120.00 2,220.00 
11?55.ll 1;!95.63 

2. The Trust had issued Uniu in exchange (or investmentJ in SPVs during the year ended J l March 2022. The same has not been renected in Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows since these were non-cash transactions. 

Significant accounting poficieii (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from I toll fonn 11r1 integral pan of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statcmml!. 

M per our rtport or evm date attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration No. : 015125N 

Anand Subr■maniaa 
Partner 
MembeohipNo: IIOBll 
PIW: Be.ngalun.i 
Date.: 07 November 2022 

For and on bch■Jrofthe Board of Dirtdors or 

Sroakprop M■a■gemtal Senlces Printt Llmlttd 
(u M1111aser lo the Broolcfield India REIT) 

¥---
rAnkurGaJJU 

Director 

~e'Cc-':?-7_,.p c~ 
DIN No. 08687l70 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 07 November 2022 

Alok A11:■rw■I S■nJen Kumar Sb■rm■ 
01ierEx.ecutive Officer Chit!Financi ■J Officer 
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 Novunber 2022 Dale: 07 November 2022 I ·-: . ·'-­

<_0~ ' '-, 

«i>- "'· . 

~~ d l 

For the. year ended 
31 Mordi 1021 

(Audited) 

136.U 

1,611.19 

1,755.13 

35,13 

1,120.00 
117S5.1J 



Brooklicld India Real Eslale Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All .amounts arc in Rupccs million unless olhcn-dsc stated) 

Condensed Standalone Stnlcmcnl or Chances in Unilholdcr's Equity 

(a) Unil C:ipilal 
Balance as on 01 April 2021 
Changes in unit capital during the prc,•H>us year: 
Less: DiS1ribulio11 to Unitholdcrs for the qu.utcr ended 30 June 2021 If 
Less: Dis1ribu1ion 10 Unitholdcrs for 1hc qnartcr ended 30 Seplembcr 2021 H 

Less: DiS1ribuli011 to Unilholders for lhe quarter ended 31 December 2021 ~ 
Add: Units issued during lhc ycor(rerer note 10) 
Add: Reversal or issue expenses no longer payable 
Less: Expense incurred lowards prcfcrcnli:11 allotment 
Balance at lhe end of the previous reporling i·enr JI March 2022 

Balance as on 01 April 2022 

Changes in unit capital during the current 1,criud: 
Less: DiS1ribu1ion 10 Unilholdcrs for 1he quarter ended 31 March 202211 
Less: Dis1ribu1ion lo Unilholdcrs for lhc quarter ended 30 June 2022/f 

Bahmcc nl the end of the current reporting period 30 September 2022 

(b) Other equity 

Particulars 

Balance as on 01 April 2021 
Add: Profil for lhc yc.ir ended 31 March 2022 

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Add: Tob1I Comnrchrnsivc Income for lhc nrc,•ious vcar 
Less: Distribution to Uni1holdcrs for the quarter ended 30 June 2021 U 

Less: DiS1ribu1ion lo Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 Scplcmbcr 202111 

Less: Dislribution 10 Uni1holders for lhe quarter ended 31 Dccc,nbcr 2021 ~ 

Balance as al 31 M•rch 2022 
Balance as on 01 April 2022 
Add: Profit for the halfvcar ended ]0 Senlcmbcr 2022 

Add: Other comprehensive income for lhe halrvcar ended 30 Scotembcr 2022 

Add: Total Comprehensive lncomr. for lhc current half,·car 

Less: Dislribulion 10 Unilholdcrs for the quarter ended 31 March 2022# 

Less: Distribu1ion 10 Unilholders for the auartcr ended 30 June 2022# 

Balance as al JO Scntembcr 2022 

Unit in Nos. Amount 

302,801,601 81,774.78 

(297.05) 
(605.60) 
(481.45) 

32,285,472 9,500.00 

25.55 
(48.92) 

JJS,087,073 89,867.JI 
335,087,073 89,867.31 

(720.44) 
(857.82) 

JJS,087,073 88,289.05 

Rc1:aincd earnings 

626.23 
4,524.75 

-
4,524.75 

(I .s 19.76) 

(1 ,211.21) 

(1,032.55) 

1,387.46 
1,387.46 
1,626. 19 

-
1,626.19 
(988.51) 
(851.12) 

1,17~.02 

//The dis1ribu1ions made by Tmsl lo ils Unilholders arc based on lhc Nc1 DiS1ribu1ablc Cash flows (NDCF) of Brookfield India REIT under lhc REIT Regulations. 

Sicnificanl accounling policies (refer note 2) 

111c accompanyinc notes from 1 lo 33 fom1 an integral par1 of these Condensed S1andalone Financial Slalcmcnts. 

A5 per our report of even date allachcd 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Cltartcrcd Accountants 
Finn RegiS1ra1ion No. : OISl2SN 

Anand Subramanh1n 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bcngaluru 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

For :tnd on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Drookprop Management Services Priva1c Limited 
(as Manager lo the Brookfield India REIT) 

1~-
~Gu1lhl 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 No,•embcr 2022 

Sanjee,· Kumar Sharmn 
ChicrFinancial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

Alok Aggarwal 
Chief Excculive Officer 
Placc: -Mumbai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 



Bruokficld India Real Estat< Trust 
Condcnstd Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts arc in Rupees millions unless olhen\'isc staled) 

A Stalement or Ncl Assets al Fair Value 
S.No Particulan 

A 
B 
C 
D 
E 

Assets 
Liabilities 
Net Assets ( A-0) 
No. of units 
NA V per unit (C/D) 

I Mc:asurcmcnt offair values 

As at 30 ScptemJn,r 2022 
Book Value Fair value 
89.571.59 I I 2,983.8 I 

(108.52) (108.52) 
89,463.07 112,875.29 

335,087.073 335,087.073 
266.98 336.85 

As at 31 Man:h 2022 
Book Value 
91,305.83 

(51.06) 
91,254.77 

335.087.073 
272.33 

Fair value 
111,905.55 

(51.06) 
111,854.49 

335.087.073 
333.81 

The foir value of investments in SPVs is primarily determined basis the foir value of the underlying investment property, along with fair value of other assets and liabilities of the 
respective SPV's as al 30 September 2022 and 31 March 2022. The fair value of investment properties and investment property under development has been determined by 
independent external registered property valuer. having appropriately recognized professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being 
valued. 

Valuation technique 
The fair value measurement or the investment properties and investment property under development has been categori,.ed as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs 10 the valuation 
technique used. 
llte valuers have followed a discounted cash now method. The discounted cash now method considers the present value of net cash nows 10 be generated from the respeclive 
properties, taking in10 account lhe expcc1ed rcnlal grm,1h ralc, vacancy period, occupancy rale, average sq. II. renl and lease incentive cosls. The expected net cash flows arc 
discounted using the risk adjus1ed discounl rates. Among 01hcr faclors, lhc discounl ralc eslimalion considers lhe quality of a building and i1s local ion (prime vs secondary), lenanl 
credil quali1y, lease lerms and inveslors expcclcd return. 

2 Drcnk up or Net asscl value 

rarticulan 

Fair value ofinveslmenls in SPVs 
Add: Other assels 
Less: Liabilities 
Ntt ,\sscls 

Asal 

30 Scplember 2022 
JI 1,126.16 

1,857.65 
(108.52) 

112,875.29 

As at 
31 March 2022 

I JO, 102.45 
1,803.10 

(51.06) 
111,854.49 

J The TruSI holds inveslmcnl in SPVs which in tum hold lhe properties. Hence, lhe breakup or property wise fair values has been disclosed in lhc Consolidalcd financial sta1cmcn1s. 

Significanl accounting policies (refer nole 2) 

The accompanying notes from I to 33 form an inlcgral pan of these Condensed S1andalonc Financial Statemcnls. 

As per our report or even dale anached 

For DEWITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountanls 
Firm Regis1ra1ion No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: I 10815 
Place: Bcngaluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Direelors of 
Drookprop Management Scrvkcs Private Limited 
(as Manager lo the Brookfield India REITI 

AnkurGuptn 
Direclor 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 Novcmhcr 2022 

Sanjttv Kumar Sltanna 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Alok Aggnrwal 
Chief faeculive Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 



Drookl'irlt.1 India Rcnl Eslnlc l'rusl 
Condensed Sl11mJ:11lonc Finnndnl Slnlcmcnls 
(All amounts nre in Rupttt millions unless 01h,nvise stnlcd) 

D St11lcnll'11l cfTotal Rc1ur11 nt Fair Valut-

S.No rarliculnrs 

A T obl comprdn::nsivc Income 
B Add: Chani;cs in fair \lalue not recognized in du: other comprchcnsi\•c income 
C (A+D) Totnl Rclurn 

For lhc hnlr ycu ended 
JO September 2022 

1,626. 19 
2,494.40 
4,120.59 

fo"or the hnlf ycnr cndtd For tht hnlf )'c11r ended For lhc y~r ended 
JI l\·1l:lrch 2012 JU Sc1,Cembcr 2021 l I Mnrch 2012 

2,146.45 2,)71.)0 4,524 .7S 
3,450.7) 1.567.94 S.018.67 
5.S97.II 3,946,24 9,!-43.42 

The REIT acquired investments in SPVs on 8 Fcb~ry 2021 ;and 24 J:mua.ry 2022 as folly described in Nole I The changes in fair value for 1hc half year ended 30 September 2022, JI March 2022 
and 30 September 2021 :md year ended 31 M:irch 2022 h:i.s bcc:n compulcd based on 1he chomscs in f:iir value or the underlying nscts aud li.ibilities or SPVs (includ ing in\-cstment properties .ind 
in\lestmcnl propcny under dcvclopmcnl) .is al 30 Sc:p1cmbcr 2022, 3 I March 2022, JO September 2021 and JI March 2022 :is compared wi1h the , ·alucs :is al JI March 2022, }O September 2021, 31 
M:irch 2021 nnd 31 M.irch 2021 rcspc:cti vcly , aRer adjusting changes in book value or assels .ind liabil i1ic, belwccn lhcsc d.itcs. The fa ir values or lhc investmcnl propenies and in,·cs1mcn1 propcny 
under dcvclopmcnl :is :u 30 ScptcmUCr 2022, 31 March 2022 and 30 Sep1cmbcr 2021 arc solely b.iscd on lhc valuiltion rcpon or the independent registered v:,lucr appointed under the REIT 

Rcsulatio11s. 

Signir1cant accounting policies (refer nolc 2) 

The accomp:anyini; noles from I lo JJ form :in integral pYI or1hcse Condensed S1:md.ilonc Financia.l Suucments. 

As per our rcpon or even dale :,Uached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chanercd Aecounlants 
Firm Regismnion No.: OIS12SN 

Anand Subrmnanian 
Panncr 
Membership No: 110815 
PI.ice: Bcng..iluru 
Da1c· 07 November 2022 

For and on bch.:ilr or the Bonrd orDirL-ctors of 
BrGQl.prop l\hm•l!:cmcnl Services Prl\•nte Limited 
(as M:magcr to lhc Brool.ficld India REIT) 

1~---
H:':ur Gur,tn 

Director 
DIN No 08687570 
rlncc: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

Alok Assnn,al 
Chier Executive omccr 
PI.ice: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 No\·cmbc:r 2022 

Sanjec,· Ku111nr Sharmn 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 No\.'embcr 2022 
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts arc in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

1 Trust Information 

Broo~lJrop Management Services Private Limited (the 'Senior') has set up the Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (Brookfield India REITffrust) on 17 July 2020 as an irrevocable trust, pursuant to 
the Trust Deed, under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with SEBI as a Real Estate Investment Trust on 14 September 2020 under Regulation 6 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate luvestmenl Trusts) Regulations, 2014 . TI,e Trustee lo Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the 'Trustee') and the 
Manager for Brookfield India Real Estate Tmst is Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the 'Manager'). 

TI1e objectives of Brookfield India REIT is to undcnakc activities in accordance with the provisious of the SEBI REIT Regulations and the Trust Deed . TI,c principal activity of Brookfield India 
REIT is to own and invest in rent or income generating real estate and related assets in India with the objective of producing stable and sustainable distributions to Unitholders. 

Activities during the period ended 31 March 2021: 

Brookfield India REIT acquired the following Special Purpose Vehicles ('SPVs') by acquiring all the equity interest held by the Sponsor and cenain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 27) on 08 
February 2021. In exchange for these equity interests, the above shareholders have been allotted 164,619,80 I Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at Rs. 275/- each. 

Brookfield India REIT went public as per its plan for Initial Public Offer of Units after obtaining the required approvals from the relevant authorities. TI,e Units were allotted to the successful 
applicants on 08 February 2021 and 11 February 2021. 

All these Units were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (llSE) on 16 February 2021. 

The brief activities and shareholding pattern of the SPVs arc provided below: 

Name ofSPV 

Shantinikctan Properties 
Private Limited ('SPl'L 
Naida') 

Candor Kolkata One Hi­
Tech Structures Private 
Limited ('Candor 
Kolkata') 

Candor India Office 
Parks Private Limited 
('CIOP') 

Festus Properties 
Private Limited 
('Fcstus') 

Activities 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS sector in Sector 62, Naida, Uttar 
Pradesh. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate propeny in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
New Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata and Sector 

Providing management related service 
including facilities management service and 
property management services. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate propcny in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
Powai, Mumbai. 

Activities during the previous year ended 31 March 2022: 

Shareholding up to 07 February 2021 (in percenlagc) 

llSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: IO0% 
llSREP Moon Cl L.P.: 0.00% (10 Shares) 

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. : 99.97% 
BSREP India Office Holdings Ptc. Ltd.: 0.03% 

BSREP Moon Cl L.P.: 99.99"/4 
BSREP Moon C2 L.P.: 0.01% 

Kairos Propcny Managers Pvt. Ltd.: 10. 76% 
BSREP II India Office Holdings II Pie. Ltd.:89.24% 

Shareholding from 08 February 2021 (in percentage) 

llrookficld India REIT : IO0% 

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00% ( I 
share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : I 00% 

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00% ( I 
share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : IO0% 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private 
Limited : 0.00% (I share) (as nominee ofllrookficld 
India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : !00% 

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00% ( I 
share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT acquired the following Special Purpose Vehicle ('SPV') by acquiring all the equity interest held by cenain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 27) on 24 January 2022 . In 
exchange for these equity interests, the above shareholders have been paid cash of Rs. 8,334 .57 million and allotted 15,463,616 Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at Rs. 294 .25 each. TI1csc 
Units were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (llSE) on 0 I February 2022. 

NamcofSPV 

Seavicw Developers 
Private Limited ('SDPL 
Naida') 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India. primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
Sector 135, Naida, Uttar Pradcsh. 

Shareholding up to 23 January 2022 (in percentage) 

BSREP India Office Holding IV Pie. Ltd.: 99.96% 
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd. : 0.04% 

Shareholding from 24 January 2022 (in percentage) 

llrookficld India REIT . I 00% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00% ( I 
share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements 

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation of Condensed Standalone financial statements 

The Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements (Condensed Standalone Financial Statements) 
of Brookfield India REIT comprises: 

• the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet, 
• the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income), 
• the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows, 
• the Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity, 
• a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Additionally, it includes the Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, the Statement of Total Returns at 
Fair Value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of Brookfield India REIT and other additional 
financial disclosures as required under the SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. 
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with 
resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Brookfield India REIT on 
07 November 2022. The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from 
time to time read with the SEBI circular number CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 
("REIT Regulations"); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", as 
defined in Rule 2(l)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ('Ind AS') to the 
extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations (refer note I 0(a)(i) on presentation of"Unit Capital" 
as "Equity" instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation), 
read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Accordingly, these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements do not include all the information 
required for a complete set of financial statements. These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
should be read in conjunction with the standalone financial statements and related notes included in the 
Trust's standalone financial statements under IND AS for the year ended 31 March 2022. Accounting 
policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy 
hitherto in use. 

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Millions, except 
when otherwise indicated. 

2.2 Significant accounting policies 

a) Functional and presentation currency 

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is 
Brookfield India RElT's functional currency and the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which Brookfield India REIT operates. All financial information presented in Indian 
rupees has been rounded off to nearest million except unit and per unit data. 

b) Basis of measurement 

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except 
for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as 
explained in the accounting policies below. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements 

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis . 

c) Use of judgments and estimates 

The preparation of Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS), to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT 
regulations, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements is included in the following notes: 

(i) Presentation of"Unit Capital" as "Equity" in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead 
of compound instrument (Note I 0) 

(ii) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from Covid-19 (Note 25) 
(iii) Impairment of investments and loans in subsidiaries 
(iv) Fair valuation and disclosures 

SEBI Circulars issued under the REIT Regulations require disclosures relating to net assets 
at fair value and total returns at fair value. 

d) Current versus non-current classification 

Brookfield India REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet 
based on current/ non-current classification: 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the normal operating 
cycle. 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other assets as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle of Brookfield India REIT; 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- the Brookfield India REIT does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 
classification. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements 

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/ liabilities 
respectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

e) Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that 
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair 
value of an asset or a liability, Brookfield India REIT takes into account the characteristics of the 
asset or liability and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when 
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

Inputs to fair value measurement techniques are disaggregated into three hierarchical levels, which 
are directly based on the degree to which inputs to fair value measurement techniques are 
observable by market participants: 

• Level I: Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
at the measurement date. 

• Level 2: Inputs ( other than quoted prices included in Level I) are either directly or indirectly 
observable for the asset or liability through correlation with market data at the measurement 
date and for the duration of the asset's or liability's anticipated life. 

• Level 3: Inputs are unobservable and reflect management's best estimate of what market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration 
is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs in 
determining the estimate. 

Fair value measurement framework is adopted by Brookfield lndia REIT to determine the fair value 
of various assets and liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value. 

t) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Brookfield India REIT assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that a non­
financial asset other than deferred tax assets may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when 
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, Brookfield India REIT estimates the asset's 
recoverable amount. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. 

An impairment loss is recognized in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. 
impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of 
any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of 
the CGU on a pro rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash 
flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups. 

Impairment losses are recognized in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, unless 
it reverses previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity. 

Goodwill (if any) arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or group of CGUs that 
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 
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An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal 
and its value in use. In estimating value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, 
recent market transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that 
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
CGU. 

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect 
of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets, such a reversal is made only to 
the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation, ifno impairment loss had been recognized. 

g) Investment in SPV's 

The Trust has elected to recognize its investments in SPVs at cost in accordance with the option 
available in Ind AS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements.' 

The details of such investment are given in note 3. 

Assets representing investments in SPVs are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable, such circumstances include, 
though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material 
adverse changes in the economic environment. 

h) Foreign currency transactions 

Items included in the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT are measured using the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Brookfield India REIT operates ('the 
functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the 
Brookfield India REIT functional and presentation currency. 

Foreign currency transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into 
the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange 
gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting period end exchange 
rates are generally recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

i) Errors, estimates and change in accounting policy 

The Brookfield India REIT revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change 
in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable information to the users of the 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements. Changes in accounting policies are applied 
retrospectively, wherever applicable. 

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised 
assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) of change. Discovery 
of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, 
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liabilities and equity of the earliest prior period in which the error is discovered. The opening 
balances of the earliest period presented are also restated. 

j) Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

(i) Financial Assets - Recognition 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (except for trade receivables which are 
initially measured at transaction price) plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories : 

• Debt instruments at amortized cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows, and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortization is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling the financial assets, and 
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each 
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive 
income (OCI). However, interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange 
gain or loss is recognized in statement of profit and loss . On derecognition of the asset, cumulative 
gains or losses previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit 
and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using 
the EIR method. 
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• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 
In addition, the Brookfield India REIT may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise 
meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if 
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 
'accounting mismatch'). The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any debt instrument as at 
FYTPL. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in Statement of profit or loss. 

• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

All equity investments in scope oflnd AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which 
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Brookfield 
India REIT may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent 
changes in the fair value. The Brookfield India REIT makes such election on an instrument-by­
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Brookfield India REIT decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYOCI, then all fair 
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no 
recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. 
However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

(ii) Financial Assets - Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognized (i.e., removed from the Brookfield India REIT balance sheet) 
when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
• The Brookfield India REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Brookfield India REIT has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Brookfield India RE[T has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset. 

(iii) lmpairment of financial assets 

Brookfield India REIT recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade 
receivables with no significant financing component and lease receivables is measured at an amount 
equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable 
and lease receivables, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there 
has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are 
measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 



Brookfield lndia Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements 

allowance at the reporting date, is recognized as an impainnent gain or loss in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

Trade Receivables are generally written off against the allowance only after all means of collection 
have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. 

(iv) Financial liabilities - Recognition and Subsequent measurement 

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, these are measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate ('EIR') method or at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables, Loans and borrowings 
including bank overdrafts. 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of profit or loss include financial liabilities held 
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
Statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred 
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial 
instruments entered into by the Brookfield India REIT that are not designated as hedging 
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are 
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through Statement of profit or 
loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS I 09 
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in 
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains or losses are not subsequently transferred to 
statement of profit and loss. However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the cumulative gains 
or losses within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in Statement 
of profit and loss. The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any financial liability as at fair 
value through profit or loss. 

• Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Financial liabilities that are not held for trading, or designated as at FVTPL, are measured 
subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability 
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received 
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, 
to the amortized cost of a financial liability. 
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(v) Financial liabilities - Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial 
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, 
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the Statement of 
profit and loss as other gains/(losses). 

(vi) Income/loss recognition 

• Interest income 

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While 
calculating the effective interest rate, the Brookfield India REIT estimates the expected cash flows 
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, 
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

k) Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a 
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Brookfield India REIT assesses 
whether: 
• the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or 

implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a 
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not 
identified; 

• the Brookfield India REIT has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from 
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and 

• the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Brookfield India REIT 
has this right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and 
for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what 
purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the 
use of the asset if either: 

o the Brookfield India REIT has the right to operate the asset; or 
o the Brookfield India REIT designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for 

what purpose it will be used. 

As a lessee 

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease 
incentives received. 
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as 
those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced 
by impaim1ent losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured. at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate 
cannot be readily determined, the Brookfield India REIT incremental borrowing rate. Generally, 
the Brookfield India REIT uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

• fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate as at the commencement date; 
• amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
• the exercise price under a purchase option that the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain 

to exercise, lease payments in an .optional renewal period if the Brookfield India REIT is 
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease 
unless the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain not to terminate early. 

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there 
is a change in the Brookfield India REIT's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a 
residual value guarantee, or if the Brookfield India REIT changes its assessment of whether it will 
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of 
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The Brookfield India REIT presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment 
property in 'property, plant and equipment' and lease liabilities (current and non-current) in the 
statement of financial position. 

The Brookfield India REIT has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for 
short-term leases of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value 
assets. The Brookfield India REIT recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term . 

As a Lessor 

The Brookfield India REIT enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment 
properties. 

Leases for which the Brookfield India REIT is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. 
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
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When the Brookfield lndia RElT is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the 
sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by 
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. 

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. lnitial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added 
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the 
Brookfield India RE[T's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to 
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Brookfield lndia RE[T's 
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Brookfield lndia REIT applies 
lnd AS 115 to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component. 

I) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. This inter alia 
involves discounting of the consideration due to the present value if payment extends beyond 
normal credit terms. 

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probable and the amount of revenue 
can be measured reliably. 

Recognition of dividend income, interest income 

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Brookfield lndia REIT's 
right to receive payment is established. 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The 'effective interest rate' is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. ln calculating interest income, the 
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not 
credit impaired). However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to 
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the 
amortised cost of the financial asset. lf the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation 
of interest income reverts to the gross basis. 

m) Taxation 

lncome tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. lt is recognized in Statement of profit and 
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive 
income, in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

(i) Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount 
of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after 
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. [t is measured using tax rates (and tax 
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
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Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 

(ii) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for 
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax 
credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss 
at the time of the transaction; 
Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements 
to the extent that the Brookfield India REIT is able to control the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and 
Taxable temporary differences arising on initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong 
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent 
losses, Brookfield India REIT recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient 
taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets­
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the 
extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 
Further, no deferred tax asset/liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences that 
reverse within tax holiday period. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner 
in which the Brookfield India REIT expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and 
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

n) Provisions and contingencies 

A provision is recognized when the Brookfield India REIT has a present obligation as a result of 
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
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control of the Brookfield India REIT or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not 
probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability 
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it 
cannot be measured reliably. The Brookfield India REIT does not recognize a contingent liability 
but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations 
under the contract. 

o) Operating segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision maker. 

Identification of segments: 
In accordance with Ind AS I 08- Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present 
segment information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker ('CODM') to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. An 
operating segment is a component of the Brookfield India REIT that engages in business activities 
from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Brookfield India REIT's other components. 

Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT's structure and powers conferred to the Manager to 
Brookfield India REIT, the Governing Board of the Manager (Brookprop Management Services 
Private Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'), since they 
are empowered for all major decisions w.r.t. the management, administration, investment, 
disinvestment, etc. 

As the Brookfield India REIT is primarily engaged in the business of developing and maintaining 
commercial real estate properties in India, CODM reviews the entire business as a single operating 
segment and accordingly disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" in respect 
of reportable segments are not applicable. 

p) Subsequent events 

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are prepared after reflecting adjusting and non­
adjusting events that occur after the reporting period but before the Condensed Standalone Financial 
Statements are authorized for issue. 

q) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market 
deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

r) Earnings per unit 

Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to 
unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT by the weighted average number of units outstanding 
during the period. 





Brookfi eld lndi:ri Re:1.I Esl11te T nasl 
Condensed Stimd,llone Fin.1.ncia l Stalcmcnls 

(All amoun ls are in Ru11ccs millions unless olherwisc rtalcd) 

Notes lo l he Condensed SC:r1 nd11lonc Fin:.1ncial S tatements 

3 Non cur renl financia l assct! - lnnstmenu 
Trade, unquoled , lnn~stmenl! in Subsidi,u i es (.11 cost) (refer note below) 
97.526 (3 1 March 2022 : 97.526) Equi ty sha res of Candor Kolka1a One Hi-Tech Structures Prfrale Limited of Rs. 10 each. fully paid up 

i -13.865.0% (31 March 2021 : U3.865 .096) Equity shares of Shantini kctan Properties Pri\·atc Limi1cd of Rs. lO each. fu lly paid up 

-ICH.6-11.12 1 (3 1 March 2022 : -1 6-1 .6-1 1. 12 1) Equity shares of Fcstus Properties Pri\'ate Limited or Rs. lO each , fully paid up 

9. 999 (3 I March 2022: 9.999) Equity sha res of Candor India Office Parks Pri\'ale Limilcd of Rs. lO each, fu lly pa id up 

17.38 1 (3 1 March 2022 : 17.38 1) Equi1y shares of Sc.a\'iew De\'clopers Pri\':lle Limited oflls. 10 each. fully paid up 

lnnstmcnts in 15% Com11ulM1ri ly Com·er1i ble Det>t nlurcs (Dcbcnlu res)• 

As.tt As:i.t 
JO St::111cmbcr 2022 J I Ma rch 2022 

2-1.761.39 2-1 .761.39 

11 .-107.83 l l, -1 07Jl3 

8.655.-1 6 8,655 .-16 

220.20 220,20 

12.-182.97 12,-182 ,97 
57.527.85 57_'i27.85 

5.-113 ,30 5.-138.00 

62,9-1 1.15 62,965.85 

Duri ng lhc year ended 3 1 March 2022, TI1c Trust h .. u p..1.id cash o r Rs. 13, 153 .83 mi ll ion and issued 15.-163.6 16 Uni ts as considcra1ion to acquire SDPL. Noida wherein 1he tradablc REIT Units have been ,.i.lucd a l Rs. 
2'J -1 .25 each, aggregati ng to Rs. 17.70-1 .00 mi llion. 

•I ssued by Scaview De\'clopcrs Pri\'3le Li mi ted 

Note: 
Delails of•;. shan:hold inl.! in lhc lli Ublli idiarics. held hY Trust is :lS under: 

Name of Subsidia ry 

- Ca ndor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Strncturcs Private Limilcd 
- Fcstus Propcnies Pri,.i. te Limilcd 
- Sh.1111inikctan Proocrtics Pri\·ate Li mited 
- Candor India Office Parks Pri\'ate Limilcd 
- Sc..1\'icw DC\·cloncrs Pri,.i. te Limited 

-I Non curre nt fin ;mcial assets - Loan! 
(Unsecured and co nsidered ~ood) 
Loan to Subsidiaries - refer nole 27 

Tennlli fo r Lo:r1n 10 Subsidiarie! 
Sccuritr: Unsecured 
Interest: 12.50% per annum (compounded quan erly). 
Rc11a~·mcnt: 
(a) Bu llet repayment on lhe dale falling a l the e nd of 15 (fifteen) years from !he fi rst d isbursement dale. 

(b) Early repayment option (wholly or pan ia lly) is a,·a ilablc to the borrower (SPVs). 

Alli at A!!at 

JO St::ptemhcr 2022 J I March 2022 

100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100% 100% 
100¾ 100% 

..... , A!!al 
JO Seplcmbcr- 2022 3 1 Marc h 2022 

2-1 . 1-l-l .50 25,89 1.50 

2-1, 1-1-1.50 25,.89 1.50 

(c) The interest on these loan to subsidia ries is receivable on the last date of c\'cry fi nancia l quarter. Not\\·ithstanding an,1hing to the contrary, the inlercsl with respect to the loans under the faci lity. shall accrue and become 
due and rcccimble only on arnilabili t}' of free cash no\\' on the interest payment date . In the c,·cnl on any lntcrcsl payment date, the free cash nows a rc lower than the calcu lated imercst (including any shortfall of p..1.s t 
interest periods). the shortfa ll between the free cash nows and the calcu lated interest sha ll be accumulated and become due and rcceh.ible fro m a nd to the cx1enl of free cash flows a,·ailable on lhc subscquem interesl 
payment dates. 

5 Non cur rcnl fiminci al 11sscts - Olhcrs 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
Sccuri1y deposit 

6 Non-cur re nt t:n asset! (net) 
Advance income iax 

7 C urrent fin anc ia l auds - Ca5h a nd cash cquinlcnts 

B:i.lance"ith banks : 
- in current accoull\ 
- in deposi t account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 

As al 
JO Sc11tcmber 2022 

As,u 
JO Sc11temt>tr 2022 

0.59 

0.59 

Al111t 
30 Se11tcmbcr- 21122 

2. -10 

1.716.00 

1.718 .-10 

Mai 
JI March 2022 

30.00 

30.00 

Asal 
31 Much 21122 

17.5 1 

17.51 

Aul 
J I Ma rch 2022 

35 . 13 

1,720.00 

1,755.13 



Brookfield lndilil Re.ii [sll!IIC Trusl 
Condensed Standi,.lone Financial S1i,.1cment5 

(All amounts arc in Rupee'.'! millions unlc.u olhcrn·ise stl!llcd) 

Notes to the Condensed Stl!lndalonc Fin:ancial Sl:ucmc.nt5 

8 Curren! finlilncial :uscl!i - Other 
(Unsecured and considered good) 

To 11arties other than rcli,.tcd 11ar1ies 
Interest accrued bul not due on fixed deposits wilh banks 
To related 11utics (refer note 27) 
Interest accrued but not due on Lo.111 10 Subsidiaries 

9 Olhcr current auets 
(Unsecured and considered ~ood) 
Prep.,id expenses• 
Advances to \"enders 

• For related p.1nies balance, rcrer note 21 

IO Unil Capihll 

Particul;irs 

As;it0I April 2021 

Less: Distribu1ion to Unitholders for the qu .. 1r1er ended JO June 2021 

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quaner ended 30 September 2021 

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 3 I December 2021 

Add : RC\·ersal or issue expenses no longer payable (refer note i,· below) 

Add: Units issued on 11rderenli.1l 1J;11sis during the yc;ir 
- pursu.,nt to the preferential allotmenl, issued. subscribed and fully paid-up in cash (refer note ii below) 

- in exchange for equily interest in SPVs (refer note iii below) 

Less: Expense incurred towards prcfcrcmial allotment (rder no1e h· below) 

Clo~ing bal;ince 11s at JI l\hrch 2022 

A'.'I ;it 01 April 2022 

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quaner ended JI March 2022 

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the qu.,ncr ended JO June 2022 

Closing halance u at JO Sc11tember 2022 

(a) Tenn~ ri~hu att.1chcd to Units ;ind accounlin~ I hereof 

Asat Aslill 
JU Sc11tcmbcr 2022 Jt l\brch 2022 

0 . 17 0.)4 

628.29 645.]8 

As lit A'.'lal 
JO Scuttmher 2022 JI l\hrch 2022 

137,74 

0,75 

138.49 

No. or Units 

302,8tll,601 

16,821.856 

15.463.616 

335,087,073 

JJ5,0H7,073 

JJ5.Ul~7.07J 

0.12 

0.12 

Amount 

Bl,774.78 

(297.05) 

(605.60) 

(48U5) 

25.55 

4.')49.8] 

4.550.17 

48 .92) 

89,867.JI 

89,.867.31 

(720.H) 

857.82) 

88,289.05 

(i) The Trust has only one class or Uniis. Each Unit reprcscnlS au undi\'idcd bcucficial interest in the Trusl. Each holder of Unit is entitled to one rnle per unit. 1l1e Unit holders ha\'e !he right lo rccci,·c al least tJ0% of the 
Nel Distributable Cash Flows of the Trusl at lc.1st once in C\'ery six months in each financial :year in accord.,ncc ,1ith 1he REIT Regulations. The Board of Directors of the J11\'est111cnt Manager ;ippro1·es distributions. The 
distribution will be in proporlion 10 the number of Units held by the Uni1holdcrs. The Trust declares and pays distributioris in Indian Rupees. 

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Brookfield India REIT is required 10 distribUle to Unilholdcrs not less lhan 90% of the Net Distribut..1ble Cash Flows of Brookfield India REIT for each financial year 
Accordingly. a portion of the Unit Capit;il co1u.ains a contractual obligmion of the Brookfield India REIT lo p.1J to its Unitholders cash distributions . Hence, the Unit Capilal is a compound financial instrument which 
contain both cquitJ and liability components in accord.,ncc with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Prcscntalion. Howc\"cr. in accord.,nce with SEBI Circulars (No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and No. 
CIR/IMD/DF/141/2016 d.Jted 26 December 2016) issued under the REIT Regulations, the Unit Capit..11 has been presented as MEqui1y~ in order to comp!J with the requirements of Section II of Anncxure A to the SEBI 
Circular dated 26 December 2016 dealing with the minimum prcscnta1ion and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent \\ith Unit Capital being classified as equity. the distributions to Unilholders is 
also presented in Slatement of Changes in Uni I holders' Equity when the distributions arc appro,·ed by the Board orDircclors of lm·cslmcnt Manager. 

(ii) Initial Public Offering or 138,181.800 Unils for cash al price of Rs. 275 per Unit aggregating lo Rs. 38.000.00 million. Refer nole 28 for utilization of JPO proceeds. Further prefcremial allolment of 16.821.856 Units 
for cash at price of Rs. 294.25 per unit aggregating to Rs. 4,9-IIJ.83 was made during the ycm ended 3 I March 2022. 1l1e preferential allotment was mainly used to fund the SDPL Noid.J acquisition. 

(iii) Brookfield India REIT acquired the SPVs by acquirini; all the equitJ interest held by our Sponsor and certain members of our Sponsor Group. The acquisilion or equity interest in lhc SPVs has been done by issue or 
127,892, 403 Unils of Rs. 275 each and 15,-163,616 Units of Rs. 1')4.15 each during the period ended 31 March 2021 and year ended 3 I March 2022 rcspccti,·elJ. as per the table below. 

Number or Unit! allollcd for acquiring ;ill the cqui1y inlcrcsl held in the SPVs 

NamcorSPV 

S1>0n.ror Sponsor Group (CJ.eluding S1>0nsor) Tola l 

Durin2 the .criod ended JI l\hrch 2021: 

Candor Kolkala 16.364 54,134.252 

Fcstus 

SPPL Naida 41 .483.012 41.483.012 

CIOP 800.727 800,727 

Dunn, the nrc,·ious nu ended JI Much 2022: 
SDPL Naida (refer nole I: Trust lnfom1..11ion) 15.463.616 

Total number or Units i~sucd 54,117.888 89,238.131 UJ.356,019 

(h') fapcnses incurred pertaining lo the Initial Public Offering (IPO). preferential allotment and listing or the Units on the National S1ock Exchange and Bombay Stock Excli..tnge ha\'e been reduced from the Unitholders 
capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Fi,rnncial Instruments: Prcscma1io11. 

(bi Unilholden holdinr, more than 5 ,erccnt Units in the Trust 
Name or Unilholden AJ at JO Ser tcmbcr 2022 l As at JI Much 2022 

No. of Unils % or holdinl?.S I No. of Unils 0
/. or holdin1?.s 

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pie. Lid. 54,117,8S8 16. 15°/4, 54.117.888 16.15% 

BSREP India Office Holdings Ptc Lid. 41,499.453 12.38%1 41.499.373 12.38% 

BSREP lndi;i Office Holdings Ill Pte. Ltd. ]6,727.398 10.%o/.J 36,727.398 10.96% 

DSREP II India Office Holdings II Pie. Ltd. J 1,474.412 ').39%l 28,086.775 8.38% 

(c) The Trust l1..-is not allollcd any fully paid-up uni ls bJ way of bonus uuits nor has il bought back any class of units from the d.1te of registration till the balance sheet date. Funher, the Trust J1..1s not issued any units for 
consideration other than cash from 1hc dale of regislration till the balance sheet date. except as disclosed abo\'e 

{d) Unitholdinr, of s mnsor Prou 1 
A'.'I ;ii JO Se 1tember 2022 

Name or Unitholdcn No. or Units % of holdings 

BSREP India office Holdinl?s V Pte. Ltd . 5-Ul7.888 16.15% 

BSREP India Office Holdinl?s Pie Ltd. 12.]8% 

BSREP India Office Holdinl!s Ill Pie. Ltd. 36.727.398 JO.%% 

BSREP II India Office Holdim?.s II Ptc. Ltd. 31.474.412 9.39"/u 

Kairos Propcrtv Mana.ecrs Pri,·atc Limited 

BSREP Moon Cl L.P. 

BSREP Moon Cl L.P. 

BSREP India Oflke Holdinl!S IV Pie. Ltd. 15,463.616 4.61% 

BSREP India Office Holdinc.s VI Pie. Lid . 800,650 0.24% 

A'.'! lit JI March 2022 

No. or Unils •1o of holding~ 

5-Ul7.8&8 16.15% 

4U91J.J7J 12.38% 

36.727.398 IU.96% 

28.086.775 8.38% 

3.387.637 1.01% 

800.650 0.24% 

80 0.00% 

15.463.616 4.61% 

% Change during 
the h;ilf year ended 
JO Sc 1tcmher 2022 

0.00% 

0.00% 
O.l.lO% 

I.OJ% 

-1.01% 
-0.24% 

-0.00% 
0.1)0¾ 

0.24% 



Brookfield lndi.1 Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Slalements 

(All :imounts ;u-c in Rupees millions un lc..!ls- othcrn·isc sl:ilcd) 

Notc!l 10 the Condensed St.ind:ilonc Fin:i.nci.i l Stiltcmcnts-

Rescn·cs :i nd Suri1 lui 
Rclaincd c:.1rnin~ 

•Refer Condensed Standalone Stmement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity fo r detai led 1110,·ement in 01her equity ba lances 

Rctil ined aminJ:s 

As.it A.~ lit 
JO September 2022 JI /\l,1rch 2022 

1.17-4 .02 1.387.-46 

l,17.ttll l.387.-46 

TI1e cumul:lli\"e ga in or loss arising from the operations which is retained and is rccogni1.cd and accumulated under the hc:.1din_s of retained earnings . At 1he end of the period, 1he profit/(loss ) after tax is transferred from the 
StJlemeut of Profi1 and Loss to the retained c.1.rnings :,ccount. 

As at Asal 
JO Sc11tcmhc r 2022 JI Mar-eh 2022 

12 Currcnl ri n:incial liahilil ies - Trade 11a~·ahks 

Total outstandinJ: dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0 . 11 
Total outstanding dues of creditors olhcr than micro cuterpriscs and small emerprises• 33.-43 3 1.72 

JJ.S-4 Jl.72 
•For balance payable to relmcd parties. refer note 27 

Asal All.ii 
JO Scplcmhc r 2022 J I March 2022 

13 Current - O1l1er financial li alli lilies 

Other payables 72.-49 6.31 

72.-'9 6.32 

As at All at 
JO Sc11tcmber 2022 J I March 2022 

1-4 Other current liilhilities 

StalutorJ dues payable 0.36 13.02 

0.16 IJ.02 

A., :It As at 
JO Seplcmbcr 2022 J t l\brch 2022 

15 Currtnl lu liab ilitie!ii (Nel) 

Provision for income t.a.x 2. 13 

2.IJ 



Brookfield lndia Real [sUtc Tnut 
Condensed Standalo11e Fin.incial Statements 

(All amount! att in Rupcct million, unlcu otherwise slated) 

Nolu lo lhc CCNldcnscd Standalone Financial Stalcmcnls 

Partlculan 

16 lnlcrcst Income 

lnlcrcst lncomc• 
• l!n 15•;., Compulsorily Corm:rtibk D.:L-,,,:nturt.'S (n.:fcr notc 17 for 
othcrchangt.'S in fair value) 
• on Lo.ins lo subs idiaries 
lntcrc.-.l inlAlmc on fixed deposits wilh banks 
lntt.'T"CSI on incomc lax refund 

• Rcfcrnote 27 

17 Olhcr Income 

Gain on inwstnk:nl in 15% Compulsory Con\'cr1ih\e Dcbcnlurcs at 
fair \.J]uc through pn1fiL or los.-. (refer notc 16 for inlert.'SL incomc on 
thcsc CCDs) 

18 Otherexpcn!ICs 

Marketinl,? anJ aJ\'<.-rliSt.il\t.ilL cxpo..'11scs 
Dlnation 
Ra!csandtaxcs 
Los.-. on in,·cstmenl in 15¾ Compulsory Conn:r1iblc D.:l:-..:nllircs at 
fair \"a]uc lhrough prnl'il or loss (refer nolc 16 for in1t.-r~sl incomc on 
thc..;;c CCDs) 
Msccllano..-ous cxpcnscs 

19 Tu:cxpcme 

Current tax 
Dcfcm:Jtax 

1-"or lhc quutcr ended For the quarter ended For the qwrtcr cm.led For the lulf , ·car cmkd For the lulf ycar ended For the lulr,·ur ended For lhe ,·car ended 
JO Scplcmbcr 2022 JO June 2022 JO September 2021 JO Scplcn11>cr 2022 JI !\larch 2022 JO September 2021 31 March 2022 

19.29 

ROS . IS 
7.8S 

HJ!U2 

5.61 

0.77 
24.70 

0. 15 

Jl.2J 

3.37 

J.J7 

19.29 

825 .65 
8.S8 
1.18 

8S5.00 

7.76 

0.48 

H.2.t 

.I.JO 

1.145.21 
9.62 

U5.1,NJ 

.J .8:5 

0.01 

-UIO 

4.12 

4.12 

18.58 

1,633 .80 
16.76 

1.18 

13.37 

0.77 

24 .70 

063 

39.-47 

7.67 

7.67 

14.9-1 

2,029.)2 
17.55 

126.78 

126.78 

8.50 

11.3.t 

7.50 

7.50 

2,286.72 
11.15 

2 291.87 

8.0-1 
20.00 

2.)7 

JOAI 

4.77 

.t.77 

14 .9-1 

4,316.04 
28 .70 

.t.}59.68 

126.78 

126.78 

16.5-1 

20.00 

5.21 

.tl.75 

12.27 

12.27 

11rookfic]d India REIT is a business trust rcg.istcro.J w1dcr SEDI REIT RcgulaLions. 1014 . l-lo..11cc, the inLerest an<l dividt.ild rccci \'cd or rccci\.Jbk hy IJrookficld India REIT from the SPVs isexcmpL from tax undcr sc.:ction 10{23FC) oflhc Income Tax Acl, 
1% I (Act). Furthcr. any cxpcnditurc incurrcJ in rclalion to C.Jming the cxcmpl income is nol t.1.\: dcductiblc in ,icw oflhc [lfO\isions or section 14A ofthc Act. 
Thc income or BmokliclJ India REIT, 01hcr than cxcmpl income mentioned at>o\'c, is chargeable Lo tax at the maximum marginal rates in force (fur Lhc ljLLlrler and halfp:ar cndcJ )0 Scplcmhcr 2021 : 42.74-1 ¾ ; for Lhc quarlcr and year cndo..-J JI M:1rch 
2022: 42 744 ¾ ). t:Xt:l.1)1 for lhc income chargcablc to tax on lr.:ins1Crof shon lt."flll capital assets umk:r St.'Clion I I IA of the /\cl and long. lcm1 c.1pi!al as.sc!s undcr section 112 ofthc Acl 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts a rc in Rupees millions unless ot hen visc stated) 
Notes to the Co ndensed Standalone Financia l Statements 

20 Contingent liabilities 

There arc no contingent liabi lities as at 30 September 2022 and 3 1 March 2022. 

21 Capital commitments 

There arc no capital commitments as at 30 September 2022 and 3 I March 2022. 

22 Financial io,trumenl!-Fair values and risk management 
i) Financial instruments by cat~ory and fair value 

The below table summarizes the judgements and estimates made in dctcnnining the fair values of the financial instruments that arc (a) recognized and measured at fair value and (b) measured 
at amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. The Brookfield India REIT has classified its financial instruments, which arc measured at fair value, into 
three levels in accordance with Ind AS. 

Carrying value Fair value 

Asat As at As at Asat 
30 Scntcmbcr 2022 31 March 2022 30 Scntcmbcr 2022 31 March 2022 

At Amortized Cost 
Financia l assets 
Cash and cash cauivalents # 1,718.40 1,755 . 13 1,718.40 1,755.13 
Loans• 24,144.50 25,891.50 25,493.40 28,680.00 
Other financial assets # 628.46 675 .72 628.46 675.72 

AtFVTPL 
Financia l Assets 
15% Comnulsorilv Convertible Debentures" 5,4 13 .30 5,438.00 5,413.30 5,438.00 

Total financial assets 31 ,904.66 33,760.35 33 253,56 36,548.85 

At Amortized Cost 
Financial liabilities 
Trade oavablcs # 33.54 31.72 33.54 31.72 
Other financial liabilities # 72.49 6.32 72.49 6.32 

Tota l financial lia bilities 106.03 38.04 106.03 38.04 

# fai r va lue of financial assets and financial liabilities which arc recognized at amortized cost has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as the carrying value approximately equals to 
their fair value. 

• f"air value of loans which are recognized at amortized cost. has been calculated at lhe present value of the future cash flows discounlcd at the current borrowing rate. 

' Fair value of 15% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (15% CCDs) is detennincd on the basis of Net assets va lue (NAY) method. These 15% CCDs arc classified as level 3 in the fair 
valllC hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs. The key input to the NAV is fair value of the investment properties. 

ii) Measurement of fair v~lues 
The different levels of fair value have been defined below: 

Level l : Level I hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices for instance listed equity instruments, traded lxrnds and mutual funds that have quoted price. 

Level 2: The fair value of finaneial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is detennincd using valuation techniques which 
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument arc observable, the instrument 
is included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. 

There have been no valuat ion under Level I and Level 2. There has been no transfers into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the quarter/ half year ended 30 September 2022 and 
year ended 3 1 March 2022. 

The Brookfield India REIT's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

iii) Details of sienificant unobsenrablc in1>uts 

Significant unobservable inputs 

Financial assets measured at fair value (15°/4 CCDs) 

Fair value of investment property 

iv) Sensiti\1ity analysis of Level 3 fair values 

I Inter-relationship bch\lCCn significant unobscnrable inputs and fair value 

I The estimated fair value would increase (decrease) if fair value of investment property 
increases (decreases) 

For the fair value of 15% CCDs, reasonably possible changes at the reporting date due to one of the significant unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have follmving 

effects: 

30 September 2022 

Fair value of investment property (1% movement) 

31 March 2022 

Fair value of investment property ( 1% movement) 

(v) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values 

Fair value of 15°/i, CCDs 

Balance as at 24 January 2022 
Net change in fair value-unrealized (refer note 17) 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 
Balance as at 01 April 2022 
Net change in fair value-unrealized (refer note 18) 

Balance as at 30 September 2022 

Profit/ (Loss) 
Increase 

111.52 

Profit/ (Loss) 
Increase 

111.52 

<o 
0 o\ fie 

it 

~ fa. 
"✓ './ 0J8"\. 

Decrease 

(111.52) 

Decrease 

(111.52) 

Amount 
5,311.22 

126.78 
5,438.00 
5,438.00 

(24.70) 

5,413.30 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts arc in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

23 Segment rq10rting 

The Trust docs not have any Operating segments as at JO September 2022 and JI March 2022, hence di sclosure under Ind AS I 08, Operating segments has not been provided in the Condensed Standalone Financial 

Statements. 

24 Earnings Per Unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period/year attributable to Unitholders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period/year. Diluted EPU amounts arc calculated 
by dividing the profit attributable to Unitholders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive 
potential units into unit capital. The Units of the Trust were allotted on 08 February 2021, 11 February 2021 and 24 January 2022. 

For the quarter For the quarter For the quarter For the half year For the half year For the half year For the year 

Particulars ended ended ended ended ended ended ended 
JO September 2022 30 June 2022 JO September 2021 30 September 2022 31 March 2022 JO September 2021 31 March 2022 

Profit after tax for calculating basic and diluted EPU 796.47 829.72 1,140.49 1,626.19 2,146.45 2,378.30 4,524 .75 

Weighted average number of Units (Nos.) 335,087,073 335,087,073 302,801,60 I 335 ,087,073 J 15,333,907 302,801 ,60 I 309,050,586 

Earnings Per Unit 

-Basic (Rupees/unit) 2.38 2.48 3 .77 4 .85 6.81 7.85 14.64 

-Diluted (Rueces/unit}• 2.38 2.48 3.77 4.85 6.8 I 7.85 14 .64 
• The Trust docs not have any outstanding dilutive units 

25 Uncerlainty relating to the globa l health pandemic on COVID-19: 

The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to cause disruption to business activities as well as disrupted travel and adversely impacted local, regional, national and international economic conditions . Brookfield India 
REIT has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts and fair value of investments in subsidiaries . The fair value of investments in subsidiaries is 
primarily determined basis the fair value of the underlying investment properties as at JO September 2022 . As a result, future revenues and cash flows produced by investment properties could be potentially impacted 

due to this prevailing uncertainty. In response, Brookfield India REIT has adjusted cash flow assumptions for its estimate of near-term disruption to cash flows to reflect collections, vacancy and assumptions with 
respect to new leasing activity. In addition, Brookfield India REIT has continued to assess the appropriateness of the discount and terminal capitalization rates giving consideration to changes to property level cash 
flows and any risk premium inherent in such cash flow changes as well as the current cost of capital and credit spreads . Further, in developing assumptions relating to possible futur~ uncertainties in the Indian 
economic conditions because of this pandemic; Brookfield India REIT, as at the date of approval of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, has used internal and external sources of information including 
reports on fair valuation of investment properties from property consultants, economic forecast and other information from market sources on the expected future performance of Brookfield India REIT. Based on this 

analysis. Brookfield India REIT has concluded that there is no impairment to the carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries and the fair value of investments in subsidiaries disclosed in the Condensed Standalone 
Financial Statements represents the best estimate based on internal and external sources of information on the reporting date . 
The impact of COVID-19 on Brookfield India REIT Condensed Standalone Financial Statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements. 

26 Investment ManaJ!emenl rec 

REIT Management Fees 
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 17 July 2020, Investment Manager is entitled lo fees @ 1% of NDCF, exclusive of applicable taxes (also refer note 29). The fees has been determined for 
undertaking management of the REIT and its investments. The said Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2022 amounts lo Rs . 20 .26 million and Rs . 40.58 million respectively. There are 

no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless othen\'ise st:llcd) 
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

27 Related Party Disclosures 

A. Related parties to Brookfield India REIT as at 30 September 2022 

BSREP India Office Holdings V Ple Lld- Sponsor 
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited - Investment Manager 
Axis Trustee Services Limited-Trustee 

The Ultimate par-ent entity and sponsor gr-oups, with whom the group has related party transactions during the period, consist of the below entities: 

Ultimate parent entity 
Brookfield Asset Management Inc. (BAM), ultimate parent entity and controlling party 

Sponsor 
BSREP India Office Holdings V Ple Ltd- Sponsor 

Sponsor group 
a) BSREP II India Office Holdings II Ple. Ltd. (BSREP II India) 
b) Kairos Property Managers Private Limited (Kairos) 
c) BSREP Moon C I L.P 
d) BSREP Moon C2 L.P 
e) BSREP India Office Holdings Ill Pte Ltd. (BSREP India Office Ill) 
f) BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd . (BSREP India Holdings) 
g) BSREP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Office IV) 

h) BSREP India Office Holdings VI Pte. Ltd. (BSREP India Office VI) 

Fellow subsidiaries 
Brookfield Property Group LLC 

Directors & Key personnel of the Investment Manager- (Brookprop Management Sen--ices Private Limited) 

Directors 
Akila Krishnakumar (Independent Director) 
Shailesh Vislmubhai Haribhakti (Independent Director) 
Anuj Ranjan (Non-Executive Director) 
Ankur Gupta (Non-Executive Director) 

Subsidiary (SPVs) (w.e.f. 08 February 2021) 
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 
Festus Properties Private Limited 
Shantinikctan Properties Private Limited 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 
Subsidiary (SPVs) (w.c.r. 24 January 2022) 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 

Key personnel 
Alok AggaIWB! - Managing director and chief executive officer-India office business 
Sanjeev Kumar Sharma• Executive vice president and chief financial officer- India office business 



Brookfidd India Rt'.il [1111.te Tnnt 
Condensed Stu1d,done Financiid Slllletncnlr 
(All an1ounl1 arc In Ruptt1 mi11Mln1 unku olhen,·i1e 1tatcd) 
Noln lo the ConJen,cd St;indakine Financial St;1ten1enh 

27 8. Rc:lakd 11r1,· lr.1n1:.1cdon1: 

Un1ecurn! lo:.1n gk·en lo 
• Can<loc Kolkal::i One lli•Tcch S1n.ic1urcs l'ri\·atc Limited 
• Fe.tus l'r1J1>L-rti1.-s Pri\"alc Limited 
•Sli:mtinikL1:u1 Prop\'T1ie.rri,·a1.:l.imit.:d 
• Sc;:l\iew D.!n:lo[K.TS l'ri,•a1e Limi100 

Uni.ccu~loan..-.:paidh)" 

• C:uk..l C'I" Kolka1::i One lli-Tecl1 Struclutes l'rivat.: Limited 
• FcstlL~ l'n.l(h .. -rties l'riv:1lc Limited 
- Shantinikt.'lan l'roi1crtii:s 1'1ivah,: Limi1ed 
- Se,nic11· [)cwl,1p<-'N Private Limilt.-d 

ln,·nllncn l in Dehenlurn 

- Sca,icw D.!wkljH,,-:1 l'riYalc LimitOO 

Con,·cnion ofln,·nlrncnl in Debc:nlun:::i to lnn1 tmcnl in Equily 1h;1m 

- Cilnd,..- K11lka1a On.: Hi-Tech Structuu..'li Pli\":llc Lin1itcd 

ln,·ntn,enl in Equ ity 1haru or SPV 

- Cilndor Kolbln One I fi-T ccl1 Struclutt.-s Pri\"::ilc Linlllcd 
- Sea,iew Dc\·d opt.i-s Prin1,1c Limited 

T n.111« Fee Exrenie 
- Axis Tru~tcc Scnic ... -s l.im.itt..-d 

ln1crc11 ln ,;,,me an Laan1 lo Suh1kliarie1 
- C::indoc K11lka1a One I li-T cch Structur ... -s l'ri\"alc Limih.:d 
- F1.-slu:1 Proi1 ... -rti1.-s Pri\'nk Limited 
- Shantinih-tan r>roii ... -riii:s rriv:itc l.imitcd 
. Sc.a,iL·w Dc,·dop,:r.; Pri\"a1<! Limited 

lnlerc,t ln ,;,,me on Debentutc1 
• Sc.a,icw Dc,·clopcrs Private Limit ... -d 

ln,·nln,enf mana £.emcnt rCC:t 

. Bnx-.kpwp Managt..-menl Scr,ic~ l)ri1·atc LimitcJ 

Di,·idendln,;,,me 

- Crn1dor India Onie..: P:irks l'ri,·atc Limited 

· luue or Unit C:.1pilal 
- BSREP lnJia Otli<:c l·loldi.np,s IV Pl.:. Lid. 

Rcr;11•nu:nl or Unit Capilal 

-□ SREI' luJi:i Ollicc I foldings V rl,:. Ltd. 

- BSRl::J' lnJi:i Ollicc Holdings 11.: 1.Jd. 
- hair,,,; Proi1t..,-ty Managers 1"-t. Ltd. 
-□SREP M,-..mCI L.P. 
-□SREP ~foon C2 L.P. 
-□SREP II India Ollicc l·folding,i II Ptc. Lld. 
-□SREP lndi:i Ollicc l l,1!dings Ill Ptc. Lid. 
-□SREP JnJia Olfi.:c I loldings IV Pie. Ltd 

lnlerctt DU1rihuled 
. BSREP India Office I IC1ldin~~ V Ptc. Ltd. 
- OSRE\' Jnd.ia Ollicc I k,ldlilg.~ l>tc Ltd. 
- K:iir,,s \'r,,,..,,. ty Man:1p,cr:1 r,,. IJJ. 
- DSREI' Mc,onC I I..P. 
- BSREI'. Moon C2 1..1' . 
- BSREI' ll lndi:iOtricc lkldin&~ II 11.:. Ltd. 
- BSREP lnJi:i OJli.:c Holdings Ill rt.:. Lid. 
- BSREP India Olli.:c Holdings IV Ptc. Ltd. 

01her- Income DUtrihuled 

- BSREI' India Ollicc Holdings V ltic. Lid. 
- BSREI' India Olli ... -.: 1 loldings !>t o: Lid. 
-K:iiros l'r,, 1crl)'Managcrsl¾t.Lld. 
- USREI' MrxmCI 1..1' . 
- DSllEP M,x>n C:! L.P. 
- ElSREP II India Ollice I kldings II l>tc. Ltd. 
- ElSREP lnJia Ollice I l.11Jini_l.s HI l>te. LlJ. 
- ElSREP India Olli.:c I loldings IV Plc. Lid. 

Fo rlhcquarter-
ended 

JO Scpltmher 2022 

Tot:.11 

52-1 .00 
158.00 
92.00 

11 2.00 
Tol:.11 HH6.00 

Tol a l 

Total 

Totlll 

0.74 

Tola l 0.7-1 

J5U5 
191.40 

!12.25 
179.15 

Total 80!t l5 

19 .29 
Tola! 19 .. 29 

20,26 
Total 20 .. 26 

30.00 
Total J0 .. 00 

Tobi 

138 .5-1 
106.2-1 

S.67 
1.05 

000 
7 1.90 
9-1 .02 
J9.59 

Tota l -161.01 

IJ2.59 
101.67 

8.30 
1.% 
0.00 

68.8 1 
89.98 
J7.89 

Tota l -1-1 1 .. 20 

-1.87 

3.73 
0.30 
O.Q7 

0.00 
2.53 
J .J I 
1.39 

Total 16 .. 20 

Forl heq uar1cr Forthcqunter 
ended en ded 

JO June 2022 JO Scrtcmhc:r202 1 

66 .00 
8') .00 

JJ .00 
JJS.00 
JJ5.00 1811.00 

775.00 JS'J.00 
1911.00 87 .00 

60.00 159.00 

16J .OO 
1,196.00 605.00 

0.7-1 0 ,7-1 

0.7-1 0.7-1 

)68.75 757 .66 
198.56 256.94 
83 .17 IJ0.6 1 

175. 17 
825.65 1,1 -15 .. 21 

19.29 
19 .. 29 

20.J2 2-1 .92 
20 .. JZ 2-1.92 

12.00 J0.00 
22.00 J0.00 

I 16.J5 53.09 
89.22 40.71 

7,28 J.31 

1.72 0.7'J 
0.00 0.00 

60.39 11.55 
78 .96 36.0J 
JJ .25 

387.17 161.-19 

15-1.78 2-17.21 
11 8.69 189.57 

9.69 15.47 
!.29 J .66 
0 .()(J 0.00 

80.JJ 1211.JO 
105.0-1 167.77 

-1-1 .23 
515.(15 751.98 

-1 .87 24.-1 1 
3.7J 18.72 

O.JO 1.53 
0.07 0.J(, 

0.00 0.00 
2.53 12.67 

J .3 1 16.56 
I.J') 

16.20 7-1.25 

Farlhe halrye:.1r For the h:.1lryear Fo rlhe ha ir year- Forlheye-u 
ended ended ended ended 

JO Scp len1bcr 2022 JI Mitreh 2022 JO Sq1ten1her 2021 JI l\tuch 2022 

66.00 6600 
JS.SO 89.00 127.50 

33.00 HOO 
JJS .00 S,7JS.OO 5,7JS .OO 
JJS .. 00 5,771.50 IHH .. 00 5,961.50 

1 .. 299.00 11.785.00 608.00 12.J'JJ .OO 
356 .00 1.769.00 87 .00 1,856.00 

152.00 1,175.00 2:07.00 1,582 .00 
275.00 J39.00 339.00 

2,0N2.00 15,26fl.00 902.00 16,170 .. 00 

5,-08.00 S,-IJS .00 
5,.US.00 5,.UH.00 

10,100.0] 10,100.0J 
10,1011.0J 10,IOO .. OJ 

10,100.00 10,100.00 

12.·182.97 12 ,482 .97 
12,-182 .. 97 10,l00.00 22.582 .. 97 

1.48 1.47 !AS 2.95 

us 1.47 1.48 2,95 

723 . IO 1,217 .6-1 1,518. IJ 2,7JS .77 
J'.>0.% 460. 15 506 .77 966.92 
165.42 224.51 261.83 486.J4 
J54.32 127.0J 117.0J 

1,633.80 2,029 .. JJ 2.286 .. 73 -1 ,3 16 .. 06 

38.511 14 .')4 14 .94 
38.58 l-t9-I U .9-1 

40.58 35JO 45.9 1 SU. I 
-10.58 35.JO -15.91 81..21 

52.00 -12 .00 180.00 222.00 
52.00 -12.00 IH0.00 222.00 

-1,550. 17 -1.550.17 
-l .. 'i50.17 -1 ,550. 17 

25-t89 19-1 .29 53.o<J 2-17 .JS 
195.46 148.911 40.7 1 189.69 

15 .95 12.17 3.J2 15.49 
J.77 2.87 0.7<J 3.66 
0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 

132.29 100.8-1 27 .55 128.J9 
172.98 IJl.85 36.03 167.88 

72.8-1 
8-Ul. 18 591.00 16 1..-19 752..-19 

287 .J7 J87.49 247.2 1 6J-1 .70 

220.J6 297 . 1-1 189.57 486. 71 

17.99 24 .25 15.47 J9.72 

4.!5 5.7-1 3.66 9.-10 

0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 
1-19. 1-1 201. 10 128.30 329.40 
195.02 262.97 167.77 -IJ0. 74 

82. 12 
956.25 1,178.69 751.98 1,930.67 

9.7-1 13 .SJ 24.41 J7.94 
7.46 10.37 18.11 19.09 

0 .60 0.85 I.SJ 1.38 
0 . 1-1 0 .10 0 .36 0.56 

000 0.00 0.00 0.00 
5.06 7.02 12.67 19.69 

6 .62 9.18 16.56 25 .74 
2.78 

32..-10 .U.15 7-1 .. 25 115 .. -10 



Brookr,dJ India Real ErbteTnul 

Condenrcd Slll.ndll.lone Financial Stalc-mcnlr 
(All amountr ,ire in Ruptt1 million1 unku olhc"'·in ,1ated) 
Noln lo lhe Conden,NI St,indlllone f'in:.incial S1lllcmcnh 

Nature ortr-.inueliotl/ Enlil)''s N•me 

Reimhunemen1 orc1penic incurred hy (cidudin~ GSl) 
- Dr1~ikpr11p Manag\.Tll<:hl !'•knicl!S l'ri\'.'.lle Limited 
- Camfor India Office Parks l'riv.'.ltc Limited 
- DSREP lnJi.'.l Olfo.:e 1-foldin!ls V l'te Lid 
- 0ro.,klicld Pwp,.11yGrou11 LLC 

Oulrfllnding ln1lanl"Cll 

Un1ccurcd lo:1n1 rcccll•,ihlc (Non- Curren!) 
- Cam,k•r Kolbta One I li-T cd1 Structum1 Private Limited 
- F~tus Prr,pcni,."S Pri,·atc Limited 
- Shanlinih1an l~op .. ,tie. Pri,·atc Limitcd 
- Se:nicw Dc,·cloµ .. ·rs Pri,·3\c Limik<l 

lnnslmcnt in cqui1~· 1h11rc::1 orSPV 

- Candi..- Kolk::itaOnc I-Ii-Tech Structures Pri\'a!c Limited 
~ F~tlL~ Prr,,,.>iti .. -s l'ri,·.'.lte Limit..-d 
- Sh.1ntinik..1an l~11pci1 i~ Private Limilcd 
- Cnrn.k...- ludi.'.l Onicc l'ai-J..:s Pri,·.'.ltc Limited 
- Sca,icw Dc,·dop<!r!! l'ri,·.'.ltc Limit..-d 

ln,·C!llmenl in Dcbcnh1rcs 

- Sca,icw Dc\'cl\'P,.,.~ Jlri,·a1c Limit~'U 

lnlcrcll 111ccn1ctl hut nol due on Loan to Sulnidiuict 
- Cand\..- K\,lk.'.11a One I li-T cch S1rucLurt .. "S Private Limited 
- Fe.tus Prnpcr1ics Pri,·atc Lim.i!l.-..1 
· Shanlinikdnn Prnpcrtics Pri,·atc Limited 
- Sc.:l\icw D..!,·dopcrs Pri\'alc Limited 

Prcraidc1pen1cs 
- Axis Tru~tcc s,.,-,.ic,.-s !Jd 

Tr-.idc P:1)·111bk (nd or,,·ithholdin~ lu) 

- Uu,.:ikprnp Mm:ig,.·,ncnl Si:nic~ PrimL<: l.imi1~-d 

Total 

Total 

Tola! 

Tobi 

Tobi 

Tohal 

Forlhc quarter 
ended 

JO Scplembcr 2022 

(0.3.:1) 
(OJ.:I) 

Forlhc1JUll.tfcr 
ended 

JO June 21122 

2.32 
2.Jl 

For lhc quar1er Forlhe balr~·c-.ir 

ended ended 
JO Scplemhcr 2021 JO Scptemhcr 2022 

(0.21) 

9.26 

9.05 

1.98 
1.98 

For the hair year For lhc hair year 
ended ended 

JI flhrch 2022 JO Scplcn1hcr 2021 

(0 .06) 
0,0-1 

1.22 

1.20 

6.03 
25 . 17 

Jl.20 

Forlhc~·car 
ended 

JI March 2022 

(0 .06) 
6.07 

26J') 

JIAU 

A11o1I Ara1 
JO Scptcmhcr 2022 JI M:m:h 2022 

10,424.00 
5,815.50 
2,-1-19.00 
5,<156.00 

2.:1.1.u.su 

2-1,761.J') 

8,655.-16 
11 ,-107.SJ 

220.20 
12,-182.97 
57,527.85 

5,-113.JO 

5,.:113.JO 

234.S6 
192.40 
82.24 

118.79 

628.29 

1.<17 
1A7 

18.5-1 

18.5.:1 

11 ,723.00 
6,171.50 
2,601 .00 

5.3%.00 
25,1191.50 

24.761.39 
!1,655.<16 

ll.<107 .83 
220.20 

12.-182.97 
57 .. Ci27.H5 

5.-138.00 
5,.08.UO 

2HA4 
208.76 

7&.36 
11] .&2 

6~5.Jfl 

16.&0 
16.80 



llrooklicld India Rul E51alc Trusl 

Condensed Slandalonc Financial Slalcmcnls 

(All amounls ar, in RupctS millions unless olhcrn•ise Slalcd) 
Noics lo lhc Condensed S11ndalone Fin•ncial Slalcmcnls 

28 Derails or aliliulion or 11rocccd, or IPO ar, as follow,: 

Objcds or the issue as 11cr fbc pros11cdus 

Panial or full pre-pnymen1 or scheduled repayment or 1hc 
indebtedness orour Asscl SPVs 
General purposes (refer nole below) 
Issue expenses (refor nole below I 
Tolal 

Pro1toscd ulilll'.ation Adual ulililltion upto 
JI March 2022 

cxis1i11g 35,750.00 35,750,00 

350.00 672.45 
I 900,00 1.577.SS 

38,000.00 38,000.00 . . .. 
Nole: Amounl or Rs. 322.45 m1lhon has been used for general corporate purposes from lhe proposed u11h1..auon 1owards 1Ssue expenses. 

29 Dislribulion Policy 

In 1cm1S of 1hc Disuibu1ion policy aud REIT ReBula1ions, nol less 1han 90% or lhc NDCFs of our Asse1 SPVs arc required 10 be distribulcd 
10 Brookfield REIT, in proportion of its shareholding in our Asset SPVs. subject to applicable provisions or the Compnnies Acl. 1l1e cash 
flows 1cccivablc by Rrookficld REIT may be in lhc fonn or dividend!:. intcrc!'il income, principal lo.in repayment, proceeds of any capital 
reduc1ion or buyback from our Asset SPVs/ CIOP, snle proceeds out of disposal of invesuncnts of any or assets direcllj•/ indircclly held by 
Brookfield REIT or as specifically pem1iucd under the Trusl Deed or in such other fonn as may be pennissible under 1hc applicable laws. 

,\t lca51 90% ofU,c NDCFs ofBrookfield REIT ("REIT Distributions") shall be declared and made once every quaner of a Financial Year by 
our Mon1tgcr. ·111c first dis1ribo1ion shall be made upon complclion or the firsl filll qunncr after the lisling or our Unils on the Stock 
Exchanccs. Funhcr, in accordnnce wi1h 1hc REIT Reculalions. REIT Dislribulions shall be made no lalcr lltnn IS days from Ilic da1c of such 
dcclllmlions. T11e REn:· Dislributions. when made, shall be made in Indian Rupees. 

11,c NDCFs shall be calcula1cd in accordance wilh the REIT Regulations and any circular. nolifiealion or guidelines issued U1ereunder 
includinc 1he SEBI Guidelines. 

JO Capilaliz:alion Slalcm<nl 

The Tl\lst's policy is 10 moinlain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, crcdi1or and market confidence and lo sustain future 
dcvclopmcnl or the business. ll1c Trust's capital structure mainly conslitules cquily in lhc fonn of unil capital . llu: projects of SPVs arc 
inilinlly funded through constn1c1ion financing aminscmcnls. On complclion. these loans :uc rcstnicrnrcd in10 lcasc•rcntal discounting 
ananscmcnls. T11c Trust's capital structure is innucnced by the changes in reguhuory framework , government policies, available options of 
fimmcinc and 1hc imp;,cl or1he srune nn the liquidi1y posi1io11. 
11,c Trusl monilors Capital by a careful semtiny of the cash and bank balances, and a regular assessmenl of any deb1 rcquiremenlS. In the 
absence of any in1crcs1 bearing debt. 1hc mainlenance of Net dcbl lo GA V ra1io may not be or any relevance 10 1hc Tmsl as al 30 September 
2022. 

JI On I April 2021 , 12% Compulsorily Convenible Debentures issued by Condor Kolka1a and held by Brookfield India REIT (4S,53S numbers 
of 12% Compulsorily Conveniblc Debentures) were convened inlo 37,981 number of equity shares each of Rs.10 at a premium of Rs. 
265 ,912.43. 

32 a) 1l1e figures for the quaner ended 30 Seplembcr 2022 arc lhc derived figures between U,e unaudited figures in respect oflhe half year 
ended 30 September 2022 and 1he unaudited published figures for lhe qnaner ended 30 June 2022. which were bolh subjecl lo limile<l 
review. 

b) 11,c figures for the half ycur ended 31 March 2022 arc 1he derived figures be1wce11 lhc audilcd figures in respecl of the year ended 31 
March 2022 and 1he unaudited published year-lo-date figures up10 30 September 2021 which were subject 10 limiled review. 

33 "0.00" RepresenlS value less than Rs. 0.0 I million. 

For and on behalf oflhc Board of Directors of 
Drookprop Management Scn'iccs Pril'afc Umitl'd 
(as Manager lo the Brookfield India REIT) 

1_,JJ---
~urGupla 

Dircclor 
DIN No. 08687570 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

Sanjccv Kumnr Sharma 
Chier Financial Officer 
Pince: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Alok A~an\'OI 
Chief Executive Officer 
Place: M1U11bai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED 

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the “Investment Manager”) 

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Brookfield India Real Estate 

Trust) 

Introduction 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 

Statements of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (“the REIT”), and its subsidiaries (the 

REIT and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”), (“the Condensed Consolidated 

Interim Financial Statements”) which comprise of the following: 

• the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 

comprehensive income) for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for the quarter and 

half year ended September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity 

for the half year ended September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value as at September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value for the half year ended 

September 30, 2022; 

• the unaudited Condensed Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of the Brookfield 

India Real Estate Trust and each of the subsidiaries for the quarter and half year 

ended September 30, 2022; and 

• summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes 

 

These Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are being submitted by the 

REIT pursuant to the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate 

Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines 

and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 

December 29, 2016 (the “REIT regulations”). 

2. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the 

Investment Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager, 

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the REIT Regulations; Indian 

Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“Ind AS 34”), prescribed under Rule 

2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and 

other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with 

the REIT Regulations. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed 

Consolidated Interim Financial Statements based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

3. We conducted our review of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in 

accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim 

Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information 

consists of making inquiries, primarily of Investment Manager’s personnel responsible for 
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financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures.  A 

review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards 

on Auditing issued by ICAI and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we 

would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. 

Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

4. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements includes the financial information 

of the following entities: 

 

Sr. No. Name of the entities 

A Parent entity 

1 Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 

  

B Subsidiaries 

1 Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 

2 Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 

3 Festus Properties Private Limited 

4 Seaview Developers Private Limited 

5 Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 

 

 

Conclusion 

 

5. Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 

the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, have not been 

prepared in accordance with the REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34, prescribed under Rule 2(1)(a) 

of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the 

REIT Regulations. 

Emphasis of matter 

 

6. We draw attention to Note 15(a)(i) which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as 

“Equity” to comply with REIT Regulations. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this 

matter. 

 

 

 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 

      Chartered Accountants 

           (Firm’s Reg. No. 015125N) 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                            Anand Subramanian 

                                          Partner 

                                                                    (Membership No. 110815) 

                                            (UDIN:22110815BCIXYM9001) 

 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: November 7, 2022 

 



Brookfield India Rea l Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(A ll amounts arc in Rupees mill ions un less othcnvisc stated) 

Condensed Conso lidated Ba lance Sheet 

Pa rt icu la rs 

ASSETS 
Non-Current assets 
Property, plant and equ ipment 
Investment property 
Investment property under development 
Intangible assets 
Financial assets 
-Other financia l assets 

Deferred tax assets (net) 
Non-current tax assets (net) 
Other non-current assets 
Tota l non-cu rrent assets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 
-Trade receivables 
-Cash and cash equivalents 
-Other bank balances 

-Loans 
-Other financ ial assets 

Other current assets 
Total current assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Unit Capital 
Other equity 
Total equity 

LIABILITIES 
Non current liabili ties 
Financial liabi lities 
-Borrowings 
-Lease liabilities 
-Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 
Other non-current liabi lities 
Tota l non-cu rrent liabilities 

Note 

3 
4 
4 

3 

5 
6 
7 

8 

9 
10 
11 
12 

13 
14 

15 
16 

17 

18 
19 
20 

As at Asal 
30 September 2022 31 March 2022 

(Unaud ited) (Aud ited) 

166 03 154.90 
134,708.26 134,419.98 

1,279.28 1,745.46 
0.01 0.13 

964.24 1,437.33 
3,620.88 3,755.46 
2,333.63 2,416.27 

136.98 175.54 
143,209.31 144, 105.07 

313.07 224.88 
2,296.90 2,043.65 

500.03 506.49 

1,479.54 755.3 1 
375.70 222.58 

4,965.24 3,752.91 
148,174.55 147,857.98 

88,289.05 89,867.3 1 
(2,145.12) ( 1,046.38) 
86,143.93 88,820.93 

52,566.46 50,993.53 
246.39 220.44 

1,838.20 1,329.30 
18.28 18.9 1 

782.53 645 .93 
55,451.86 53,208. 11 



Urooklield India Rut Eslolc Trusl 
Condensed Consolida1td Financi,il Slalemenls 
(All .amounl'-i nrc in Rupees millions unlei;!i othcn\'isc stated) 

Condensed Consolidnlcd Balance Sheol 

Parli<ulars 

Currcnl liobililics 
Fimrncial liabilities 
-Borrowinss 
-L:asc liabilities 
-Trade payables 

Tola I o~lstanding dues or micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
Total outslanding dues or creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

-Other rinanciol liabilities 
Provisions 
Olher current liabilities 
Current tax liabilities (net) 
Total current liabilities 
Total liobllilics 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Significant accounting politics 

Nole 

21 

22 

23 
24 
25 
26 

Asal 
JO Se11lembcr 2022 

(Unaudited) 

615.30 
579.53 

0.76 

673.93 

4,198.76 
10.02 

378.75 
121.71 

6,578.76 
62,030.62 

148,174.55 

Asat 
31 March 2022 

(Audiltd) 

661.81 
27.73 

17.34 

620.17 

4,061.26 
7.32 

312.67 
120.64 

5,828.94 
59,037.05 

147,857.98 

The accompanyinc notes from I lo 50 form an intewal part or these Condensed 
Consolidarcd Financial St:ilcmcnts. 

As per our report of C\'cn date allnchcd 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Regis1ra1io11 No.: 015125N 

Anand Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bcngaluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For and on behalf or the Board of Directors or 
Brookprop Man•gemcnl Services Prn·ate Limilro 
(as Manager lo the Brookfield India REIT) 

~v-
AnkurGup•• 
Dircclor 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Sanjccv Kumar Sharmn 
Chier Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Alok Aggara·•I 
Chief Executive Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 



Brookfield lndl1 Rt1I E1111e Tnul 
Condnsed Conselld■ted Fia■ aci■ I Statements 
(All amounts ■ re In R•PffS mlllloH unleu olllenrite 1llled) 

Con, olidattd Stttemen.t of Profit ■nd Len 
P■rtlcul■ rs Note For Ille qa■ rter ended For the quarter ended For Ille qu1rter eoded For Ille h■lf year ended 

30 Soptember 2011 
(lln1udlted) 

Income ■ad gal■ 1 

Revenue from op<ntions 27 ),0)6.02 
Other income 28 80.40 

Total Incom e 3,116.41 

E:1penses and loues 
Cost ofmatenal consumed 29 11.32 
Employee benefit., expenses 30 80.00 
Financ.e cosu 31 1,082.08 
Depreciation and amortiDti.on expense..s 32 637.57 
Investment management fees 20.26 
Veluatioo ocperuel 4.39 
T~tce(ecs 0.74 
Other e,cpcmcs 33 854.67 

Total expenses 1,691.03 

Profit before In com c tu. 415.39 

T■x apense: 34 
Curmit tax 

-ror curmu period 9.92 
-ror earlier year3 

Defemd tax charge/ (aedit) 148.35 
TH. a:pen,e (or tbe ptriod/ yar 15!.27 

Profit for the period/ yur •Rer income t■1. 267.11 

Other co1nprehtn1iYe lnt1Jme 
Items that will not be reclUJilied to profit or loss 
• Remeuuremem of defined benefit obligations 0.25 
- Income tax related to items that will not be reclwified to profit or 1cm [O.Oll 
Other camprdle1uln Income rar the peried/:,eu, ad dtu: 0.24 

Total comprehensive income ror the period/year 267.36 

E■mlnp ptt unit 40 
Basic 0.80 
Diluted 0.80 

Significant accounting policies 2 

The accompanying notes from I to 50 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

~ per our report or even date an.ached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountant., 

Finn Regi,lr.ltion No.: 01512SN 

Anand Subramanian 
Pormer 
Membenhip No: 11081 S 
Place: Bengsluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

30 Jnne 1011 
(lln1ndlted) 

2,910.40 
97.29 

3,007.69 

7.03 
84.05 

958.61 
690.98 

20.32 
1.67 
0.74 

786.35 

2,549.75 

457.94 

11.87 
(11.38) 
!13.98) 
(13.49) 

471.43 

0.77 
[0.181 

0.59 

4n.02 

1.41 
1.41 

30 Septnnber 1011 30 September 1011 
(lln1udlted) (lluudked) 

2,117.08 5,946.42 
30.93 177.69 

2,148.01 6, llUI 

4.72 18.35 
52.46 164.05 

425.47 2,040.69 
471.13 1,3211.55 

24.92 40.58 
2.99 6.06 
0.74 1.48 

532,23 1,641.02 

1,514.66 5,240.78 

633.35 883.33 

7.41 21.79 
(11.38) 

!56.88) 134.37 
(4M7) 144.78 

681.81 738.55 

0,51 1.02 
[0.16l io.191 
8.35 0.83 

683.17 739.38 

2.25 2.20 
2.25 2.20 

For and on behalf or the Board or DRCtors of 
Brookprop Mana1emeat Senices Private Limited 

(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

~e 
Dir<etor 

("'.1 e'Cc,'7 ;W _,p 
Alok Aggarwal 
Chief Executive Officer 
PJ■ce : Mumbai DIN No. 08687570 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Date: 07 November 2022 

For Ille b ■lryur ended For the h1lry<1r ended For Ille yur ended 
31 Morch 2011 

(lln1udlted) 

4,460.02 
157.36 

4,617.38 

10.42 
93.31 

1,236.08 
1,157.49 

JS.JO 
7.67 
1.47 

1,178.25 

3,719.99 

897.39 

19.90 
(3.81) 

!160.39) 
(144.38) 

1,041.69 

(0.0J) 
0,06 
O.OJ 

I 041.72 

3,30 
3,30 

c~ 
S■njeev Kumar Sh■rma 
Chic£ Fimncia! Officer 
Place: Mt.mbai 
Dote: 07 November 2022 

30 September2011 
(Unaudited) 

4,307.89 
66.87 

4,374.76 

13.60 
103.54 
844.61 
927.28 

45.91 
3.93 
1.48 

1,089.81 

3,030.16 

1~44.60 

8.06 

(84,62) 
(76.56) 

1,411.16 

1.22 
[0,261 
0.96 

1411.11 

4,69 
4.69 

o\<.fiele1 - /, "o-
~ 

.(<s_ (!J 
. :;, )JJ 

-:2 
84B"\s'Q 

31 Moreb 2012 
(Audited) 

8,767.91 
224.23 

8,991.14 

24.02 
196.85 

2,080.69 
2,084.77 

81.21 
11.60 
2.95 

2,268.06 

6,750.15 

1~41.99 

27.96 
(3.81) 

!745.01) 
(110.86) 

2,461.115 

1.19 
[0.201 
0.99 

2463.84 

7.97 
7.97 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condennd Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees Millions unless otherwise stated) 

Condeiued Coiuolidated Statement of Cub Flows 

Particulars 

Cub flows from operating activitit.11 : 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments far : 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Allowance for expected credit loss 
Interest income on fixed deposit 
Deferred income amortization 
Credit impaired 
Restricted Stock Units 
Finance cost 
Interest income on security deposit 
Fe.ir value gain on income support 
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 

Movement in working capital: 
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current and non current assets 
Decrease/(lncrease) in current and non current financial assets 
Increase/(Decrease) in current and non current financial liabi lities 
Increase in other current and non current liabilities 
Cub generated from operating activities 
Income taxes (paid)/ refunds received (net) 

Net cub generated from operating activitie., (A) 

Cub flows from investing activities : 
Expenditure incurred on investment property 
Purchase of property. plant and equipment 
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, including directly attributable expenses 
Fixed deposits matured# 
Fix~d deposits made# 
Interest received on fixed deposits 
Interest received on security deposit 
Net cu b und in investing activ ities (B) 

Cub flows (rum finencing activities : 
Fine.nee cost paid 
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 
Repayment of Lease liabilities 
Repayment of long-term borrowings 
Proceeds from issue of Units 
Expense incurred towards Initial public offerings 
Expense incurred towards preferential allotment 
Distribution to unitholders 
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activitiea (q 

Net increa.se/(decrcaae) in cuh and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

For the quarter ended 
30 September 2022 

(Unaudited) 

425.39 

637.57 
2.43 

(23 .75) 
(45.73) 

8.84 
0.44 

1,082.08 
(9.55) 

(36.19) 
2,041.53 

(107.40) 
21.08 

194.88 
135.82 

2,285.91 
(35.69) 

2,250.22 

(274.60) 
(9.55) 

227 .56 
(207.92) 

40.24 
9.55 

(214.72) 

(1,031.99) 
1,070.02 

(11.02) 
(141.70) 

(1,707.68) 

(1,822.37} 

213.13 

For the quarter ended For the quarter ended 
30 June 2022 30 September 2021 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

457.94 633 .35 

690.98 471.13 
6.23 0.25 

(20.24) (20.27) 
(53.90) (38.12) 

0.58 5.11 
1.07 

958.61 425.47 
(14.09) (6.26) 
(23.90) 

2,003.28 1,470.66 

46.69 (14.27) 

43.34 41.17 

163.85 (211.17) 

96.62 68.26 
2,353.78 1,354.65 

108.98 (39.00) 
2,462.76 1,315.65 

(357.97) (121.41) 
(I 1.92) (19.45) 

( I 1.52) 
8.27 82.68 

(21.52) (83 .19) 

17.22 18.83 

14.09 6.26 
(363.35) (116.28) 

(918.17) (388.16) 
749.99 500.00 
(17.65) (11.02) 

(160.63) 

(18.08) 
(4.00) 

(1 ,708.83) (1,816.81) 

(2,059.29} !1,734.!!1) 

40.12 (534.70) 

For the half year ended For the half year ended For the half year ended For the year ended 
30 September 2022 31 March 2022 30 September 2021 31 March 2022 

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) 

883.33 897 .39 1,344.60 2,241.99 

1,328.55 1,157.49 927.28 2,084.77 
8.66 9.83 0.25 10.08 

(43 .99) (35.07) (35.98) (71.05) 
(99.63) (84.80) (16.26) (161.06) 

9.42 2.95 7.82 10.77 
1.5 1 0.55 0.55 

2,040.69 1,236.08 844.61 2,080.69 
(23.64) (9.19) (19.19) (28.38) 
(60.09) (3 1.58) (31.58) 

4,044.81 3,143.64 2,993.13 6,136, 78 

(60.71) (31.31) (3.57) (34.88) 
64.42 91.59 (48.70) 42.89 

358.73 140.87 (278.92) (138.05) 
232.44 66.73 160.58 227.31 

4,639.69 3,411.52 2,822.52 6,234.05 
73.29 (24.79) (150.06) (174.85) 

4,712.98 3,386.73 2,672.46 6,059.20 

(632.57) (627.97) (245.36) (873.33) 
(21.47) (12.36) (30.06) (42.42) 
(11.52) (13,258.02) (13,258.02) 
235.83 91.74 181.55 273 .29 

(229.44) (131.09) (92.47) (223 .56) 
57.46 31.04 30.91 61.95 
23 .64 9.19 19.19 28.38 

(578.07) (13,897.47) (136.24) (14,033.71) 

(1,950.16) (1 ,381.87) (770.73) (2,152.60) 
1,820.01 15,259.99 650.00 15,909.99 

(28.67) (11.02) (I 1.02) 
(302.33) (5,627.38) (5,627.38) 

4,949.83 4,949.83 
(225.74) (976.23) (1 ,201.97) 

(4.00) (44.92) (44.92) 
p,416.51) (3,330.72) (1,816.81) (5,147 .53) 

(3,881.6~ 9,599.19 !2,924.79) 6,674,40 

253.25 (911.54) (388.57) (1,300.11) 

w <_?:::. 

* ~ 

~" ... <q;. !J!~ 
'../. e re-1,S~ 



Brookfield India Ru.I Est ■te Tr111t 
Condcnsc-d Coatolidated Financial StatemcnlJ 
(All amounts are in Rupee.s Millions unless otherNise stated) 

Coademtd Coa.Jolldated St■temcnt of Cub Flows 

Particulars 

CaJb. and cuh equiv■leot1 at the beginning orthe period/ year 
Cub and c•th equivalent, ■cquirtd due to aucl acqubition: 

CHb ■ nd cub equiv■lents 11 the end ofthe period/year (rder note 10) 

ComponenlJ of cuh and tub equiv■lenu 1t tbt end ortbe ptrlod/ yur 
Balances with bank, 
- in current account 
• in deposil account 
- in c.,crow account 

# Represents fixed depositl with original maturity or more th.an l months. 

Note.s : 

For the q111r1er ended 
JD Soplomb,r 2022 

(1Jnauditodl 

2,D83.77 

l,l96.9D 

128.90 
2,168.00 

2,1_96.90 

For tbe q11uter ended 
JD Jun, lOll 
(1Jnou~te_d) 

l,D43.65 

2,083.77 

115.76 
1,968.01 

21083.77 

Fer the quarter ended 
JD Soptombor lDll 

(Unoudilodl 

J,JDI.Jl 

2,166.62 

178.6S 
2,437.0D 

150.97 

k766.6l 

For the hal(ye■r ended 
JD Soplombor lOll 

(1Jn ■ u!itod) 

2,043.65 

l.296.90 

128.90 
2,168.00 

2.296.90 

For the h■lfyear ended 
JI Marth lDll 

(IJnaudito_d) 

2,766.62 

118.57 

l,IMJ.65 

193.6S 
1,SS0.00 

zD43.65 

I. The c1Jh flow statement hu been prep11ed in accordance with •tndirecl Melhod• u set out in Indian Accounlins Standud .7 : •statement on Cash Flows'. 

2. Non<l!lh investing 1ctivitiu disclmed in other note, is towards partial senJement on assets acquisition orSDPL Noida on 24 January 2022 through the issue or units (refer note 44(ii)). 

Sianificant accountins policies (refer note 2) 

The accompanying notes &om I lo 50 form an integral part orthese Condmsed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

A:s per our report of even dale attach, ;; 

For DF.LOITIE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chanered Accountants 
Firm Rogistrllion No.: 01S12SN 

An■nd S11br■m1niaa 
Partno, 

Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For ■nd on be&alr of the Board of Direttars of 
Broakprop Management Services Private Limited 
(as Manager to th, BrookJi,ld India REIT) 

y .--- c-::?ecc7:?7 -Y 
J_ -~ Ankur Gupt■ Alok An■rw■I r . · Director Chief Executive Officer 

DIN No. 08687570 Place: Mumba.i 
Place: Mumbai Date: 07 November 2022 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For tb, h■ICyur cndod 
JD Sopt,mbor lOll 

(1Jnoudltodl 

3,155.19 

2,766.62 

178.65 
2,437.00 

150.97 
k766.6l 

For the ye■ r uded 
31 March 1022 

(Audited) 

3,155.19 
118.57 

2,043.65 

193.6S 
1,850.00 

21043.65 

<,.' 

c ---i~ ~<Q~-✓-~ A <-
~ ,, 
u' ' 

S■njecv Kumar Sharma ..,.,/ ~ 
Chier Financial Officer 1 ...... .,.., , ~ 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 



Brookfield Indio Rcal Eslalc Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial SMemenlS 
(All amounts arr in Rupees million unless 01hcn,·isc s1ntctl) 

Com.lensed Consolidnlcd Statement ofChilngcs in llnilhoh.lcr's Equity 

(a) Unit Capital 
Balance•• on 01 A11ril 2021 
01unecs in unit c.apilal durinJ? the 1,rcviou!'i year: 
Less: Distribulion lo Unilholders for the quarter ended JO June 20211/ 
Less: Distribulion to Unilholders for the qu>rter ended JO September 2021# 
Less: Dist1ibution to Uni1holders for the quaner ended JI December 202111 
Add: Rcvc~I of issue expenses no longer 1>-1yablc 
Add: UnilS issued during the year (refer note 15) 
Less: Expense incurred 1owards preferential allo1mc111 
Balance al lhe end of the current reporting year 31 March 2022 
Balance as on 01 April 2022 
Chan)!CS in unit c:111ital durinl?, the current J>eriod: 
Less: Dis1ribution to Unilholders for lhc quarter ended 31 March 2022# 
Less: Dislribution to Uni1holders for the quancr ended JO June 2022# 
Balance at the end of the currenl re1>0rling period 30 Seplcmber 2022 

(b) Other equily 

Par1itulars 

Balance•• on 01 April 2021 
Add: Profit for the vear euded 31 March 2022 
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Morch 2022 

Add: Tot:11 Comr>rchcnsivc Income ror Che nrcvious }'car 
Less: Distribu1ion to Unitholders for lhc auartcr ended 30 June 20211/ 
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2021/1 
l..css: Di"1ribution to Unitholders for the auarter ended 31 December 2021 # 
Add: Res1ric1cd Stock Units 
llalanceas al 31 Mnch 2022 
Balance as on OI April 2022 
Add: Profit for tl1c half year ended 30 September 2022 

Add: Other comprehensive income for the half year ended 30 Scotcmbcr 2022 
Add: Tot!II Comnrchcnsivc lncon,e for the currcnf halrye:u 
l..css: Dis1ribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022# 

Less: Distribution to Unitholdcrs for the anarler ended 30 June 2022# 
Add: Restricted Stock Units 

Balance•• at 30 September 2022 

Unit in Nos. Amounl 

302,801,601 81,774.78 

(297.05) 
(605.60) 
(481.45) 

25.55 
32,285.472 9,500.00 

(48.92) 
335,087,073 89,867.31 

335,087,073 89,867.31 

(720.44) 
(857.82) 

335,087,073 118,289.05 

Ret:iincd earnings 

252.75 
2.462.85 

0.99 
2,463.84 

(1,519.76) 
(1,211.21) 
(1,032.55) 

0 .55 
(1,046.38) 

(1,046.38) 

738.55 
0.83 

739.38 
(988.51) 

(851.12) 
I.SI 

(2,145.12) 

#The distribulions made by Trust lo its Unilholders ore based on 1he Nel Dislributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Brooktteld India REIT under lhc REIT Regulations. 

Sii;nificanl accounting policies (refer no1c 2) 

The accompanying notes from I to 50 fonn an inlcb-ral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

As per our report of C\'cn d.11c attached 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chancred AccountanlS 
Finn Registration No.: 015125N 

Anand Subr,:un~nian 
Panncr 
Mcmbcrsl1ip No: 11081 5 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Brookpro11 Management Services Priv•le Limited 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

~---
~rGupla 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Sanjcev Kumar Sharma 
O,ief Financjal Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Alok Aggam·nl 
Chief Executive Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
IJate: 07 November 2022 



Drookndd lndla Rral f'.slalc Tn1SI 
CondcnKd Consolid:111rd Fin:tin(lal S1a1cmcn1s 
(All amounts an! in Rupees mllllons unlr,s 01hcrwi,c U:\l«fl 

S1a1m1cn1 or Net A1st.1, al Fair V:alm: 
S.No r.u1icubrs As al .lD Seplc:mbcr 2011 A1 al JI l\brch 2011 

A 
D 
C 
D 
E 

Ane11 
Lubili1ies 
Ncl Ass:c1s ( A-0 ► 
No. or units 
NAV ~r uoil (OD) 

"1nsurcmcnl of rair values 

Rook Value Fair nluc 
1a,t 7-I .Sj 17-1.'XJS.•JI 
(<,l .0:\0.l,l) (62 .0l0.62) 
16,l~J.91 IIJ.875.19 

llS.017.073 33i.017.073 
157.H .Jl6.JiS 

llook Value 
lol7,IU7.911 
(S'J.037.llS) 
11,1110.93 

JJS.017 .073 
265.07 

Fair value 
170,P.91 .Sol (rder nolc l below) 
(59.0J7.0S) 
111.854.-49 

JJi .017.073 
Jl.J.11 

The~, ,·a!ue or in,·ct1n1cn1 propcr1h:s and inves1nwnt proper~· under dc,·clopmcut h~ b«n dclermincd ti,· indcpcnden l c..,:lema! rcgist~rcd property ,·alucts. h:n·in; :approprfa1cly recognized profC5Wonal 
qualiricalions and rcccnl experience in 1he loca1ion ;rid u1.1.,:,ory ofll1c propcrlics bcins ulucd. 

Valu~ion 1cdinique 
T11c f;Mr ,-atue mc.isuremcnl of1he in,·cs1mcn1 properties :ind inn:tln)Cffl propcny under dcrclopmenl h:zs been ~tcgorizcd :ti a Lc,·cl l fair 1·~uc based on lhe inpu1s 10 lhc 1·alu:ation 1cchniquc used. 
The ,·ahK1s ha,·c follo"ed a discounlcd c.:tSh now method. The discounted c:ash now method considers lhc prescnl ,·.lluc ofncl c;ish ncw5 IO be gencr:alcd r,om 1he rcspec:1i1·c propcnics. taL:inc into .xcounl 
1hc exp«I~ rental cro,nh r;uc, ,·~c,.· pi:riod. occup:wic,· rah!, .:1rcra~c sq. n. 1m1 aid lc:isc inccn1h·c casls . Th~ cxpeclcd nc1 c~h nows :ire discounlcd usin£ lhc risL: adjuslcd discoun1 r.ucs. Amon.: olhcr 
fac1ors, lhc discoun1 uuc cs1ima1ion considers the qunlhy of:,, buildin& and i11 loa1ion (r,rimc ,., second:wy), lcn:inl credi1 qu:iJil)". le~ 1crnis aid in,·es10,s tXJh,'-Ctcd rel urn. 

For r;ur ulu:uion or lin:s1ci:a.l .isscls and fma1cial liabilities rere.- no1c 37. 

~ 
I. Candor Kolbi:i b:u plans lo dc-noli(\' a por1ion of iu SEZ inlo non SEZ. The dcnotification "ill be 1:11.tn up prior 10 lht cons I ruction comnicnccm1.."fll and is procedur31 in nature. 1 lcnce, lhc fa.ir ,·:aiu.11ion 
ofsud1 SEZ po11ion h:i.s lh.'l:n c:onipu!cd by 1he ,·a!ucrs :1.Ssumin, non rr llSC. 

2. rrojccl \\isc bri:31: ur, of F:air 1·:lluc or Assi:ts : 

As .al JO Se 1cm her 1022 

Enlily ,uuJ Pro~rty uanic 

C:indor Koll.nta One Hi-Tech Structures P.1fra1c Limilcd 
Sh.w1liniL:c1.1n Propcnics Pri,·at~ Limi1cd 
Festus Properties rrh-.11~ Limited 
Sca,·ie,,· Oc,·clor,«s r,i,--:11e Limit~d 
C;indor India Office: r.111.s 11rl\'Atc Lin1i1cd 
0100H1cld lndi;i Rc31 Es1.:i.1c Trust 

f.air uh.e ef lnvc1hncnt 
prapcr1y .and lnvcstmml 

propcny under 
dcvclopmcnl 

72.7i0.92 
22.2%.)1 
27.HN .OO 
-10,%1}.22 

163-'6'-45 

Olhcr nscts at book Totalusclt 
value 

-l ,o&7S .fiS 77.22li .S7 
KlJ.OX 2J . lol9.3'.I 

1,697.117 29,2,U 87 
2.1,1.01 U.127 .2) 

9?.20 IJ9.20 

1.1!7.Gl l,lj7 .M 

11~41.-46 17-4 ,905.91 

•include, Rs . 8~5.S4 millions (nel of :ldn,nccofR.5. l?.9tl million) offin;ancc 1cc:<iH1blc relatin,: 10 income suppon :y,d conapondin~ amount hns been reduced fromolher .usclS. 

As at JI Marth 2022 
Entity and Property n:m1c 

C:widor Koll.ala One Hi-Tech Struc1u11:s Pri,·a1c l.in1i1i:d 
Sh:1n1inil:ct::an Propcnics Pri,·atc Lin1i1cd 
Festus P1opcnii:s rri,·atc Limi1cd 
ScJ,·icw Dcn:lopers P1i\'alc Lim11ed 
Candor India Office P.vl:s Pri,·aic Lin1i1cd 
Urool:fidd India Rc:ll Estate Tnnl 

Fair v.al»c or lnvcstNtcnl 
propt""rty and lnvc,lmtul 

property •ndcr 
dcvclopn1cnl 

70.KOl,.i) 
21,)29.32 
27.lSUIO 
40,1X17.ll 

!60,d6J .IJ 

Olhcr a.sets al book To1al1ssct1 
•aluc 

l.776.76 74.lll.29 
751 .C.9 22,011.01 

1.972.85 29.lJO.IIS 
1.1111.Cil 0 ,015 .89 

107.oll I07.41 
1.110).01) 1.103.0'} 

IO~J0.41 170~9l.54 

•Jncl udci Rs . 1.162.1 J millions o(fin:v1cc rceci,·,1,blc rcl,1,1in~ 10 income suppon .ind corrcspandin,: arnounl h:a.s bc-c:n reduced from 01hcr .usc1s 

a Fil.ir nducs or assets m disclosed :abo\"C arc the fair ,.~ui:s 0(1hc rot.al .uscls o(:all SPVs ias included in lhc Condensed Consolidoucd Finaici31 SbtcmcnlS 

b. f-.iir 1·:alucs o(in,·cslmcnt propcll)' :wid in,·e51n1011 r,rop:ny under dc,·clopmtnl m :,r JU Scplcmber l0l2 :,,nd JI 1'b,d1 2021 as disc.loscd ;it,o,·c arc solclr b:lscd on 1he fair ,·:aluation rqiorl of1hc 
indcpcndcnl C.'•ilcm:il rci:istercd ,·:ilu.:r :ip[X>intcd under 1hc Rl::IT Rcgul:11ions. 

Sip,ifianl :.ccoun1ing policies (,~re, noll: l) 

The 3ecomp:1.1yinc no1cs from I lo SO fom11111 int.:irnl pan of1licsc Condensed Consolidllcd Fin:a,icial S1a1cmcnts. 

As pc:rour rcpon orc,·cn cb1e~1xhcd 

For DELOITTE IIASKIN5 & SELLS 

Ch:in~r.'!d Accou01:anlS 
Firm Rcgi111.s1ion No.· 01 jlHN 

Anand Subnniani:111 
P.lllner 
Membership No: I I Uk IS 
rlace: Dcnc:lluru 
D:aic: 07 NoH?mbcr 2022 

For .-..don bcb;ilf o(lhc Ooad or Di1cclors or 
lrookprop lbnaecmcnl SenitcS Private Limited 
(35 M:11u1gl!t 10 1hc 81Ul'>l.ficld lndi:a REIT) 

1~--
j--J;;;ur Gup11 

Dir«1or 
DIN No. OU,117570 
Place: M11111b.ai 
0,1,1c· 07 Non:mbcr 2022 

Sanjcn l\umarSharm:r. 
Chier Financial Officer 
rtxc: M11n1b:li 
0:11c: 07 No,·cnibcr l022 

Alok Aecanul 
ChicrE!l:ccu1i,·c Officer 
Pl:w:c:Mumb3i 
0.i&e: 07 No,·cmber 2022 



Brooklicld lndi:t Rul ts1:llc Trnsl 
Cond,nstd Comi:olidalrd Financial St:ttcmcnls 
(All ::rimo11nls arc in Ruprcs niillions unless olhr"'·isc sl:rilrd) 

SU,ltmcnl or Total Reh1rn al Fair Valu~ 

S.No rarlic:ulars 

A Total cnmprchcnsi,·c Income 

B Add/(Lcss) : Changes in fai, \':llue 1101 rccoi;11i1.i;:d 

•ln\·cs1men1 Propcny 

C(A+B) Total Rrlurn 

For 1hr h:11fyrarcm.ltd 
JO Sr1,1c:mbcr 2022 

139.JB 

J.JRl.21 

4,120.59 

For ll1t h::tlf )'t.ar ended Far the l111lr )'tar cndrd For the ,·car cndtd 
31 Much 2022 30 Scplc111bcr 2021 31 ~lnrth 2022 

1,041 72 1,422.12 2.46].84 

4,555.46 2,524 .12 7,079.58 

5,597.18 J,94G.24 9S4J.4l 

The REIT acquired SPVs on 6 Fcbnmy 2021 and 24 January 2022 as fully described in Note I. In 1hc abo~'c :na1cmcn1. changes in (.1ir \"i1lue (or the half year ended 30 Scplembcr 2022, 31 M:uch 2022 
and JO September 2021 and year ended 31 March 2022 has been computed based on 1hc difference in fair \lalucs of in,·cstmcnl propcr1ics and in\'Utmcnt properly undr.r development as 11 30 Seplcmbcr 

2022, 31 March 2022, JO September 2021 :ind JI M:ireh 2022 as comr,:irc:d \Yi1h 1hc values :is al JI M::irch 2022, JO September 2021. JI March 2021 and JI March 2021 resrectivcly :ilicr .adjus1inc 
change in book value ofinn:slmcnl propenics .and invcslmcnt propcny under dc\'clopmcnt . The fair values of 1hc aforementioned assets as al JO September 2022, JI March 2022 and JO Scplembcr 2021 
.arc s:olcly based on thc,·alu;i\ion rcpon oflhc independent regincred valuer ilppointed under the REIT Rcgulillions . 

Signific:.nl accounling policies (refer nolc 2) 

The accompan)•ins nolc:s from I 10 SO form an inlegral pan of1hcsi: Condensed Consolid,ucd Financial S1:ncmenls . 

As per our rcp011 or even c..latc auachcd 

For DELOITTE 11/\SKINS & SELLS 
Chanercd Ar.countants 
Firm Rcgislration No. : 015125N 

Anand SubranuinLan 
Panncr 
Membership No: 110815 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 07 November 2022 

I 
For .and on bchalfoflhc Doard ofDircclOfS of 

Drookprop M:uue,cmcnt Scn•icts rrinlc Limited 
(as Mnnagcr 10 1hc Brooldicld India REIT) 

~ 
1-,P---

Ankur Gupl:i 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 

Dale: 07 November 2022 

SanjHiv Kunuar Sharma 
Chief Fin:1nci1l Officer 
Place: Mumb1i 
Date: 07 November 2022 

Alok A,:~arw;;il 

Chief Executive Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 
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Drookficld lndi■ Rc:,I Eslalc Trusl 

Condcnnd Consolid:at<d Financi:11 S1atemcnts 
(All :amouncs arc in Rupees million unless otlltr\t·in sbll'd) 

Addilion:il disclosures as required b)' raragrar,h, 10 SEDI circ1du No. CIR/ll\lD/Dfll.t6/2016 

Nd Distrib1111blc Cul1 Flo"'s (NDCF) punuanl to ,:11idnncc under l'11raJ:raph 610 SEUI circulu No. CIHJll\1D/UF/146/2016 
(ii) Calc11la1ion orncl diJlribulablc cash no"·s al ucl1 Assd srv 

For the quutcr end«I .30 ~plembcr 2022 

Sr. No. r:arlkulars 

I Profil / (Loss) aflu 1:11: as per sralcmcnt or ,,roril ;:md loss (standalone) (A) 

Adjuslmcnl 
2 Add: Dcprccia1ion . .in1ortiz.a1ion and impairmcn1 -as per St.:ncmcnl or profit and loss 

3 Add/(Lcss): Any other item or non-cuh expense/ non -cash income (net of nctuol cash flows for 1hcsc 

i1cms), as may be deemed necessary by 1he M:magcr . 

For example. IR)' dc:crc:,,sc/ increase in carryins amount or an assel or or a liabilily rccosnizcd in stalcmcnt 
orpror1t nnd Jos!.lincomc and expenditure on mcasun:mcnt orthc asset or the: liability al r.1ir value. inlcn:st 
cost as per effective inlcrcSI ntc method, dercncd 1:i.x, lease rcnls recognized on a s1raight line basis, c:lc. 

4 Add/less : Loss/sain on sale. 1ransfcr/ disposal/ liquid;,1ion or rcal cs1a1c asscls, invcs1mcn1s (including ca5h 

eq11i\0alenls).n1hcrassc1s or sh.arcs orti111crcs1 in Anc l SP Vs. 
5 Add: Proceeds from sale/ liquidalionltransfcr/ disposi'II or real c:sta.tc assets, investments (including ca.sh 

equh•alents), usc\s or slmcs or/ interest in Ancl SPVs, adjusted for 1he following: 
• Applicable capital gains and othcr taxes 
• Related debts settled or due lo be settled from sale procc-cds 

• Any acqullilion 
• Directly attributable transaction cosu 
• Proceeds reinvested or planmd to be reinvested as per REIT ~gulations 
• lnvr.stmcnl in any fomi as permitted under the REIT ~guJa.tiom as may be deemed ncccss;uy by the 

Manager 

6 Add: Proceeds from sale or real csutc assets, in\·cstmcnts, :1ssc1S or sale of shares or Asset SPVs not 

distributed pursuant lo an i.::1r'licr plan to re-invest as per REIT Rq;ul.1tions , if such procccds arc not 

intended lo be invested subsequently. 
7 Add: lnleresl (or olhcr similu pa)mcnts) on Sh:ircholder Dcbt (or on debentures or 01hcr instruments held 

by the Brookr1cld REIT) charged/ dcbi1ed lo 1he stnlemcnl ofprof11 ind loss . 
8 Add/(Less) : Other adjuslmcnls, including but no1 limited lo ncl chanscs in sccurily dCposils, working 

capital, dcrc:rrcdl11rcp.iid income or dcfcirc:d/ prcr,.iid expenditure, etc. 
9 Less: Any expcnsc in the nalurc of capital expenditure including capi1:1liz.cd intcrcs1 !hereon (lo 1l1c p:inics 

otJ1er 1han Brookf,cld REIT), capi1aliztd ovcrhcads. c1c. 

10 Add/(Lcss): Ncl deb! (rcp.iymcnlY drawdown/ (redemption) or preference sharcs/ dcbcnlun:s/ any olhcr 
such ins1rumcn1/ premiun\Slaccrucd interest/ any other OOligations/ li:1bilitics elc. , to panics other 1han 

Brookfield REIT, as ,nay be decmcd ncccss.iry by the Man:Jger, 
11 Add : Cash in0ows in rcla1ion tu equity/ non-refundable ad\·anccs, cit. 

12 Less: Any di,·idcnds on or proceeds from rcp.1ymcnts or redemptions or buy-b:id:s or e.1pit1l ,eduction or 
shares (including compulsory convcnible ins1n1ments), held by .3n)'Onc other lh:rn the Brookfield REIT 
(cilhcr directly or indireclly), i nd nny taxes thereon (including 1111y di\'idcnd distribution tax or buy back 
d istribution tax, clc., if applicable). 

Candor Kol~t11 

(26.8◄) 

102.00 
(3!.56) 

353.22 

123 . 19 

(29.2G) 

358.94 

SPPLNoid:i. 

17.71 

7G.60 
(11.41) 

76.69 

(42 05) 

(39.09) 

100.72 

c1or 
16,15 

0.71 
2.69 

14.23 

(I IG) 

Festus 

(89,21) 

61.51 
14.72 

192.39 

106.J0 

(99.74) 

104.86 

Total :idjuslm~nls (D) 169.5) 161.46 16A7 380,04 
142.69 179.17 33.Jl 290.83 

Signific:int accounting policies (rerct nole 2) 

The accomp.1nying notes from I to SO form an inlcgral part or these Condensed Consolidated Fin:incial S1.1tcmcnts 

As per our report of even date anachcd 

for DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Charlcrcd Accoun11nts 

Firm Rcgis1ra1ion No. : 0ISl2SN 

Aund Snbranunian 
Pannc:r 
Mcmlx:nhipNo: 110815 

Nace: Densaluru 
D:11c : 07 November 2022 

For and on bchalro(the Bo.ird or Directors or 

Drookriror, J\l•1t:1Kcmc111 Scrvicu Priv:111c Limited 
(as Manascr 10 lht Brookfield India REIT) 

1~--
~1rGupt.11 

Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Pfocc: Mumbai 
Date : 07 No,•cmbcr 2022 

Sanjccv K11mar SharlQ 
Chief financial Officer 

Place: Mumbili 
Dale: 07 No,,•cmbcr 2022 

Alok Agcarwal 
ChicfExcculh·c OITiccr 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 07 No\'cmbcr 2022 

SDl'L Noid:i Toul 

(72.92) (15◄ .41) 

138.20 379.02 
(G7.3?) (99.95) 

178.58 800,88 

216,87 -118.54 

(114 .90) (28◄ . 15) 

41.28 605.80 

391.64 1.820.14 
319.72 1.665.73 



D,-ookfitld India Rc•I Estate 1·rusl 
Condensed ConsolidalC'd Fin.1ncial St:1tcmenls 
(Al l amounts ;1n: in Rupec-s mil lion •nltu oll1rrwl$c ,l•tcd) 

Additiona l disclosures u rtquird b)' raracraph 6 to Sl::0 1 circular No. CIRJIJ\1D/DF/1.46/l016 
Net Oistributllblc Cash Flows(NDCF) p11nuant lo J11idantc undtr Pllra,:raph 6 to SEDI circubr No. C IR/IJ\1D/DF/146/2016 
{ii} Cnlcuhltion of nd distribulable cash no"·s at uch Anti SP\' 

For lbc uarltr ended JO Jnnc 2012 
Sr, No, P2rtic11Jus Candor Kol&uta srrL Noid, c1or FcthlS 

I rront I (Lon) •fler tu at ptr U1tcmcnl nf r,roril and lo,;~ (st:and1lonc) (A) (22.88) O.SK "·" (63.77 ) 
Adjw;tmenl 

2 Add: Depreciation, amoniu1ion and im~irmcnl as per Statement or profit and Ion 166.48 78.07 0.66 60.70 
) Add/(Lcss): Any olhcr item of non.ash upcnsc/ non -cuh income (net or actual cash nows for these (62 .41) (32.91) (0.74) 28.01 

items), as m:1y be deemed necessary by 1he Manager. 
For example , any dccrcuc/ incrc,Hc in carrying amount of an usc:t or of ti liability rccogniz.cd in statement 
o r profit and losslinc:omc and expenditu re on mcuureincn l or1hc ::issel or the liability al rair value, in1crcn 
cost as per cfTec:tive intc:rcsl rate me thod. dcrcm:d tax, lease rents recognized on a straight line basis. etc. 

4 Add/less : Loss/gain on ule . 1ransfcr/ disposal/ liquidation or rc:al estate assets, in\'es1n,en1s (including cash 
cquivalcn1s),01her assc:IS or shares or /i nterest in Asset SPVs. 

S Add: Proceeds from sale / liquida1ionltransrcr/ disponl of real eslale assc:1s, in\'cSlmcnts (including cash 
equivalents), anets or shares of I interest in Auel Sf"Vs, adjuslcd for 1hc following: 
• Applicable c■pn:.11 gains and other tu.CJ 
• Rcla1cd dcb\S scnled or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Any acquisition 
• Directly attr ibuliblc trvlslction costs 
• Proceeds rcinvatcd or planned lo be reinvested as per REIT lltgulatioru 
• Investment in 11ny form u pennittcd under the REIT Regulations as mny be deemed necessary by lhc 
M,magcr 

6 Add: Proceeds from sale or real cs1atc assets, investments, assets or sale of shares or ,\s5el SPVs not 
distributed pursuant 10 :in earlier plan lo rc•in~•cst as per REIT Rcsub1ions, if such proceeds .uc not 
intended 10 be inveslcd sub5cquenely. 

7 Add: lnle1cst (ur otln .. -r similar paymenls) on Shucholdcr Debi (or on dcbcnlurcs or other inslmmcnls held )67.71 77.50 198.56 
by the Drookficld RE IT) char.:cd/ debited to the stalcment orp,ofit and lou. 

8 Add/(Lcss) : Other 1djus1mcn1s. including but nol limited lo net changes in seeurily depo5ils, working 218 .97 l .62 (11.39) 270.25 
capi1al, de(cncdlprcpaid income or dcfoncd/ prepaid c,cpcndi1urc, clc. 

9 Less: Any expense in 1hc nature or capi11J cxpcndilurc including capilaliz.cd interest thereon (to 1he panics (119.11) (40.76) (3.37) ( 111.22) 
other than Droolilield REIT). c1pi1alizcd overheads, etc. 

10 Add/(Lcss) : Net deb \ (rcpaymcntY drawdown/ (redcmplion) or prerercncc shares/ dcbcnlures/ any 01hcr 610.05 76.85 99.10 
such instrument/ premiums/accrued in terest/ any other oblig;tions/ liJJbili1ics cit , lo pnn ics 01hcr 11111n 
Brookfield REIT, ■s may be deemed necessary by 1hc ~tan:ii,oer. 

11 Add: Cash inOows in rcla1ion 10 cqui1y/ non-rcfundahle ndvanee!I, etc. 
12 Less: Any dividcnd5 on 01 proceeds from 1cpay.ncnts or redemplions or buy-backs or c:ipil;il 1cduc1ion or 

shucs (includ ins compUlsory convenible ins\rumenls), held by .1nyone other lhan lhe Drookficld REIT 
(ci1hcr directly or indi rcc:dy), ind any lu:es thereon (including any di ,·idend distribulion u1.x or buy bock 
distribution 1ax, elc . irapplicablc). 
Tota l 111djushacnl1 !D) 1,181.69 162.37 jlU4) 545.47 
NDCF (C) • (A+D) l . l5UI 162.95 2.17 4Al.70 

Significanl 1ccoun1i ng policies (rcrer note 2) 

The accompanying notes from 110 SO form an intcgr:il p:in of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements . 

As per our repor1 of c~·cn date 11tachcd 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Atcountanls 
Firm Registration No.: 0l512SN 

Anand Subranun~n 
ranncr 
Membcnhip No. 1108 15 
Place: DcngaluN 
Date: 07 November 2022 

For :and on behalro(thc Do:ard of Direclors of 
Drookprop M,in,i,:cmcnl Scn•icu PrivJ1.te UDtilcd 
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT) 

~y--
A11k11r Gw(lla 
Di,cclor 
DIN No. 0868 7570 
Place: Mumbai 
D.:1 1c: 07 November 2022 

S•njecv Klffllar Sl,arma 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Date· 07 Nonmbcr 2022 

Alok Agganul 
CbidExecu1ivc Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Da1e· 07 Novcmbc:r 2022 

SDl'l,Noid, To1al 

(60.31) (128.67) 

133.09 ◄ 39,00 

(53.61) ( 121 .59) 

168 .8 .1 1 12.60 

423.16 904.61 

(95.4)) (369.89) 

(160.63) 625.37 

415.41 2,290.10 
355.10 2,161.43 



Btookridd lndin Real E!tatc Trusl 
CondcnsNI Consolid:'.ltcd Financi:al Su1ttmc:nts 
(All :imoun15 arc in Ruprts million unless othrn,·isc slalcd) 

Addi1ion:II discloJutcs us nquind by r~nas:rnph 6 lo SEDI c:irc:ul;:ar No. CJR/ll\1D/DF'/1-46/2016 

Ntl Dls1ribu1:11.llc Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuanl 10 ,:uid:tnt'c undrr Par:ar:r:iph 6 to SEBI t'ircuhlr No. CIR/IMD/DF/l-i6n016 
(ii) Calculation of net distribul:1blc nsh 0o"-s :ti uc:h Asset srv 

Sr. No. ranicul:ars 

I rrofil / (L.c,ss) after lax u 11crs1n1c-mcnl of profit and loss (slandailenc) (A) 
Adjuslmtnl 

2 Add: Depreciation. amonization ;md imp:,inncrll as per S1Atcmcn1 orprolil aud loss 
3 Add/(Lcss): Any other i1em of non-cash expense/ non --cash income (nc1 of actual cash noW'S for 1hcsc items), 

as m.iy be deemed necessary l,y the M;1nager. 
For cxa.mplc., any decrease/ incrcflsc in canying amount of 1111 nsscl or or a linlJility recognised in slnlcmcnl or 
profit and loss/income auc.l cxpcm.liturc on mcasurcmcnl of 1he asscl or lhc liability at fair value, inlercsr cos.I 
as per crfcc1ivc in1crcs1 ra1c mc1hod. dcfcncd lax, lease rcnls recognised on a sir.tight line basis, c1c. 

4 Add/lcSJ: Loss/gain on sale. 1ransfer/ disposal/ liquid;nion or real cs1a1c assets, in\'cstments (including cash 
cqui\'aknts).othcr asscu or shares of /in1ercs1 in Asset SPVs. 

S Add: Proceeds from sale / liquid;uion/tnmsfcr/ disposnl of re.ii cstalc asscis, in\'tslmcnts (including e.1sh 
cqui\·alcnts), assets or shares of J interest in Asset SPVs, adjusted for the following: 
• Applicable capilal gains and otlm laxes 
• Rcla1ed debt, scnlcd ar due lo be scnled from sale proceed, 
• Any acquisition 
• Direclly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned 10 be reinvested as pct REIT Regulations 
• lnve,tmcnl in any form a, permillcd under lhe REIT Rl:gulation, a, may be deemed ncccssary by lhe 
Manager 

6 Add: Proceeds from s.1lc or real es1a1c assets, in\'c,tmcnls, assets .or sale or shares of Assc.t SPVs not 
dis1ribu1ed pursu:ml 10 an earlier phm to rc-in\'CS1 as per REIT Rcguln1ions. irsuch proceeds arc no1 intended 
10 be invcs1ed subst(lucn1ly. 

7 Add: lnlcrcst (or olhcr similar payments) on Shareholder Debt (or on debentures or other instrumcn1s held by 
lhc Brookfield REIT) charged/ debited 10 1hc s1a1emcn1 ofproli1 and loss. 

II Add/(Lcss): OIiier adjustments, including, bu1 not limi1cd. 10 net changes in sccuriry dcposils, \\'Orlcing c:.apital, 
deferred/prcpiid income or dcfcncd/ prepaid expenditure, Cle. 

9 Less: Any expense in lhc nalurc or capi1al cxpcndi1urc including c.npilaliz.c.d inlL-rcsl thereon (to lhc panics 
other lhan Brookfield REIT). c.,pilalised ovcrhe:ads, clc. 

10 Add/(L..css): Net deb\ (rcpnymcnt)/ dr;,wdown/ (redemption) of preference shares/ dcbcnlurcs/ ;u1y olhcr such 
inS1rumcnt/ premiums/accrued imercst/ any 01l1er oblicalions/ liabili1ics etc., 10 panics otl1cr lhan Brookfield 
REIT. as may be deemed necessary by the Monascr. 

11 Add: Cash inOows in rda1ion 10 cqui1y/ non-rcru11d.1ble ad\'anccs. clc. 
12 Less: Any di\-idcnds on or proceeds from rcpayi.ncnts or rcdcmp1ions or buy-b::i.cks or c.ipitol rcdue1ion of 

shares (including compulsory convertible instnnnaus). held by anyone otl,cr 1han the Brookfield REIT 
(either directly or indirectly) • .ind any laxes thereon (including any dividend distribu1ion tax or buy back 
di.c.tribulion tax. etc., if iipplicalJlc). 

Toe.al adjustmrnl5 (0) 

NDCf' (C) ~ (A+IIJ 

SignifiC.lnl accow1ti11g policies (refer note 2) 

For lhc quarter ended JO Scpftn1brr 2021 
Condor Kolkato SPPL Nolda CIOP Fcs1u, 

(129.70) (35.44) 13.99 ( 157.60) 

164 .44 

(48.97) 

(109.18) 

(8-1.03) 

229.33 

905,65 

775.95 

116.50 

69.26 

(56.73) 

62.34 

248,99 
213,SS 

0.22 
1.45 

12 .55 

(0.09) 

14.13 
28.12 

6-1.26 
58.28 

256.94 

71.23 

(0.03) 

51.08 

507.76 
JS0.16 

The accompanying, notes from I lo SO fonn an intcs,al pan of these Condensed Consolidated Financial S1atemcms. 

As per our rcpon of e\'cn date a!lachcd 

For DELOllTE HASKINS & st:LLS 
Chartered Accounumts 
Finn Regislration No.: 01512SN 

Anand Subramnnian 
Panncr 
Meml,c:r.;hip No: 110815 

Place: Dengaluru 
Dale: 07 Novcmbcr 2022 

For and on bchalfoflhc Bo;ird orDircclors or 
llroo"prop Man1e:tmrn1 Srnirrs Private Umilrd 
(as Man:igcr 10 1hc Brookfield lndi::1 REIT) 

AnkurGuptn 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 07 November 2022 

S:mjecv Kumar Sh:11nn.1 
CIUcf financial officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Daie: 07 November 2022 

AlokAunn.111 
Chief cxccuti\'C officer 
Ploe<:: Mw,1b1i 
Da1e: 07 November 2022 

Tolol 

(308.75) 

JOO.Of 
(2.71) 

1,127,5() 

(140.88) 

342.75 

1,676.53 
1,367.78 



Brookfield l ndUI Rul Eslalc T r usl 
Condc11nd Consolid■ lcd Financial Sla lca1cn1S 
(All amonnls arc in Rurcrs mill ion u nltss olhtn4·ist sta led) 

Additio11;1I d isclosures as rc-qu irff by r aragnirh 610 SEDI circula r No. CIRJ I/\IDIDFl l -t6/2016 
Net Disrributablc Cash flow s (NDC F) pursn:anl to ,:11idancc 1111dtr l'::1t:1~raph 6 10 SEBI C'ir( ular No. CI R/I MDIDF/1-16/2016 
(ii) Calcula tion of ncl d i11r ilm1ablc ush nows al rad, Asset Sl'V 

For lbc h:alf 2:CJ1 r ended JO St(!lcn1bcr 1012 
Sr. No. rarlirnlars Candor Kolkal:a srrLNoida c1or Fcslus 

I Profit/ (Loss) ar1cr ta,; H rcr s tatement of profic and loss (standalon~) (A) (49.72) 18.29 34.56 (152.98) 
Adjustmcnl 

2 Add; Dc1>rcci11ion, :unoniza1ion and imr.ainncnl .is rer St.ilcmcnl of profit :mJ loss 268.48 154.67 I 37 122.21 
l Add/(Less): Any other ilcm of non-c1sh cxrcnsc/ non -cash income (net of actual c.,sh Oows for lhcsc ( 100.97) (4•1 .)2) 1.95 42.80 

ilcms), as may be deemed necessary by lhe Manager. 
For ex:1.mple, any dcc:rc:isc/ incrusc in carrying amounl of an .11net or of .J li.11bili1y recognized in slatcment 
orp,ofit and lon/inco1nc and expenditure on mcuurcmen1 of1hc asscl or 1hc liabi li1y al fair value , interest 
cos1 as per effective in1cn:s1 ~ le me1huJ. defc:rJcd lax, lease reuls rccosnizcd on a uraishl line basis, etc. 

4 Add/kss : Lon/gai n on s:,, lc. transfer/ disposal/ liquida1ion of real cs1:i1c .assets, in\'eSlmcnu (including cash 
equi\•.a lcnts),01hcr aueu or shares or /i nlcrcsl in Auel SPVs. 

S Add: Proceeds from sale / liqui dalion/uansfer/ dispos.il or real estate .:use ls, im14:slmcn1s (including cash 
equiv:1 lcn1s), aucls or sli.ucs or / i111cren in Assel SP Vs, 1djustcd for the followinc: 
• Applic:.1blc upit&I aains and other taxes 
• RcJ11cd debts set1led or due to be settled from sale proceeds 
• Any acquisition 
• Directly ottribuLablc transaction cost, 
• Proceeds Rinvestcd or planned to be rt:invatcd &1 per REIT Regulations 
• Investment ia any form a, permitted under the REIT Regulations as m.ay be deemed necessary by the 
t,,bnagcr 

6 Add. Proceeds from ulc of re.11 cslale assets, investments, assets or sale of shares o f Asset SPVs not 
distribu1cd pursuanl 10 an earlier plan 10 re-invest as per REIT Regulations , ir such proceeds :ire not 
in1cnded lo be in\·csted !iubscquenlly. 

7 Add: ln1crcst (or other similar 1>aymcnts) on Shareholder Debi (or on dcbcnlures or other instrumcnls held 720.9) 154 .19 )90.95 
by Ilic Brookfield Rr;fT) charged/ debited lo 1he slatement orprofi l and loss . 

8 Add/(Less): Other adjuslmcnts, incl uding but not limited to net changes in securily deposits, working )42.16 ()8 4)) 2.84 ll6.5S 
capi1al, deferred/prepaid income or defcncdl prepaid exrcndilurc, clc . 

9 Less : Any expe nse in lhc nature or npilal expcndhurc including capi1:ilized interest thereon (lo the p:inies ( 148.Jl) (19.85) (4 .5ll (210.96) 
olhcr th:i n Orooklicld REIT). capilalizcd O\·crhcads, etc. 

10 Add/(Lcss) Ncl deb! (rcpil)'fflentV dr.awdown/ (redemption) of !)refe rence sh:ircs/ debentures/ An)' olher 968.99 l ll.57 203.96 
such inslrumenl/ premi ums/accrued interest/ any other obli,g11ions/ liabi lities c1c., 10 panics other than 
Orooklicld REIT, as may be: dcemtd necessary by the Manager. 

11 Add : Cash inflows in n: l:11ion 10 equity/ non-rerund:1blc advances . c1c. 

12 l.ess : Any dividends on or rrocccds from rc:1,aymtuls or redemptions or bu)••baeks or capital reduction or 
shares (including compulsory con\•eniblc instruments). held by anyone olher 1han the Brookfield REIT 
(cilher directly or indirectly). and any uxes lhcrcon (including any dividend distribution tax or buy back 
disuibu1ion lax, c1c .. if applicable). 
Total adjuslNCnts !DJ 2,051.22 323.83 1.0 925.5 1 
NDCF (Cl E (A+DJ 1,00BO 342.12 36.19 712.53 

Signific.ant accounting policies (rcrcr note 2) 

The accompanying no1es rrom I lo SO form an integral p:ir1 a r 1tiesc Condenud Consolidated Financial S111.tcments. 

As per our report of even date anached 

For DELOITTE IIASKINS & S ELLS 
Char1crcd Accoun1an1s 
Finn Rcgis1ra1ion No.: OIS l2SN 

Anand Subununian 
P.anncr 
Membership No: I IO!IS 
Place: Dengalu11.1 
O.ate: 07 November 2022 

For and on behalf of the 80.1rd of Di rce1on or 
Drook11 rop Mana,:cmr nl Stnoicu Priult Li,uit cd 
(11~ Manager to 1hc Brookfield India REIT) 

1-,Ji--
~urGupt:i 

Direc1or 
DIN No. 08687510 
Plac:.c: Mumbai 
Orne: 07 November 2022 

c . 
~--:--

Sanjccv Kumar Shn11U 

Chief Financial Offi cer 
Pince: Muml.lai 
l)ah:: 07 No\'cmber 2022 

Alok Aggnrwal 
ChicfExecu1h·e Officer 
Place: Mumbili 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

SDPL Noid• Total 

(IJJ.ll) (283.08) 

271.29 818.02 
(121.00) (221.54) 

34 1 .◄ I 1,613.48 

640 .0J 1,323.15 

(2 10 ))) (654.04) 

( I 19.Jl) 1,23 1.11 

I OI .OS 4,110.14 
674.82 J,827.16 

ol<.fie/0' 

fa 
0 1e1,S 



Brookfield lndi.1 Real ESlate Trusr 
Condensed Consolidated Fin:anci;;al Statements 
(All :amounts .urc in RupttS million anlC"is otherwise stated) 

Addilional disclosures ,s required by Paragraph 6 lo SERI circular No. CIR/IMDIDF/14612016 
Ncl Distributable Cash Flo,.•s (NDCI') pursu•nt lo guidance under Paragraph 6 lo SEBI circular No. CIR/IMDIDF/14612016 
(ii) Calcul,tion of ncl distributable cash Bows al each Asset SPV 

Sr. No. P:1rticul:1rs 

I l'rofil I (Loss) after tu as 1,cr st•lemcnt of profit and lo,s (standalone) (A) 
Adjustment 

2 Add : Dcprccia1io11, amortiulion and impainncnt as per S1atcmcnt ofprolil and loss 
3 Add/(Lcss): Any other item of non--c..,sh expense/ non --cash income (net of actual cash flows fo1 these 

items), ,s may be deemed necessary by the Mana£cr. 
For example, any decrease/ increase in c::mying amount of an asset or of a liability rccob'nizcd in statement 
of profit :md loss/income :md expenditure on measurement of lhc asset or lhc liability at fair value. intcresl 
cost as per effective imcrcsl ralc mclhod, deferred rnx. lease rcnls recognized on a straighl line b;:JSis, etc. 

4 Add/less: Loss/gain on sale. transfer/ dis1>0sal/ liquidation of real estate assels, i1wc.°'l111t:111s (inclm.lins cash 
cqui"alenls),other assets or shares of /interest in Asset SPVs. 

5 Add: Proceeds from sale / liquidation/lransfcr/ disposal of real estate aS5cts, investmt:nts (including cash 
equivalenls), assets or shares of/ interest in Asset SPVs, adjus1cd for lhe following : 
• Applicable capilal gains and other taxes 
• Related debts settled or due to be scnled from sale proceeds 
• Any acquisition 
• Directly attributable transaction costs 
• Proceeds reinvested or planned lo be reinvested as per REIT Regulations 
• Investment in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations as may be deemed necessary by the 
Manager 

6 Add: Proceeds from sale or real cs.late asscls, invcslmcnts. asscls or sale of shares or Asscl SPVs not 
dislribulcd pursuant 10 an earlier pl:rn to re-invest as per REIT Regulations, if such proceeds arc 1101 . 

intended to be invested subsequently. 
7 Add: Interest (or other similar payments) on Shareholder Debt (or on dcbcnlures or other instruments held 

by the Brookr.eld REIT) charted/ debi1cd lo the statement ofpror.1 and loss. 
8 Addl(Lcss): Olher adjustmenls, including but not limited to nel changes in sccurily deposits, working 

capilal, defcned/prepaid income or deferred/ prepaid expcndilurc, clc. • 
9 Less: Any expense in 1hc nature of capi1al cxpcndilurc including capitalized inlcrcst !hereon (to the parties 

01her 1han Brookfield REIT). capilalizcd overheads, clc. 
IO Add/(Lcss): Nel debl (repaymcnl)I drawdown/ (rcdcmplion) of preference shar<s/ dcbcnlurcs/ any olher 

such ins1rumcn1/ premiums/accrued interest/ :my other obliga1ions/ liabilities etc. , to panics other 1han 
Brookr.eld REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager. 

11 Add: Cash in0ows in rela1ion lo equi1yl non-refundable advances, etc. 
12 Less: Any dividends 011 or proceeds from rcpa)'111en1s or redemptions or buy-backs or capital reduction of 

shares (including compulsory conver1ible instruments), held by anyone 01hcr lhan lhe Brookr.eld REIT 
(cilhcr direclly or indirectly), and any laxes thereon (including any dividend distribution tax or buy back 
dis1ribu1ion tax, etc., if applicable). 
Tot•I adjustments (B) 
NOCF (C) = (A+U) 

For the hall year ended JO September 2021 
Candor Kolkala Sl'PL Noida CIOI' Festus 

(210.78) (72.62) 5.0J (285.62) 

330.60 
(82.38) 

1,511.42 

687.03 

(125.37) 

229.33 

2.550.63 
2.ll9.85 

142.38 
(16.90) 

234 .67 

121.16 

(149.16) 

150.&I 

482.96 
410.34 

0.42 
1.27 

70.22 

(0.80) 

71.11 
76.14 

128.51 
112.53 

506.77 

(38.44) 

(0.11) 

51.08 

760.]4 
474.72 

'NDCF for lhc half year includes NDCr- for lhe period 08 February 2021 to 31 March 2021 amounting lo Rs. 759.47 million which has been included in olher adjustmenl. 

Significant accounting policies (refer 1101c 2) 
The accompanyinc notes from I to 50 fonn an integral part oflhesc Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
As per our report of even dale a1tachcd 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Char1,red AccounlanlS 
r-inn Re~istration No.: 015125N 

AnantJ Subramanian 
Partner 
Membership No: 110815 
Place: Bengaluru 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Brookprop Manngcmcnf Services Privnte Limited 
(as Mana£cr to the Brookfield India REIT) ~-

~urGupta 
Director 
DIN No. 08687570 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 No\'cmbcr 2022 

SanjCC\o' Kumar Sharma 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place: Mumbai 
Da1c: 07 November 2022 

Alok Ag~•rwal 
Chief Execulivc Ofr.cer 
Place: Mumbai 
Dale: 07 November 2022 

Total 

(563.99) 

601.91 

14.52 

2,252.86 

8]9.97 

(275.44) 

431.22 

3,865.04 
J.JOl.05 





Drookfirld India Real Estalt Trmt 
Condcnsrd Cc111olidakd Financial S1alcmcnlS 
(All ~•nounts ;uc in Rupees million unlr!'l's othu,,·l.-.c !l;tlcd) 

Addilion~I disclosures :n required b)' ru:a1:npl1 6 to SEBI circular- No . CIU/JMD/DFJl~6/l016 
Ncl Distribulablc: Cash Flows (NDCF) rrnrrnanl to ,:uidancc undt"r Pan11tnph Ci lo SEBI cirn1h1r No. CIRJIJ\11)/01:/l.(6/2016 

(ii) Calcublion o(nd dis:fribul:ablc cash Rows :u cnth Asset SPV 

Sr. No. Pulicnlars 

I Profit/ (Loss) aflcr tn u per sfatcrMnl or profit and loss (slandalouc) (A) 
AdjnSlmcnl 

2 Add . Depreciation. amor1iz.a1ion and impairment u per S1.1.tcmcnt of profit and loss 

3 Addl(Lcss): Any 011,cr i1cm of non-cash expense/ non -cash income (net of actual cash nows for these 

i1cms), as m:'ly be deemed ncccssery by Ille t\,f:m:iccr . 
For example, :iny decrease/ increase in carrying amount or .:m asset or or a liabili1y recogniz.cd in slalemcnl 

or profil and loss/income and c)(rcnditurc on mc:nurcmcnl nf1he assc1 or the liabilit)' al fair value. interest 
cosl as per effective intcrcsl rate mclhod. defem:d lax , lease rcnls recognized on a straight line basis, clc , 

4 Add/less: Loss/g.:iin on sale . 1randcrl disposal/ liquid.11ion of real ern,tc a.sscts. invcslmcnu (including cash 

cquiv.1lcn1s),01hcr asse1s or shares of /in1cres1 in Assc1 SPVs. 
5 Add· Proceeds from sale I lif1uida1ion/1ransfcr/ dispos:sl of real c:slalc auc1s. in,·eslmcnts (including cash 

cqui"•alcnu), ;uscts or sh:m:s or/ interc.51 in Auel SPVs . .adjusted for the followiny : 
• Applicable c.apital gains and other tu.cs 
• Related debts settled or due to be sc1tlcd frum sale proccccb 
• Any acqui,ition 

• Directly attribulablc transaction costs 
• Proceeds rcin~csted or planned lo be reinvcalcd as per ROT Regulations 
• Investment in any form a., pemlined under the REIT Regulations as may be deemed necessary by the 
Ma11::1gcr 

6 Add: Proceeds from ule or re.a.I cs1a1c aucts. in\'cSlmcnu, assets or s::1lc of shares or Asset SPVs no1 

distribu1cd pursuant lo an earlier plan 10 re•invcst as pc, Rf.IT Rcgula1ions, if such proceeds arc nol 
intended 10 be im·cs1cd subscqucnlly. 

1 Add: lnlcrcsl (or otlu:r siniil.;u p:iyrncnlS) on Sharcholdcr Debt (or on debentures or other inslrumenls held 
by lhc OrooUicld REIT) chari;cd/ debited lo 1hc s1atcmcnt or profit and loss 

6 Add/(Len): Other adjustmen1s, including bul nol limited 10 net eh3ni;cs in sccuril)' deposils. worl.i,; c 

capi1al, dcfcrrcd/prep::1id income or deferred/ prepaid expenditure, etc.• 
9 Less : Any expense in 1hc nature of capital e)(pcndi1urc including Ci1pi1ali2.cd intcresl !hereon (to 1hc panics 

olher lhan Orookfield REIT). capi1ali1ed O\'Crhe1ds, clc. 

IO Add/(Lcss): Net debt (repayment)/ drawdown/ (redemption) or preference shares/ debenlurcs/ ony 01hcr 
such instrument/ premiums/accrued interest/ any 01hcr oblisnlions/ liabili1ics etc ., to par1ics other than 

Brookfield REIT, .ts may be deemed ncecSSaf)' by the Manager. 
11 Add : Cash innows in relation 10 cqui1y/ non-refundable .ad"·anccs. c1c. 

12 Less J\ny dividends on or proceeds from repayments or rcdcmplions or buy-bac~s or apital rcduclion of 
sh.arcs (includinc compulfory con,·cniblc inslrumcnts). held by anyone oll1cr 1h.:m 1he Drookficld REIT 
(ci1hcr c.lircc1ly or indircc1ly), :,,nd any 1ues 1hcrcon (including ony dividend c.lis11ibution lax or buy b::1cl,; 
dis1ribu1ion tax, clc ., ir applicable). 
Tofal adj11Sln1cnl1 (D) 

Candor Kolk.11:1 

(SU.8~) 

671.80 
(255 .18) 

2,722.64 

59).47 

(2)8 .70) 

ll .365 .05 

15.859.08 
15.JH.2J 

For lhe ve:ar rndcd l I March 2021 
srrL Noid• 

(11,.14) 

290.86 
(51.29) 

440.99 

187.52 

()79.08) 

1,592 IS 

2,081.15 

CIOr 
J9.00 

1.09 
2.18 

78.7) 

(3 .02) 

7U8 
117.98 

Festus 

(55U6) 

156.24 
197 )) 

966.92 

(~6.14) 

(84.28) 

1,808.50 

).098.57 
2,543.91 

SDPLNoid11 Tot:al 

(14.18) (l,164.5J) 

97.l2 1.Jl7.JI 
(105.47) (212.4J) 

122.87 4,l5J.42 

5.980.70 6,794.28 

(110.67) (915.75) 

(5 ,627.J8) 10,IJI.Jl 

257.J7 21.J75.15 
2U.49 20,210.~2 

•NDCF for the yc.ar end inc JI March 2022 includes NDCF ror lhc period OS February 2021 to 31 Mnrch 2021 amoun1ing 10 Rs . 759 47 million which has been included in olher adjustment. 

Sicnificanl accountinc f>Olicici (refer note 2) 
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

Oreanization structure 

The interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements ('Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements') comprise financial statements of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
('Brookfield India REIT or 'Tmst') and its subsidiaries namely Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited ('SPPL Noida'), Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Stmctures Private Limited ('Candor 
Kolkata'), Festus Properties Private Limited ('Festus'), Seaview Developers Private Limited ('SDPL Noida') and Candor India Office Parks Private Limited ('CIOP') (individually referred to 
as 'Special Purpose Vehicle' or ' SPY' and together referred to as 'Brookfield India REIT Portfolio companies' or 'Group'). The SPVs are companies domiciled in India. 

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the ' Settlor') has set up the Brookfield India Real Estate Trust on 17 July 2020, as an irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, 
under the provisions of the Indian Tmsts Act, 1882 and the Tmst has been registered with SEBI as a Real Estate Investment Tmst on 14 September 2020 under Regulation 6 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Tmsts) Regulations, 2014. The Trustee to Brookfield India Real Estate Tmst is Axis Tmstee Services Limited (the 
'Trustee') and the Manager for Brookfield India Real Estate Tmst is Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the 'Manager'). 

The objectives of Brookfield India REIT is to undertake activities in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI REIT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of 
Brookfield India REIT is to own and invest in rent or income generating real estate and related assets in India with the objective of producing stable and sustainable distributions to 

Unitholders. 

Activities during the period ended 31 March 2021: 

Brookfield India REIT acquired the following SPVs by acquiring all the equity interest held by the Sponsor and certain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 42) on 08 February 2021. In 
exchange for these equity interests, the above shareholders have been allotted 127,892,403 Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at Rs. 275/- each. 

Brookfield India REIT went public as per its plan for Initial Public Offer of Units after obtaining the required approvals from the relevant authorities. The Units were allotted to the 

successful applicants on 08 Febmary 2021 and 11 Febmary 2021. 

All these Units were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on 16 February 2021 . 

The brief activities and shareholding pattern of the SPVs are provided below: 

Name of SPY 

SPPL Noida 

Candor Kolkata 

CIOP 

Festus 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS sector in Sector 62, Noida, Uttar 
Pradesh. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/!TeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
New Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata and Sector 
21, Dundahera Guru!,>rarn 

Providing management related service 
including facilities management service and 
property management services. 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
Powai, Mumbai. 

Activities during the previous year ended 31 March 2022: 

Shareholding up to 07 February 2021 (in percentage) 

BS REP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: I 00% 
BS REP Moon CI L.P.: 0.00% (IO Shares) 

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd.: 99.97% 
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: 0.03% 

BSREP Moon Cl L.P: 99.99% 
BSREP Moon C2 L.P. · 0.01% 

Kairos Property Managers Pvt. Ltd.: 10.76% 
BSREP II India Office Holdings II Pie. Ltd.:89.24% 

Shareholding from 08 February 2021 (in 
percentage) 

Brookfield India REIT · I 00% 

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited · 0.00% 
(I share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : I 00% 

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00% 
(1 share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT : I 00% 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Stmctures Private 
Limited : 0.00% ( I share)(as nominee of Brookfield 
India REIT) 

Brookfield India REIT . I 00% 

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00% 
(I share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 

Brookfield India RE[T acquired the following Special Purpose Vehicle ('SPY') by acquiring all the equity interest held by certain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 42) on 24 January 
2022. In exchange for these equity interests, the above shareholders have been paid cash of Rs. 8,334 .57 million and allotted 15,463,6 I 6 Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at Rs . 
294.25 each. TI1ese Units were subsequently listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on O 1 February 2022. 

Name ofSPV 

Seaview 
Developers 
Private Limited 
('SDPL Noida') 

Developing and leasing of commercial real 
estate property in India, primarily in 
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in 
Sector 135, Noida, Uttar Pradesh. 

Shareholding up to 23 January 2022 (in percentage) 

BSREP India Office Holding IV Pte. Ltd .: 99.96% 
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: 0.04% 

Shareholding from 24 January 2022 (in 
percentage) 

Brookfield India REIT . I 00% 
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00% 
(I share) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT) 
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation of Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

The Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India REIT comprises : 
• the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, 
• the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income), 
• the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, 
• the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity, 
• a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Additionally, it includes the Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, the Statement of Total Returns at 
Fair Value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of Brookfield India REIT and each of the 
SPVs and other additional financial disclosures as required under the SEBI (Real Estate Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue 
in accordance with resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on behalf of the 
Brookfield India REIT on 07 November 2022. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have 
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) 
Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI circular number 
CIR/IMD/D F / 146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 ("REIT Regulations") ; Indian Accounting Standard 
(Ind AS) 34 "Interim Financial Reporting", as defined in Rule 2(l)(a) of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ('Ind AS') to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations 
(refer note l 5(a)(i) on presentation of "Unit Capital" as "Equity" instead of compound instruments 
under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation), read with relevant rules issued thereunder and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Accordingly, these condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all the information 
required for a complete set of financial statements. These condensed consolidated financial statements 
should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included in 
the Company's consolidated financial statements under IND AS for the year ended 31 March 2022. 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard 
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting 
policy hitherto in use. 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Millions, except 
when otherwise indicated. 

2.2 Significant accounting policies 

a) Basis of Consolidation 

The Brookfield India REIT consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT and 
its subsidiary SPVs as disclosed in Note l. Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is 
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to 
affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights 
that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's returns . 
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases. 

The procedure adopted for preparing Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India 
REIT is stated below: 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

i) The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using the principles of 
consolidation as per Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements. 

ii) The financial statements of the Group are consolidated by combining/adding like items of assets, 
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows. 

iii) Intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions 
between entities of Brookfield India REIT are eliminated in full. 

iv) The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and 
intragroup transactions and balances including unrealized profit are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

b) Functional and presentation currency 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is Brookfield 
India REIT's functional currency and the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
Brookfield India REIT operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded 
off to nearest million except unit and per unit data. 

c) Basis of measurement 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except 
for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained 
in the accounting policies below. 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

d) Use of judgments and estimates 

The preparation of Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS), to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT 
regulations, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements is included in the following notes: 

(i) presentation of"Unit Capital" as "Equity" in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead 
of compound instrument (Note 15) 

(ii) determination of useful life of investment property (Note 2.2 (g)) 
(iii) determination of recoverable amount I fair value of investment property (Note 2.2 (g), and 

Note 43), Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value, Statement of Total Return at Fair Value 
(iv) determination of lease term (Note 2.2 (n)) 
(v) recognition/ recoverability of deferred tax assets (Note 2.2 (p) and Note 6 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

e) Current versus non-current classification 

Brookfield India REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet 
based on current/ non-current classification: 
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the nonnal operating cycle; 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other assets as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

- it is expected to be settled in nonnal operating cycle of Brookfield India REIT; 
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 
- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
- the Brookfield India REIT does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 

at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/ liabilities respectively. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified-as non-current assets and liabilities. 

t) Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, Brookfield India REIT takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability 
and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or 
liability at the measurement date. 

Inputs to fair value measurement techniques are disaggregated into three hierarchical levels, which are 
directly based on the degree to which inputs to fair value measurement techniques are observable by 
market participants: 

• Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at 
the measurement date. 

• Level 2: Inputs ( other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly 
observable for the asset or liability through correlation with market data at the measurement date 
and for the duration of the asset's or liability's anticipated life. 

• Level 3: Inputs are unobservable and reflect management's best estimate of what market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration is 
given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs in detennining 
the estimate. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

Fair value measurement framework is adopted by Brookfield India REIT to determine the fair value of 
various assets and liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value. 

g) Investment properties 

Recognition and measurement 

Investment property consists of commercial properties which are primarily held to earn rental income 
and commercial developments that are being constructed or developed for future use as commercial 
properties. The cost of commercial development properties includes direct development costs, import 
duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes, borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
development and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its 
intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 

Equipment and furnishings physically attached and integral to a building are considered to be part of 
the investment property. 

Subsequent expenditure and disposal 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the investment property's carrying amount only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Brookfield India 
REIT and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of the assets not ready for its intended 
use before such date, are disclosed as investment property under development. All other repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. 

Any gain or loss from disposal of an investment property is recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

Depreciation 

Investment property is depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The 
useful lives of the assets have been determined by management after considering nature of assets, the 
estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and 
maintenance support. 

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

The useful lives of the investment property are tabulated as below: 

Particulars Useful Life (Years) 
Buildings 60 
Plant and Machinery 4-15 
Furniture and Fixtures 5 - 12 
Electrical fittings 4-15 

Diesel generator sets 15-25 

Air conditioners 15 
Office Equipment 5 - 12 
Kitchen Equipment 5 
Computers 3-6 
Right of Use (Leasehold Land) As per lease term 

The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the statement of net assets at fair value. Fair values 
are determined by an independent registered valuer who holds a recognized and relevant professional 
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being 
valued. 

h) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises the purchase price, including import duties 
and other non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 
working condition for its intended use. 

If significant parts ofan item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on 
initial recognition expenditure to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are required to 
be identified as a separate component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul 
expenditure. 

Subsequent expenditure and disposal 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the property, plant and equipment's carrying amount only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the 
Brookfield India REIT and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of a property, plant and equipment is 
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. 

Any gain or loss from disposal of a property, plant and equipment is recognized in Statement of profit 
and loss. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

Depreciation 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful 
lives. The useful lives of the assets have been determined by management after considering nature of 
assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of 
replacement and maintenance support. 

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which 
asset is ready for use (disposed off). 

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over primary period of lease or the useful life of the asset, 
whichever is lower. 

Estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are tabulated as follows: -

Pa rtic u la rs Useful Life (Years) 

Buildings 60 

Plant and Machinery 5-20 

Furniture and Fixtures 3-14 

Electrical fittings 10 

Air conditioners 3-15 

Office Equipment 4-15 

Kitchen Equipment 5 

Vehicle 8 

Computers 3- 14 

Computer Software 5 

Intangible assets comprise purchase of software. Intangible assets are carried at cost and amortized over 
a period of 5 years, which represents the period over which the Brookfield India REIT expects to derive 
economic benefits from the use of the assets. 

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period and the amortization period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any. 

i) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Brookfield India REIT assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that a non­
financial asset other than deferred tax assets may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, Brookfield India REIT estimates the asset's recoverable 
amount. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. 

An impairment loss is recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU 
on a pro rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that are 
largely independent from other assets and groups. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

Impairment losses are recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, unless 
it reverses previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity. 

Goodwill (if any) arising from a business combination is allocated to CG Us or group of CGUs that are 
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and 
its value in use. ln estimating value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 
transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested 
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. 

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill 
is not subsequently reversed. ln respect of other assets, such a reversal is made only to the extent that 
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

j) Foreign currency transactions 

ltems included in the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT are measured using the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the Brookfield India REIT operates ('the functional 
currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Brookfield India 
REIT functional and presentation currency. 

Foreign currency transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or 
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting period end exchange rates are generally 
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

k) Errors, estimates and change in accounting policies 

The Brookfield lndia RE[T revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in 
Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable information to the users of the 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. Changes in accounting policies are applied 
retrospectively, wherever applicable. 

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets 
or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) of change. Discovery of errors 
results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity 
of the earliest prior period in which the error is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period 
presented are also restated. 

I) Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
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(i) Financial Assets - Recognition 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (except for trade receivables which are initially 
measured at transaction price) plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

• Debt instruments at amortized cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization 
is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss . 

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
the financial assets, and 
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent S PPL 

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting 
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 
However, interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss is 
recognized in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gains or losses 
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest 
earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. 

• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Brookfield India REIT may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets 
amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so 
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting 
mismatch'). The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in Statement of profit or loss. 
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• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS I 09 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 
held for trading are classified as at FYTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Brookfield India REIT 
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the 
fair value. The Brookfield India REIT makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Brookfield India REIT decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYOCI, then all fair value 
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the 
amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Brookfield 
India REIT may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

(ii) Financial Assets - Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognized (i.e., removed from the Brookfield India REIT balance sheet) when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
• The Brookfield India REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under 
a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Brookfield India REIT has transferred substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Brookfield India REIT has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets 

Brookfield India REIT recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 
financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables 
with no significant financing component and lease receivables is measured at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable and lease 
receivables, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime 
ECL. The amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting 
date, is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Trade Receivables are generally written off against the allowance only after all means of collection have 
been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. 

(iv) Financial liabilities - Recognition and Subsequent measurement 

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, these are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate ('EIR') method or at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings 
including bank overdrafts. 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
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• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of profit or loss include financial liabilities held for 
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through Statement of 
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose 
of repurchasing in the near tem1. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered 
into by the Brookfield India REIT that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships 
as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless 
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through Statement of profit or loss 
are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS I 09 are 
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own 
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains or losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of 
profit and loss. However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the cumulative gains or losses within 
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. 
The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or 
loss. 

• Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Financial liabilities that are not held for trading, or designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and 
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through 
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized cost 
of a financial liability. 

(v) Financial liabilities - Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been 
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss as other 
gains/(losses ). 

(vi) Income/loss recognition 

• Interest income 

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While calculating 
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the effective interest rate, the Brookfield India REIT estimates the expected cash flows by considering 
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and 
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

• Borrowing costs 

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (ELR) and exchange differences 
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest 
cost. 

Borrowing costs associated with direct expenditures on properties under development or redevelopment 
or property, plant and equipment are capitalized. The amount of borrowing costs capitalized is 
determined first by borrowings specific to a property where relevant, and then by a weighted average 
cost of borrowings to eligible expenditures after adjusting for borrowings associated with other specific 
developments . Where borrowings are associated with specific developments, the amount capitalized is 
the gross borrowing costs incurred less any incidental investment income. Borrowing costs are 
capitalized from the commencement of the development until the date of practical completion. The 
Brookfield lndia REIT considers practical completion to have occurred when the physical construction 
of property is completed and the property is substantially ready for its intended use and is capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and 
charged to the Statement of profit and loss during the extended periods when the active development 
on the qualifying assets is interrupted. 

(vii) Embedded derivatives 

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS l 09 are not separated. 
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether 
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. 

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated. Derivatives embedded in 
all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded 
derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss. 

m) Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. 
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identified asset, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether: 

• the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or 
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a 
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not 
identified; 

• the Brookfield India REIT has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from 
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and 

• the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Brookfield India REIT 
has this right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and 
for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what 
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purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the 
use of the asset if either: 

As a lessee 

o the Brookfield India REIT has the right to operate the asset; or 
o the Brookfield India REIT designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for 

what purpose it will be used. 

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying 
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the 
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those 
of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Brookfield India REIT's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Brookfield 
India REIT uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

• fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate as at the commencement date; 
• amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
• the exercise price under a purchase option that the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain 

to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Brookfield India REIT is 
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease 
unless the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain not to terminate early. 

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a 
change in the Brookfield India REIT's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual 
value guarantee, or if the Brookfield India REIT changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of­
use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The Brookfield India REIT presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment 
property in 'property, plant and equipment' and lease liabilities (current and non-current) in the 
statement of financial position. 
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The Brookfield India REIT has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short­
term leases of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The 
Brookfield India REIT recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 

As a Lessor 

The Brookfield India REIT enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment 
properties. 

Leases for which the Brookfield India REIT is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. 
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

When the Brookfield India REIT is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub­
lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference 
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. 

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the 
Brookfield India REIT's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting 
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Brookfield India REIT's net investment 
outstanding in respect of the leases. 

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Brookfield India REIT applies Ind 
AS 115 to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component. 

n) Revenue recognition 

Revenues are measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of tax collected 
from customers and remitted to government authorities such as Goods and Services tax, and applicable 
service level credits, discounts or price concessions . The computation of these estimates involves 
significant judgment based on various factors including contractual terms, historical experience, 
expense incurred etc. 

i. Income from Operating lease Rentals 

Assets given under operating lease are included in investment property. Revenue recognition under a 
lease commences when the tenant has a right to use the leased asset. Generally, this occurs on the lease 
commencement date. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the relevant lease. In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and 
circumstances including renewal, termination and market conditions. 

Income from Operating Lease Rentals also includes percentage part1c1pating rents. Percentage 
participating rents are recognized when tenants' specified sales targets have been met. 
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ii. Income from maintenance services 

Income from maintenance services consists of revenue earned from the provision of daily maintenance, 
security and administration services, and is charged to tenants based on the occupied lettable area of the 
properties. Income from maintenance services is recognized when the entity has satisfied its 
performance obligation by delivering services as per terms of contract entered into with tenants. 

o) Employee benefits 

Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity and compensated absences. 

Provident fund 

The Brookfield India REIT 's contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plans 
and is charged as an expense in statement of profit and loss based on the amount of contribution required 
to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. 

Gratuity 

Brookfield India REIT has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined post-employment benefits plan 
covering eligible employees. The present value of the defined benefit liability and the related current 
service cost and past service cost are measured using projected unit credit method; with actuarial 
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and 
losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit to other comprehensive 
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 
are not reclassified. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss when the plan amendment or 
curtailment occurs, or when the Brookfield India REIT recognizes related restructuring costs or 
termination benefits, whichever is earlier. 

Short-term employee benefits 

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the 
services rendered by employees are recognized during the period when the employees render the 
service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected 
to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related 
service. 

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under: 

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase 
their entitlement of future compensated absences; and 
(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. 

Other Long-term employee benefits 

The employees of the Brookfield India REIT are entitled to other long term benefit by way of 
accumulating compensated absences. Cost of long-term benefit by way of accumulating compensated 
absences arising during the tenure of the service is calculated taking into account the pattern of 
availment of leave. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after 
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation based on actuarial valuations as at the balance sheet 
date by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses 
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relating to long-term employee benefits are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period 
in which they arise. 

p) Taxation 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of profit and loss 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, 
in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

(i) Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current 
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the 
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') under the provisions of the Income Tax, 1961 is recognised as 
current tax in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of profit and loss. The credit available under the 
Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as a deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the Brookfield India REIT will pay normal income tax during the period for 
which MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised 
as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing 
evidence no longer exists . 

(ii) Def erred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 
Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss 
at the time of the transaction; 
Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements 
to the extent that the Brookfield India REIT is able to control the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and 
Taxable temporary differences arising on initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that 
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, Brookfield 
India REIT recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary 
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against 
which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets---unrecognised or recognised, are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer 



Brookfield [ndia Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements 

probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. Further, no deferred tax asset/liabilities 
are recognized in respect of temporary differences that reverse within tax holiday period. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Brookfield India REIT expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis 
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

q) Provisions and contingencies 

A provision is recognized when the Brookfield India REIT has a present obligation as a result of past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
control of the Brookfield India REIT or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not 
probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also 
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be 
measured reliably. The Brookfield India REIT does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its 
existence in the financial statements. 

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under 
the contract. 

r) Operating segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. 

Identification of segments: 

In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment 
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
('CODM') to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is 
a component of the Brookfield India REIT that engages in business activities from which it earns 
revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of 
the Brookfield India REIT's other components. 

Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT's structure and powers conferred to the Manager to 
Brookfield India REIT, the Governing Board of the Manager (Brookprop Management Services Private 
Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'), since they are 
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empowered for all major decisions w.r.t. the management, administration, investment, disinvestment, 
etc. 

As the Brookfield India REIT is primarily engaged in the business of developing and maintaining 
commercial real estate properties in India, CODM reviews the entire business as a single operating 
segment and accordingly disclosure requirements of Ind AS l 08 "Operating Segments" in respect of 
reportable segments are not applicable. 

s) Subsequent events 

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared after reflecting adjusting and non­
adjusting events that occur after the reporting period but before the Condensed Consolidated Financial 
Statements are authorized for issue. 

t) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits 
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

u) Earnings per unit 

Basic earnings per unit are calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to unit 
holders of the Brookfield India REIT by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the 
period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the profit or loss for the period attributable to 
unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT and the weighted average number of units outstanding during 
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential units. 

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have 
been issued at a later date. ln computing diluted earnings per unit, only potential equity units that are 
dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included. 

v) Business Combination/Asset Acquisition 

The amendment to Ind AS I 03 Business Combinations clarifies that while businesses usually have 
outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. 
To be considered a business an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an 
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. 

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any 
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments also introduce 
additional guidance that helps to determine whether a substantive process has been acquired. 

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of 
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional concentration test, 
the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross 
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets. 

Brookfield India REIT has opted to apply optional concentration test in respect of acquisition of SPVs. 
Refer Note 44 of the financial statements for details. 
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w) Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash flows 

Condensed Consolidated Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby Profit/ (loss) 
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing 
activities of the Group are segregated. For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits. 

x) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Condensed 
Consolidated Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right 
to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. 

y) Cash distribution to Unitholders 

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the 
distribution is authorized and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT Regulations, a 
distribution is authorized when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A 
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity. 

z) Income support 

The income support that is an integral part of an acquisition transaction is treated as deduction in the 
acquisition cost of such investment property. Where the right to receive the income support is spread 
over a period of time, the right to receive the income support is recognized as a financial asset at fair 
value and subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. 



Brookfield India Real E1tate Tru1t 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(AU amount& .are in Rupees millions unless otherwi.u stated) 
Notu to the Condcn.!led Con!olidated Financial Statement.I 

3 Property, plant 2nd equipment .and Intangible as1ets 

Grou block 
Balance Hat Additions during the 

Particulan 01 April 2022 period 

Auets (site) 
Air conditioner 0.07 . 
Computers 0.09 . 
Plant and machinery 0.02 
Furniture and fixrurcs 1.47 
Office eauioment 0.41 
Sub total 2.06 . 

AHet., (maintenance) 
Air conWtioner 4.32 I.SI 
Plant and machinery 126.74 15.94 
Furniture and fixtures 33.15 2.38 
Office equipment 8.38 1.64 
Electrical fittings 0.60 . 
Kitchen Equipments 0.16 
Sub total 173.35 21.47 
TOTAL 175.41 21.47 

Intangible Assets 
Softwares 0.46 -
GRAND TOTAL 175.87 21.47 

Grou block 
Balance H .at Addition., due to Additions 

Particulan 01 April 2021 assctJ during the 
acquisition* year 

Auets (•ite) 
Air conditioner 0.07 - . 
Computers 0.08 O.QI . 
Plant and machinery 0.02 . . 
Furniture and fixrure.s 1.43 0.04 
Office eauioment 0.28 0.13 
Sub total 1.88 0.18 

As.nu (maintenance) 
Air conditioner 3.11 1.28 (0.07) 
Plant and machinery 66.54 26.51 33.87 
Fumirure and fixtures 26.69 0.87 5.59 
Office equipment 4.87 0.39 3.12 
Electrical fittings 0.60 . 
Kitchen Eauinments 0.08 0.08 0.00 
Sub total 101.89 29.13 42.51 
TOTAL 103,77 29.31 42.51 

Intangible A.,,cts 

Softwares 0.46 -
GRAND TOTAL 104.23 29.31 42.51 

Deletion,! Balance as at 
Adjusbnents 30 September 2022 

0.07 
0.09 
0.02 

. 1.47 
0.41 

. 2.06 

5.83 
142.68 
35.53 
10.02 
0.60 

- 0.16 
. 194.82 
. 196.88 

0.46 

- 197.34 

Deletions/ Balance as at 
Adju,bnents 31 Much2022 

0.07 
0.09 
0.02 
1.47 
0.41 

- 2.06 

- 4.32 
(0.18) 126.74 

33.15 

- 8.38 
. 0.60 

- 0.16 
(0,18) 173.35 
(0.18) 175,41 

. 0.46 
(0.18 175.87 

Accumulated depreciation Net block 
Balance u at Charge for the Deletions/ Balance as at Balance as at Balance as at 
01 April 2022 period Adju.!ltments 30 September 2022 30 September 2022 31 M■rcb 2022 

0.07 . 0.07 . 
0.08 . . 0.08 0.01 0.01 
0.02 . . 0.02 . 
1.21 0.14 . 1.35 0.12 0.26 
0.29 0.04 . 0.33 0.08 0.12 
1.67 0.18 . 1.85 0.21 0.39 

0.79 0.52 1.31 4.52 3.53 
8.98 5.73 14.71 127.97 117.76 
5.96 2.72 8.68 26.85 27.19 
2.99 1.13 . 4.12 5.90 5.39 
0.08 0.03 0.11 0.49 0.52 
0.04 0.03 . 0.07 0.09 0.12 

18.84 10.16 . 29.00 165,82 154.51 
20.51 10.34 . 30,85 166.03 154.90 

0.33 0.12 0.45 0.01 0.13 
20.84 10.46 . 31.30 166.04 155.03 

Ac.cumulated depreciation Net block 
Balance u at Charge for the Deletions/ Balance a., at Balance as at Balance as at 
01 April 2021 year AdjustmentJ 31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

. 0.07 . 0.07 . 0.07 
0.08 . 0.08 0.01 0.08 
0.02 . 0.02 0.02 

0.09 1.12 . 1.21 0.26 1.34 
0.00 0.29 . 0.29 0.12 0.28 
0.09 1.58 - 1.67 0.39 1.79 

0.07 0.72 - 0.79 3.53 3.04 
1.02 7.96 . 8.98 117.76 65.52 
0.89 5.07 . 5.96 27.19 25.80 
0.52 2.47 - 2.99 5.39 4.35 
0.DI 0.07 . 0.08 0.52 0.59 
0.00 0.04 - 0.04 0.12 0.08 
2.51 16.33 . 18.84 154.51 99.38 
2.60 17.91 . 20,51 154.90 101.17 

0.04 0.29 0.33 0.13 - 0.42 
2.64 18.20 . 20.84 15:,,o, h l< tiA I ~<.11.59 

( 



Brookfidd India Real ~ttte Tnut 
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(All amounts an: in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

4 Investment property 

Particulan Balance As al 
01 Anril 2022 

.A.uets ( constructed), pven/upected to be liven on 
operatinc; leue 

Freehold land 25,580.44 
Buildings# 104,244.70 
Air conditioners 1,923.86 
Electrical fittings & equipment 1,262.09 
Plant and machinery 1,338.51 
Diesel generator sets 939.39 
Fwniture and fixtures 308.42 
Right of use (leasehold land) 1,129.49 
Office Equipment 18.45 
Computers 1.19 

Sub Iola! 136 746.54 
Auet1 (Cood court), c;iven/expected to be eiven on 
open.tine leue 

Air conditioner 7.05 
Fwniture & fixtures 31.08 
Plant and machinery 4.81 
Office equipment 2. 18 
Kitchen equipment 13.45 
Comouters 0.20 
Sub total 58.77 
Sub total - Investment Property 136,805.31 

Investment property • under development•• 
Capital vrork in progress 1,745.46 

Sub total - Investment Property under devdopment 1,745.46 
Tola! 138,550.77 

Gros.! block 

Addition, durin& the Deletions/ Balance A, al Balance As al 
neriod Ad'wtments 30 Sentember 2022 01 Anril 2022 

25,580.44 -
1,241.30 (374.11) 105,111.89 1,660.40 

53. 17 1,977.03 191.34 
50.57 1,312.66 183.98 
36.94 1,375.45 137.67 

3.52 942.91 107.07 
2.85 311.27 73.78 

592.07 1,721.56 8.60 
1.04 19.49 5.62 
0.97 2.16 0.41 

1.982.43 '374.lll 138 354.86 2,368.87 

- 7.05 1.00 

- 31.08 11.20 
4.81 0.68 
2.18 0.66 

13.45 2.72 
0.20 0.20 

- - 58.77 16.46 
1,982.43 (374.11) 138,413.63 2,385.33 

784.43 (1,250.61) 1,279.28 

784.43 (1.250.61 1.279.28 -
2 766.86 (1 624.72 139,692.91 2.385.33 

# Buildings net block includes Rs. 35,469.76 millions (31 March 2022: Rs. 36,071 .94 million), held under co-<levelopment agreemem as fully described in Note 36 (Capital Commitments) . 
•• The amount of Rs. 1,250.61 million shown under NDeletions/ Adjustments• represents capitalization dwing the period. 

Reconciliation for total depreciation u.pensc:: 

Total depreciation on propeny, plant and equipment for the period 
Tate.I depreciation on investment property for the period 
Less:• Depreciation during the construction period on site assets• capitalized 
Less:- Depreciation during the construction period on Right of use 0easehold land) 
Depreciation upense (or the period 

For the quarter 
ended 

30 September 1021 

5.34 
633.19 

(0.09) 

(0.87) 
637.57 

For the quarter For the haJfyear 
ended ended 

30 June 2021 JO September 2.02.l 

S.12 10.46 
686.85 1,320.04 

(0.09) (0. 18) 

(0.90) (1.77) 
690.98 1_.3_28.55 

Accumulated depreciation Net block 

Char&e for !he Deletions/ Balance A, al Balance A, at Asal 
rvriod Ad'ustmentJ 30 Senlember 2022 30 Senlember 2022 31 Marcli 2022 

- 25,580.44 25,580.44 
997.90 (64.34) 2,593.96 102,517.93 102,584.30 
113.86 305.20 1,671.83 1,732.52 

96.21 280. 19 1,032.47 1,078.11 
71.14 208.81 1,166.64 1,200.84 
59.67 166.74 776.17 832.32 
27.85 101.63 209.64 234.64 

7.58 16.18 1,705.3 8 1,120.89 
1.78 7.40 12.09 12.83 
0.22 - 0.63 1.53 0.78 

1,376.21 (64.34) 3,680.74 134 674.12 134,377.67 

0.44 - 1.44 S.61 6.05 
5.05 - 16.25 14.83 19.88 
0.30 - 0.98 3.83 4. 13 
0.27 - 0.93 1.25 1.52 
2.11 - 4.83 8.62 10.73 
0.00 0.20 - 0.00 
8.17 - 24.63 34.14 42.31 

1,384.38 (64.34) 3,705.37 134,708.26 134,419.98 

- 1,279.28 1,745.46 

- - - 1,279.28 1 745.46 
1.384.38 164.34) 3 705.37 135.987.54 136 165.44 

·~ 

*k::)% ~/4. ~ 
~ ,f!! 
~ sie"\'3~ 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Conaolidated Fillancial Statemenu 
(All amounb are in Rupees milliona unleu otherwise stated) 
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statement■ 

Particulan Balance As at 
01 April 1011 

A.Mets (constructed), given/e.xptcted to ht e;ivtn on 
operatin~ leue 

Freehold land 25,580.44 
Buildings# 70,578.81 
Air conditioners 1,209.98 
Electrical fittings & equipment 806.00 
Plant and machinery 880.66 
Diesel generator sets 651.23 
Furniture and fixtures 262.98 
Right of use (lc11Schold land) 459.96 
Office Equipment 16.87 
Comcuters 1.14 
Sub total 100.448.07 
Auets (food court), e;iven/e.xpected to be given on 
operating le.ue 

Air conditioner 7.05 
Furniture & fixtures 29.67 
Plant and machinery 4.81 
Office equipment 2.12 
Kitchen equipment 2.52 
Cornouters 0.20 
Suh total 46.37 
Sub total - lovestment Property 100,494.44 

Investment property• under development 111111 

Capital work in progress 791.74 

Sub total - Investment Property under development 791.74 
Total 101,286.18 

Gros, block 

Additions due to Additions Deletions/ 
usets acquiaition 111 durine; the Adjustmenu 

year 

-
32,927. 10 738.79 -

638.01 75.87 -
378.42 77.67 -
412.69 45. 16 -
285.95 2.21 

29.08 16.36 -
669.53 -

0.60 0.98 
0.04 0.01 

35 341.41 957.05 

1.41 

-
0.06 -
1.14 9.79 -
2.61 9.79 -

35,344.03 966.84 

1,110.75 724.77 (881.80) 

1110.75 724.77 (881.801 
36,454.78 1691,61 {881.80) 

• Above as.sets have been acquired ~ pan of SDPL Naida assets acquisition. Refer note 2.1 basis for consolidation and note 44 (ii). 

Balance As at Balance.As al 

31 March 1011 01 April 1011 

25,580.44 
104,244.70 205.04 

1,923.86 22.77 
1,262.09 30.92 
1,338.51 17.91 

939.39 12.98 
308.42 21.22 

1,129.49 0.87 
18.45 1.01 

1.19 0.06 
136 746.54 311.78 

7.05 0.13 
31.08 1.43 
4.81 0.09 
2.18 0.08 

13.45 0.17 
0.20 -

58.77 1.90 
136,805.31 314,68 

1,745.46 

I 745.46 -
138,550.77 314.68 

# Buildings net block includes Rs. 36,071.94 millions (31 March 2021 : Rs. 36,731.01 million), held under co-<lcvelopment agreemem 115 fully descnbed in Note 36 (Capital Commitments). 
•• The amount of Rs. 881 .80 million shown under "Deletions/ Adjustments" represents capitalization during the year. 

Ret:onciliatioa for total depredation e.xpen!le: 

Total depreciation on property, plant and equipment for the period 
Total depreciation on investment property for the period 
Less:- Depreciation during the construction period on site assets. capitalized 
Less:- Depreciation during the construction period on Right of use (leasehold land) 
Depreciation u.pen.se for the period/ year 

For the quaner 
ended 

JO September 2021 

4.62 
467.42 

(0.09) 

~ 
471.13 

For the half year 
eoded 

JO September 2021 

9.05 

920.06 
(0 .20) 

(1.63) 
927.28 

Accumulated deorKiation 
Charze for the 

year 

1,455.36 
168.57 
1S3 .06 
119.76 
94.09 
52.56 

7.73 
4.61 
0.35 

1,056.09 

0.87 
9.77 
0.59 
0.58 
2.55 
0.20 

14.56 
2,070.65 

-

-
2 070.65 

For the half year 
ended 

31 March 2022 

9.15 
1,150.59 

(1.38) 

(0.87) 
1,157.49 

Deletions/ 
Adjuatmenta 

-
-

-

-
-
-

For the year 
ended 

JI March 2011 

18.20 
2,070.65 

(1.58) 

Q1.Q)_ 
2,084.77 

Net block 

Balance As at Balance As at 
31 March 1021 31 March 1011 

- 25,580.44 
1,660.40 102,584.30 

191.34 1,732.52 
183.98 1,078.11 

137.67 1,200.84 
107.07 832.32 
73. 78 234.64 

8.60 1,120.89 

5.62 12.83 
0.41 0.78 

1,368.87 134 377.67 

1.00 6.05 
11.20 19.88 
0.68 4. 13 
0.66 1.52 

2.72 10.73 
0.20 0.00 

16.46 42.31 
2,385.33 134,419.98 

1,745.46 

I 745.46 
2,385.33 136,165.44 

okfie/0' 
0 

cj; -0., 
'./ 
'../. SJe\S~ 

AJ1t 
31 March 2021 

25,580.44 
70,373.77 

1,187.21 
77S.08 
862.7S 
638.25 
241.76 
459.09 

15.86 
1.08 

100 135.29 

6.92 
28.24 

4.72 
2.04 
2.35 
0.20 

44.47 
100,179.76 

791.74 

791.74 
100.971.50 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

(All .lmounts are in Rupees millions unless othen\'ise stated) 

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Slatements 

Non current financial assets - Other 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
SecuritJ deposits 
Fi.xcd deposits with banks• 
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits with banks 
Lease rent equalization .. 
To re laled par1ies (refer nolc 42) 
Finance receivables fl 

'These frxed deposits arc of restricted use being lien against state authority. 

0 Lease rent equalization arc classified as Financial asset as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage chime. 

As at Asal 

JO September 2022 JI March 2022 

555 .27 5K9.77 

2.32 2.23 
0 .04 0.04 

222.]9 166.50 

184 .22 678.79 

964.24 1,437.33 

II Finance receivables represents income support guarantee received from a related party in respect of tenancy level of investment properties ofSDPL Naida in connection with its acquisition by Brookfield India REIT (refer note 
44 (ii)), where the right lo receive the income support is spread over a period of time starting from 0 I January 2022 and ending on ) I March 2024 . TI1e income support guarantee is recognized as a financial asset at f.air value 

through profit and loss. 

Deferred tax asset (net) 
Deferred tax asset (net) 

Asat 
JO September 2022 

3,620.88 

3,620.88 

As at 
JI March 2022 

3,755.46 

3,755.46 

Tlic Group has recognized deferred tax asset of Rs. 3,230.01 million (31 March 2022: Rs , 2,921.36 million) on unabsorbed depreciation & business losses and Rs . 1,253.92 million (31 March 2022: Rs . 1.253.92 million) on MAT 
credit entitlement, considering the deferred tax liability on existjng taxable temporary differences in respective SPVs that will reverse in the future and estimated taxable income for future years . The amount of deferred tax assets 
considered realizable, however, could reduce in the near 1em1 if estimates of future ta.-..:ablc income during the carry-forward period arc reduced . 

Non-current lax assets (net) 

Advance income tax 

8 Other non-c urrent assets 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
Capital advances 
Prepaid expenses 
Balance recoverable from government authorities 

Current financial assets - Trade receivables 
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 
Trade receivables - credit impaired 
Less: loss allowance 

IO Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents 
Balance with banks : 
- in cum:nt account 
- in deposit account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 

11 Other bank balances 
Deposit account with original maturity of more than 3 months and upto 12 months• 

Asat 
JO September 2022 

2,lll .63 

2,333.6J 

Asat 
JO Seplem ber 2022 

8 .55 
113 .97 

14.46 

136.98 

Asat 
JO September 2022 

313 .07 
26 .84 

(26.84) 

313.07 

Asat 
JO September 2022 

128 .90 
2.168 .00 

2,296.90 

As at 
JO September 2022 

500.03 

500.0J 

• Tliese fixed deposits arc of restricted use being lien against debt sen.•ice rcsen.1e account, bank guarantees given to various authorities and given as security for sales tax registralion. 

As at 
JI March 2022 

2,416.27 

2,416.27 

Asat 
JI March 2022 

19.27 
142.16 

14.11 

175.54 

As at 
31 March 2022 

224.88 
68.26 

(68.26) 

224.88 

As at 
JI March 2022 

19] _6; 

1,850.00 

2,043.65 

As at 
JI March 2022 

506.49 

506.49 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated) 

Noles to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Slatements 

12 Current financial assels- Loans 

To parties other than related parties 
(Unsecured and considered doubtful) 

Advances to vendors 
Less: loss allowance 

Lo.i.ns n.:ccivablcs - cn.:dit impain:d 
Less: loss allowance 

13 C urrent financial assets - Ocher 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
To parties other than rcla1cd parties 
Security deposits 
Unbilled revenue• 

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits with banks 
Lease n.:nt equalization• 
Other n:ceivab les 
To rcla led parties (refer note 42) 

Other n:ccivabli:s 

Finance receivables fi 

•Classified as financia l asse1 as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage of time . 

Asal As at 
JO September 2022 31 March 2022 

0.36 0 .36 
(0.36) (0 .36) 

0.36 0.36 
(0.36) (0.36) 

Asat As at 

JO September 2022 JI March 2022 

0.01 0 .01 
262.69 1;9.01 

0 .90 14.37 
118 .85 51.18 
415.85 47 .39 

0.02 0.0 1 

681.22 483.34 

1,479.54 755.31 

# Finance receivables represents income suppon guarantee received from a n:lated p;:i.ny in respect often:mcy level of investment propcnics ofSDPL Naida in connection with its acquisition by Brookfo:ld India REIT (refer note 
44 (ii)). where the right to receive the income suppon is sp read owr a period of time staning from 01 January 2022 and ending on 31 March 2024 . The incomc suppon guarantee is recognized as a financial asset at fair value 
through profit a.nd loss. 

14 Other current assels 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
Advances to vendors ' 

Prepaid expenses' 
BalanC4! recoverable from govcmmcnl authorities 
OLher Advances 

• For related parties balance, n:fcr noh: 42 

15 Unit Capital 

Particulars 

As at 01 April 2021 

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quaner ended JO Ju ne 2021 

Less: DiS1ribution to Unitholdcrs for the quaner ended 30 September 2021 

Less: Distribution to Unitholdcrs for the quarter ended JI December 202 1 

Add: Reversal of issue expenses no longe r payable (refer note iv below) 

Add: Units issued on preferential basis during the year 
- pursuant to the pn:fcrential allotment, issued, subscriOCd and fully paid·up in cash (refer note ii below) 

• in exchange for equity inlen:st in SPVs (refer note iii OClow) 

Less: fapcnse incurred towards preferential allotment (refer note iv below) 

Closing balance as at JI March 2022 

As at 01 April 2022 

Less: Distribution to Unitholdcrs for the quarter ended 31 March 2022 

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022 

Closing balance as at 30 September 2022 

(1) Terms/ rights attached to Units and accountin g thereo r 

Asa l 
JO September 2022 

43.26 
191.04 
140.65 

0 .75 

375.70 

No. or Units 

302,801,601 

16,82 1,856 

15,463,616 

335,087,073 

335,087,073 

335,087,0,J 

As at 
JI March 2022 

Amou nt 

33 .01 
54.29 

IH .16 
0 .12 

222.58 

81,774.78 

(297 .05) 

(605 .60) 

(481.45) 

25.55 

4,949.ID 

4,550 .17 

48 .92) 

89,867.31 

89,867.31 

(720.441 

(857 .82) 
88,289.05 

(i) TI1e Trust has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Unit is entith:d to one vote per unit. The Unitholdcrs have the righ1 to receive at least 90%oflh1! Net 
Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust a.I least once in every six months in each financia l year in accordance with the REIT Regulations . The Board of Directors of the In vestment Manager approves distributions . The distribu1ion 
will be in proponion to the number of Units held by the Unitholders . The Trust declares and pays distributions in Indian Rupees . 

Underthc provisions of the REIT Regulations, Brookfield India REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of Brookfie ld India REIT for each financia l year. Accordingly, a 
ponion of the Unit Capital contains a contrac1ual ob ligation of the Brookfield lndia REIT to pay to its Unitholdcrs cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capil.3.1 is a compound financial instrument which contain both equity and 
liabi lity components in accordance with Ind AS 32 ~ Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEO! Circulars (No. CIR/IMDIDF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and No. C IMMD/DF/1-11/2016 
dated 26 December 20 16) issued under the REIT Regulations. the Uni! Capital has been presented as "Equity" in orderto compl~· with the requirements of Section 1-( of Annesurc A to the SEBI Circular dated 26 December 2016 
dealing with the minimum pn:scnlation and disclosure n:quirements for key financial statements . Consistent with Unit Capita l being classified a.s equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statcm.:nt of Changes in 
Unitholders' E.quity when the distributions a.re approved by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager. 

(ii) Initial Public Offering of 138.18 1,800 Units for cash at price of Rs . 2?; per Unit aggreg:uing to Rs . 38,000.00 million. Refer not.: 47 for utilizat ion of IPO proceeds. Further preferential allotment of 16,82 1,856 Units for ca.sh 
a.I price of Rs. 294.25 per unita.ggregating to Rs. -1 ,949.83 was made during the ~-ca.r ended 31 March 2022. The preferential allotmenl wa.s ma.inly u5':d to fund the SDPL Noid;:i. acquisition. as more fully described in Note 44 (ii) 

(asset acquisition note) . 



Brookfield India Real Eslale Trusl 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless olherwise slated) 

Noles to the Condensed Consolidaled Financial Statements 

(iii) Brookfo:ld India REIT acquin:d the SPVs by acquiring all the equity inti.:rcst held by our Sponsor and certain mi:mbcrs of our Sponsor Group. TI1c acquisition of equity intcrest in the SPVs has bccn donc by issuc of 
127,892,403 Units of Rs . 275 cach and 15.463,616 Units of Rs. 294 .25 each during the period ended 31 March 2021 and ycarcndcd 31 March 2022 respectively, as pcrthe table below. 

Name of SPY Number or Units allotted for acquiring all the equity interest held in lhe SPVs 

Sponsor Sponsor Group (excluding Sponsor) Total 

Durinl" the neriod ended JI March 2021: 
Candor Kolkata ;4.117.888 16,364 ;4.134.2;2 

Festus 31,474,412 31,474,412 

SPPL Naida 41,483,012 41 ,483,012 

CIOP 800,727 800,727 

Durinj! the nrevious vear ended JI Ma rch 2022: 

SDPL Naida (refer note I : Organizational stmclurc) 15,463,616 1;,463,616 

Total number of Units issued 54,117,888 89,238,131 143,356,019 

(iv) Expenses incurred pertaining to the Initial Public Offering (IPO), prcfcn:ntial allolmcnt and listing of the Units on the National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in 
accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. 

(b) Unitholders holdinl?" more lhan 5 nercent Units in the Trusl 

Name of Unitholders As at JO Se tember 2022 As a t JI March 2022 
No. of Units % of holdines No. of Units % of holdines 

BS REP India office Holdings V Ptt.: . Ltd . ;4, 117,888 16. 15°1. ;4,117,888 16.15% 

BS REP India Office Holdings Pte Ltd . 41,499,453 12.38°1. 41,499,373 12.38% 

BS REP India Office Holdings Ill Pte. Ltd . 36,727,398 10.96'¾ 36.727,398 10.96% 

BS REP II India Office Holdings II Pte. Ltd. 31,474,412 9.39"/4 28,086,775 8.38% 

(c) TI1e Trust has nol alloncd any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration till thc balance sheet date Further. the Trust has not issued any units for 

consideration other than cash from the date of rcgistratjon till the balance sheet date. e.xccpt as disclosed above . 

(d) Unitholdine of snonsor l:"rOUD 

As at JO Sent ember 2022 
Name of Unitholders 

BS REP India office Holdings V Pte . Ltd. 

BS REP India Office Holdings Pte Lid . 
BS REP India Office Holdings Ill Pte. Ltd. 

BS REP II India Office Holdings II Pie . Ltd. 

Kairos Property Managers Private Limited 

BS REP Moon CI L.P. 
BS REP Moon CZ L.P. 
BS REP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. 

BS REP India Office Holdings VI Ptc. Ltd. 

16 Other Equity• 

Reserves and Surplus 
Retained earnings 

No. of Units 
;4,117,888 
41,499.453 
36,727.398 
31,474,412 

1;,463,616 

800,6;0 

•Refer Condensi:d Consolidatcd Statement of Changes in Unitholdcrs' Equity for dctailcd movemcnt in otJ1cr equity balances . 

Relained earnings 

% of holdinl"s 

16.15% 
12.38% 

10.96% 
9.39'¾ 

4.61'¾ 
0 .24°1. 

As at JI March 2022 % Change during the 
half year ended JO 

No. of Units % of holdinl"s Sentember 2022 
;4, 117,888 16.15% 0 .00% 
41,499,373 12.38% 0.00% 
36,727,398 10.96% 0.00% 

28 ,086.775 8.38% 1.01% 

3,387,637 1.01% -1.01% 

800.6;0 0.24% -0.24% 

80 0.00% -0 .00% 

1;,463,616 4.61% 0.00% 

0.24% 

As at Asal 
JO Seplember 2022 JI March 2022 

(2, 14;.12) (1.().16 .38) 

(2,145.12) (1,046.38) 

The cumulative gain or loss arising from tJ1e operations which is retaincd by tJ1c Brookficld India REIT is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings . At the end of the period, the profit/(loss) after Ll.X is 
transferred from the St.atcment of Profit and Loss to thi: n:t.aincd earnings account . 

17 Non-current financial liabilities- Borrowings 
Secured 
Tenn loan from financial institutions 

Less :- Current maluri1ies oflong term borrowings (refer note 21) 

Total Borrowings 

18 Non-current financial liabilities - others 
Security deposit from lessee 
Retention money 

Asal 
JO September 2022 

;3,181.76 

(61;.J0) 

52,566.46 

Asal 
30 Sep tern ber 2022 

1,77150 
66.70 

1,838.20 

As al 
JI J\.farch 2022 

51,655 .34 

(661.81) 

50,993.53 

As at 
JI March 2022 

1,244 .8; 
84.4; 

1,329.30 



0 rookfald Ind ia Real Estate Trust 
Condensed Conso lidated Fi nancia l Slalcmcnts 
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financia l Statements 

19 Provis ions 

Provision for gratuity 

20 Other non -cu r rent liabi lit ies 

Deferred income 
Contract liability• 

As at As at 
JO Septem her 2022 JI Marc h 2022 

18 .28 18.9 1 

18.28 18.91 

Asal As at 
JO September 2022 JI March 2022 

274 .06 290.00 
508.47 355 .93 

782.53 645.93 

•Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited emered into a Join! Development Agreement with Gurgaon lnfospacc Limited (GIL) by which Gil will pay Rs. 1,000 million ·in various tranches commencing January 
202 1 to October 2023 for the development/constru ction of buildi ng used for commercial and retai l purposes on certa in land parcels, the title of which is held by Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limi1ed. Under 1he 
said agrecmenl, Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Privah: Limited is ent itkd lo 72% of the gross sale receipts and depos its from the tenants arising out of the lease of the deve loped areas and GIL is entitled to receive 
ba lance 28%. 1l1c amounl rcce iwd as at 30 September 2022 of Rs . 600.00 million including Goods and Service Tax (31 March 2022 of Rs . 420.00 million) has been presented as contract liab il ity excluding Goods and Service 
Tax . 

2 1 Short ter m borrowings 
Cu rren( maluril ies oflon1::-le rm borrowin1::s 
Secured 
Term loan from fina ncial institutions 

22 Currenl financia l li abililics - T rade payab les 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstand ing dues of creditors othe r than micro en1erprises and sma ll enterprises• 

'For balance payable to related parties, refer note 42 

23 C urren t - Oche r financia l liab ilit ies 
Security deposit from lessee 
Retention money 
Cap ital creditors 
Employee related payables 
Other payables 

24 Provisions 

Provision fo r gratuity 
Provision for compcnsa1ed absences 

25 Othe r current liab il ities 

Statutory dues payable 
Deferred income 
Other pa)-ablcs• 

• For balance pa~-ablc to related parties, refer note 42 

26 Current tax liab ilit ies (Net) 

Provis ion for income tax 

Asal As at 
30 September 2022 J I J\.fa rch 2022 

6 15.30 66 1.81 

615.30 66 1.81 

Asal As at 
JO Septem her 2022 31 March 2022 

0.76 17.34 
673 .93 620. 17 

6R69 637.51 

Asat Asat 
JO Sep I em he r 2022 J I March 2022 

3.277.00 3,40 1.53 
159.45 132.89 
546.25 394 .94 

32.74 10.93 
183 .32 120.97 

4.1 98 .76 4.06 1.26 

Asat Asal 
JO September 2022 J I March 2022 

2.33 0. 18 
7.69 7. 14 

10.02 7.32 

Asal Asat 
30 September 2022 JI Ma rch 2022 

154 .99 151.29 
203.86 16 1.38 

19.90 

378.75 312.67 

Asal As at 
JO September 2022 J I Ma rch 2022 

121.7 1 120.64 

121.71 120.64 
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Partlculan 

27 Rcnnuefromopcnlioni 

Salcor1cn·ice1 
!11co111c from op,.niling kas.: r.:riLals • 

/11comc from mainh:namx Sl.:l'i..:a; 

Sale ofproJuclt 
Sak of li.x'U and b...'\·cragc,,; 

Ot/1<:fS 

Tot1lrc1·enuefromopc:ntion1 

28 Othcrlncome 

lalcrc:11 income from fin:ancid nsch al :amortized cod 
lnl~c;\ inc•:imcon lixW d<-1iosi1s \\ilh banks 
lnh:rc,,;t i1)1;()111c m S<):urily deposit 

Otbcn 
ln,.;oi11cfrt'llns,.-rapsalc 
lnt<!fl!SI on ioco nc t.ax rdi.tnd 
Liabili!it!v'1m:r.isions no longer rnquiru..l '1Till<-TL back 
Fairvalll<!gain oo inc."lllh! support 
Miscd]ar,,:,.JWio,;,,-,.11.! 

29 Co, t of malcri:all consumed 

Opening stock 
Add: J>Un: .. hascs Uurirlli: 1hc 1x:riod 

J\dd: Olhcn 
L.o;s: Cl<Jsinl,! stock 

~O £m11lnyec benefit, upcn1e 

Salari~, wage,; and b-.Jnus 

ClTJtributions lo pru-.id..:nl fw1d 
Gratuityo;1i,.n,;c 
Comp,.n,;.1lOOabscncc,; 

31 FinanccC0111 

lntc:~d and fi11:aace chargts on fio111cbl li1hllUic1 :at :amorti1.ed c:oJt 

lnlcr~lonh:nn loon 
lnl<!f~lonka.~\iabilily 

Otbcn 
Otha lxxnmill{l cosls 

32 Dc11rc:ciatio11 :and amortization expc:n1c1 

- oo properly plant anJ .:t1uip111<.'!ll and inLa~iblc as.,;cts 
-l""lflin\'l::.lnl..nlpn.'J)crt',· 

For the quarter ended For lbc quarter ended For the quarter ended For lh<" hlfyear coded For the h1lf~ur ended For the halfyeueadcd For the year coded 
JO St:pten1ber 2022 JO Juoe 2022 JU St:ptcmbcr 2021 JO Sc:r,tcmher 2022 JI March 2022 JO St:ptembcr 2021 JI 1\-hrch 2022 

2.0S6.-19 
%3 .3-1 

3019.8) 

1-1 .34 

1.85 

J,036.02 

23 .75 
9.55 

2.01 
3.72 
4 .82 

3(,. 19 

0 .36 
80.40 

9.71 

l.61 

1I.J2 

71.71 

4.IO 
28G 
1.33 

80.00 

1.02J.77 
7.22 

59.30 

1.()90.29 

(8.2ll 
I 082.08 

5.25 
632 .32 

6J7.57 

2,03-UJ 
866.32 

2,900.45 

8.84 
I.II 

2,9!0.-10 

20.24 
l-l .09 

8.90 
28 .95 

1.20 
23 .90 

O.OI 
'J7.29 

6 .05 
0 .98 

711 .TI 
3.75 

1.17 
0 .36 

84.05 

902.37 
7 .14 

6-l .56 

97-L07 
(15.-16) 

958.61 

5.03 
685.95 

690.98 

1,561.-IO 

550.JI 
2,111.71 

5.03 
O.J.l 

2,117.08 

20.27 
6 .26 

0 .95 
0 .77 
0 .) 11 

2.34 
J0.93 

4.-l4 

0 .28 

-1.72 

118 .39 
2.41 
1.16 
0.50 

52.46 

387.16 
2.77 

41.44 

431.37 
(5 .90) 

-125.-17 

4 .53 
-166 .60 

-',71.13 

4,090.62 

1.829.66 
5,920.28 

23.18 
2.% 

59-16.-12 

-l3 .9') 

23.6-l 

I0.9 1 
32.67 

6 .02 
60.0<) 

OJ7 
177.69 

15.76 
2.59 

HI.JS 

150.48 
7 .115 

4 .03 

1.69 

16-1.05 

1,926. 14 
1-1 .36 

123 .86 

2,06◄.J6 

{23 .67) 
20-I0.69 

I0.28 
1,3111 .27 

1,328.55 

].198 .52 

1.1-19 .75 
..... ~-18.27 

10.75 
1.00 

-1,-160.02 

35 .07 
9. 19 

3.03 
29.36 

1.10 
31.58 
48 .03 

157J6 

9.511 
0.11-l 

l0.-12 

83 .75 
5.62 
2 .89 

1.05 

9J.JI 

1,162.72 

11 .13 

113.(>-l 

1.255.U'J 
(19.01) 

1136.08 

7.TT 

1.149.72 

1,157.-19 

3, 177.:50 
I.I 13.57 
-1,291.07 

16 .19 
0 .6] 

-1,307.89 

35 .98 
19.19 

3.77 
-l .115 

0 .74 

2 .3-1 
66.87 

13.11 

O.-l9 

13.60 

95.95 
4 .82 
2.27 
0.50 

IOJ.54 

767.-12 

5.52 

827') 

855.7.J 

(11.12) 
8-1-1 .61 

8.115 
9 18.-lJ 

927.28 

6.476.02 
2).63.32 
8 739.J-I 

26.94 

1.63 

8767.9 1 

71 .05 

28 .38 

6 .80 
34.21 

1.84 

31.511 
50.37 

22-1.23 

22.69 

1.33 

2-1.02 

179 .70 
10.-1-l 
5. 16 

1.55 

196.85 

1.930. 1-1 
14 .25 

166 .-13 

2,llll.82 
(30. 13) 

2080.69 

16.62 
2.0611. 15 

2,08-1.77 
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P:art icuhr, 

33 Other upc111e1 

r't\Jf}U1)'111an:igcmcntl.:CS 
p,,,..\·..:rallll Ii.id 
Rql.lirallllmainll).1.1nc.: 
ln.~ur-JOC<! 
1..4!:il allll pn.1t<!SS1oua l c,.:p,:n."<! 
Audi1tca!'i(rcf.::rnote"a"bd..,w) 

Facili1ru,;:igel<!c'1 
Rt.%lt:1\ 1owur<ls slll..'11 tcnn k:aS¢! 

Cro.lil lmp,1iro.l 

Allo1\'UOCe ,or <!:\ll(XlcJ cru.lil luss 
Corporate socia l rcsponsibi\ily L.-,,;p,.n.~cs 
Dmation 
Miscdlan..).)U.~C\:PtJlSl!l 

:a)Det:ailfofrcmu 11enilion tn:auc.liton 

As auc.litl',r (oo accrwl basis. oclUl.li~ applicab le taxi!>') 
• forst.a\UIOJ)':!Udit 
• li.'ll'otherstl"\i.;e; 

• forn.-imbu.r'Sl!lll.::rJIOf .... -...11'1!1).,;¢1 

34 T:axcxpease 

Cunu1ttax 
.fr,· current paiOO 
-forca,licrycar:s 

Ddi:rrw. tnx cl1.1rp.c / (c:rulit) 

For lhc qu:arferendcd Fo r lbe q uarter ended For the qu:arterended Fortlle h.llfyca r ended For lhe ba lfyurc-nded For lhe balf yc:arc-n dcd For t he yc:ar ended 

JO September 2022 J U J 1111c 2022 JO Sep tember 2Cl2 I JO Scplc m h,cr 2022 J I r>h r cb 2022 JO September 2021 J I ~-hrch 2022 

120.)0 
357 .55 

22\Ul l 
12.7:5 
:5:5.27 
6.60 

20 .86 
7.:50 
3.20 
8.8-1 

2.43 

1.6' 

28 .72 

fl5-l.67 

6.57 

0.03 

6.60 

9.92 

1.f8.35 

1511.27 

11-U-l 

27:5 .28 
242 . 18 

11...12 
49.97 

6.-17 
H.8 1 

7.-19 
3.()6 

0.:58 
6.23 
0.63 

34 .39 

786J5 

5. 11 

0 , 18 

1.18 
6 .. n 

11.87 

(11.38) 

(13.98) 

(IJ.-n) 

81.8-1 
18-1.27 
153 .24 

8 .11 

37.0 1 

-U-1 
26.39 

7.25 

2.-19 
:5 . 11 
0.2:5 
1.78 

19.95 

5.12.21 

4,5-1 

7.4 1 

(56.88) 

(-19. -1 7) 

23:5. 1-l 
632.83 
-171.1') 

2•1 . 17 

105 .24 

13 .07 

:54 .67 
1-1.99 
6.26 
9.-12 
8 ,(16 
2.27 

63 . 11 

1.641.02 

11 .68 

0.2 1 

1.18 
IJ.07 

21.79 

(11.38) 

13U7 

U.f.78 

188 .66 
326 .39 
n1.21 

18. 17 

96...13 
12.35 

58 .24 
14 .98 

5.6-l 
2.95 
9Jl] 
2.80 

50.54 

l,17fl.25 

11.49 

U.19 
0.67 

l 2.J5 

19,90 

() .81) 

(160.381 

(1.f~.29) 

1(,354 

36-U2 
316 .92 

16.19 
8 1.1 5 

I0.17 
46. 18 
16.6 1 
4.59 

7.82 
0 .25 
2 .81 

20.00 
39.06 

I 089.fl l 

10.08 

0.09 
10.17 

8.06 

(84.62) 

(76.56) 

352 .20 
690.') 1 

708 .19 
3-U6 

177.:58 
22.:52 

10.l.42 
}1.:59 
10 .2} 

10.77 

10 .C/8 

5.61 

20.00 
89.60 

2,268.06 

21.57 

0. 19 
0.76 

22. 52 

27.96 

(3.8 1) 

(24:5 .0 1) 

(220.86) 

Rndlicld Inc.Ii.a REIT i~ a blL~ill<!S-i trust 1\-l!istcru..1 Wlc.l.::r SEHi REIT RcguLltiun.~. 2014 . 1-1.:n-:c, the i.i1h.i·c,;t and Ji\ic.lc:ricJ ro;..i\'cJ or n:..:t.i\'able by nnxli,;lidd India REIT frum 1/l<! SPVs is ,:,,::l).npl fri:11n In.-.: unkr ,;,xtk."lfl I0(23FC) oftlic ln<).)lllC fox Acl. 196 1 (/\ct)_ Furth.::r, 
any c:..11<-"'0lli1ure incU!Tl!LI in rdation to .:-aming the ,:,,:empt income is not lax <lca.luctible in \"j.._,.,\· oft/ic prV'>isi\'in., ofs,:aion 14A oft/1e Acl 

Titc iOC("llncofBrooktield India REIT. other 1l1.1nc,.:cmpt i0Cl.1111cml).lliwl<,,J ab.n'I!, i~ cl1arg.:ahlc to LllX at llic maximum marginal rJtcs in friri;e(for UlO.!quan..r mdul 30 Junc2022 : 42.744%: li:ir thequan.::r and }c:.1r..ndu.l 3 1 Mardi 2022 : 42.744%). 0:04,1 l(lfthc ii)l.:l.)lt1C 
chargc:ibk1ol:lx1'1Jl tr.i.nsli!rofshof\ I.Clll1 capita l as.,;cts lhklcrscciion 11 IAofthcAct and king lt..'flUcapital a,>sct.,; unc.lt.,-s.xlioo 112 oflhcAct. 
SPVs arc U1e Indian compani~ incorpora.tll.l wk.I ... ,- U1.:! Companie:,; Acl. ·rn..: lllla l ihlX'llle\,rthcS PVs is ..:h:1rgc;.ibk to tax in aooxdan,:.,: with Uic pr,.ivisioos ,._\f1h..: Acl 
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35 Contingent liabilities 

Particulars 

Claims against the SPVs not acknowledged as debt in respect of Income-Tax matters (Refer note I below) 

Claims against the SPYs not acknowledged as debt in respect of Indirect tax (VAT/Work contract/Entry tax} 
(Refer note 2 below) 

Grand Total 

Note I 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 

Seaview Developers Private Limited 

Total 

As at 
30 September 2022 

As at 

I, 158.86 

7.52 

1,166.38 

30 September 2022 

807.04 
15 .30 

336.52 

1,158.86 

As at 
31 March 2022 

1,158.86 

12.43 

1,171.29 

As at 
31 March 2022 

807.04 
15.30 

336.52 

1,158.86 

Contingent liabilities as at 30 September 2022 includes penalty amounting to Rs. 552.23 million (31 March 2022 Rs . 552.23 million) in relation to disallowance 
of settlement fees paid in earlier years for termination of contract. Oiher contingencies include Rs. 606.63 million (3 I March 2022 : Rs . 606.63 million) relating to 

other disallowances under the Income Tax Act. 1961 . 
The tax officer has set-off certain tax refund claimed in Income tax returns against these demands . 

Note 2 

Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited • 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 
Total 

As at 
30 September 2022 

2.67 

4.85 
7.52 

As at 
3 I March 2022 

2.67 

9.76 
12.43 

• The Company has given a bank guarantee of Rs. 1.00 million (31 March 2022: Rs . 1.00 million) to Member Secretary UP Pollution Control Board. 

:--0 okfie;O' 

/4. 
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36 Commitments 

Particulars 
Capital commitments (net of advances) 

The SPV wise details of capital commitments arc as follows: 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 
Festus Properties Private Limited 
Seaview Developers Private Limited 

Other commitments 

As at Asat 
JO September 2022 31 March 2022 

630.47 902.92 

249.98 199.37 
60.03 135.80 

8.32 161.48 
312. 14 406.27 

630.47 902.92 

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited (fonnerly known as "Candor Gurgaon Two Developers & Projects Private Limited"; now amalgamated in 
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited w.e.f O I April 2017) has an agreement with Gurgaon Infospace Limited (GIL). The title to the land is held by 
Gurgaon lnfospace Limited, a third party and is not affiliated to the Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited. Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures 
Private Limited has developmental rights with respect to the property pursuant to a Joint Development Agreement (JDA) with GIL entered on 16 November 2006 as 
amended from time to time. Under the said agreement Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited is entitled to 72% of the gross sale receipts and deposits 
from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL is entitled to receive balance 28%. 

In supplement to earlier JDA, a new co-development agreement was entered into between GIL (the developer) and Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private 
Limited (the co-<leveloper) on 17 September 2007 as amended from time to time under which the developer and co-<leveloper will jointly carry out the process of 
installation of fit-outs & fixtures and the cost of such installation shall be shared by the developer and co-developer in the same ratio as to sharing of gross proceeds i.e. 
28% and 72% respectively. This agreement is accounted as joint operations as per Ind AS 111 . 
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37 Financial instruments- Fair values and risk management 
i) Financial instruments by category and fair value 

The below table summarizes the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are measured at amortized cost and for which fair 
values arc disclosed in the financial statements. There are no financial instruments, which are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Carrying value Fair value 
As at Asal Asal Asal 

30 September 2022 31 March 2022 30 September 2022 31 March 2022 

At Amortized Cos/ 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables # 313.07 224.88 313.07 224 .88 
Cash and cash equivalents # 2,296.90 2,043.65 2,296.90 2,043 .65 
Other bank balances # 500.03 506.49 500.03 506.49 
Other financial assets # 1,578.34 1,030.52 1,578.34 1,030.52 

At FVTPL 
Fina ncia I Assets 
Other financial Assets" 865.44 1,162.13 865.44 1,162.13 

Total financial assets 5,553.78 4,967.67 5,553.78 4,967.67 

At Amortized Cost 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowines # 53,181.76 5 1.655.34 53,181.76 51.655.34 
Trade oavablcs # 674.69 637.51 674.69 637.51 
Other financial liabilit ies # 6,036.96 5,390.56 6,036.96 5,390.56 

Total financial liabilities 59,893.41 57,683.41 59,893.41 57,683.41 

# fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities which are recognized at amortized cost has been disclosed to be same as carrying value as the carrying value approximately 
equals to their fair value. 

" Fair value of Receivable for income support is determined on the basis of present value of expected future cash flows. These are classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due 
to the inclusion of unobservable inputs. The key input for determining the same is discount rate. 

ii) Measurement of fair values 
The different levels of fair value have been defined below: 

Level l : Level I hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices for instance listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. 

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is detem1ined using valuation 
techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument 
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. 

There have been no valuation under Level I and Level 2. There has been no transfers into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the quarter/ half year ended 30 September 
2022 and year ended 3 1 March 2022. 

The Brookfield India REIT policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. 

iii) Details ofsienificant unobservable int>uts 
Significant unobservable inputs I Inter-relationship between significant unobservable inputs and fair value 

Financial assets measured at fair value (Receivable for income support) 
Discount rate (30 September 2022- 11 . 75% : 3 1 March 2022- 11 .50% and 12. 75%) I The estimated fair value would decrease (increase) if discount rate is higher (lower) 
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iv) Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 fair values 
For the fair value of receivable for income support, reasonably possible changes at the reporting date due to one of the significant unobservable inputs, holding other inputs 

constant, would have following effects: 

30 September 2022 

Discount rate (I% movement) 

31 March 2022 

Discount rate (I% movement) 

v) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values 

Fair Value relating to receivable for income support 
Balance as at 24 January 2022 

Income support received 

Net change in fair value - unrealized (refer note 28) 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 
Balance as at I April 2022 

Income support received 

Net change in fair value - unrealized (refer note 28) 

Balance as at 30 September 2022 

Profit/ (Loss) 
Increase 

3.85 

Profit/ (Loss) 
Increase 

8.06 

Decrease 

(3 .85) 

Decrease 

(8.06) 

Amount 
1,358.69 

(228.14) 

31.58 

1,162. 13 
1,162.13 
(356. 78) 

60.09 
865.44 
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38 Segment reporting 

a) Ind AS I 08 establishes requirements to identify the operating segment and related disclosures, basis how the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM') evaluates the performance and allocates resources to different segments. Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT structure and 

powers conferred to the Manager to REIT, the Governing Board of the Manager (Brookprop Managc~t Services Private Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Malccr ('CODM'), since they arc empowered for all major decisions w.r.t. the management, administration, 

investment, disinvestment, etc. 

As the Group is primarily engaged in the bU5iness of developing and maintaining commercial real estate properties in India, CODM reviews the entire bu.s.iness as a sing]e operating segment and accordingly disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments" in respect of reponable 
segments arc not applicable. 

b) Customer A represented 13.12%, 13.68%, 14.27%, 18.43%, 18.19¾ and 17.97% of revenues for the qwrter, half year ending 30 September 2022, quarter ending 30 June 2022, quarter, half year ending 30 September 2021 and year ending 31 March 2022 respectively, Customer B 

represented 14.54%, 14.35%, 14.15%, 15.39%, 15.76% and 15.'70% of revenues for the quaner, half year ending 30 September 2022, quaner ending 30 June 2022, quaner, half year ending 30 September 2021 and year ending 31 March 2022 respectively and Customer C represented 10.65%, 

10.67'/i,, 10.69%, 11.50%, 11.41% and 11.50% of revenues for the quarter, half year ending 30 September 2022, quarter ending 30 June 2022, quarter, half year ending 30 September 2021 and year ending 31 March 2022 respectively. 

Additional financial disclo.!iure.s u required under para 4 of SEBI cirtular CIR/IMD/DF/141/2016 dated 26 December 2016 

39 Statement of Property lfi!e ffOtal/Operatine income 

S.No Entity and Property Property Addre.,, Location Nature of Income For the quarter For the quarter For the quarter For the balfye■ r For the balfycar For the half year For the year 
name ended ended ended ended ended ended ended 

30 September 2022 30 June 2022 30 September 2021 30 September 2022 31 March 2022 30 September 2021 31 Manh 2022 

1 Candor Kolkata One Candor TechSpace IT/ITES SEZ, Dundahera. Gurgaon Rental income and 869.17 836.99 846.98 1,706.16 1,486.72 1,735.60 3,222.32 
Hi-Tech Structures Sector-21 Gurgaon, H.aryana-122016 other operating 

Private Limited income 

2 Candor Kolkata One IT/JTES SEZ, Candor TechSpace, Action K.olkata Rental income and 507.56 475.98 518.79 983.54 958.63 1,058.52 2,017.15 
Hi-Tech Structures Area- I D, New Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata- other operating 
Private Limited 700156 income 

3 Shantiniketan IT/JTES Park, Candor TechSpace, Naida Rental income and 445.72 396.92 310.36 842.64 623.89 609.70 1,233.59 

Properties Private Institutional Plot No B12 - 62, Sector 62 , other operating 
Limited NOIDA. Uttar Pradesh- 201309 income 

4 Festus Properties Kensington A and B, IT/ !TES, Kensington Mumbai Rental income and 482.48 476.24 440.95 958.72 885.42 904.07 1,789.49 
Private Limited SEZ Building, Hiranandani Business Park, other operating 

Powai Mumbai, Mumbai City, Maharashtra- income 

400076 

5 Seaview Developers IT/JTES SEZ, Candor TechSpace, Plot No 20 Naida Rental income BDd 731.09 724.27 1,455.36 505.36 505.36 
Private Limited 21, Sector 135, NOIDA. Uttar Pradesh- other operating 

201304 income 
6 Candor India Office F-83, Profit Centre, Gate No. 1, Mahavir Mumbai Property -

Parks Private Limited Nagar, Near Pizza Hut, Kandivali (W), management fees 
Mumbai-400067 

Total 3 036.02 2.910.40 2117.08 ~,946.42 4 460.02 4,307.89 8 767.91 

40 Earnini• Per Unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU amowits arc calculated by dividing the profit for the quarter/ period attributable to Unitholders by the weighted average nwnber of units outstanding during the quarter/ year. Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to Unitholders by the weighted 

average nwnber of units outstanding during quaner /year plus the weighted average nwnber of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital The Units of the Trust were allotted on 08 February 2021, 11 February 2021 and 24 January 2022. 

Particulan 

Profit after tax for calcuJating basic and diluted EPU 

Weighted average number of Units (Nos.) 
Earnings Per Unit 

-Basic (Rupees/unit) 

-Diluted (Rupees/unit)' 
• The Trust does not have any outstanding dilutive units. 

For the quarter 

ended 

30 September 2022 

267.12 

335,087,073 

0.80 

0.80 

For the quarter 

ended 
30 June 2022 

471.43 

335,087,073 

1.41 

1.41 

For the quarter 

ended 
30 September 2021 

682.82 

302,801,601 

2.25 

2.25 

For the half year 

ended 
30 September 2022 

738.55 

335,087,073 

2.20 

2.20 

For the half year 

ended 
31 March 2022 

1,041.69 

315,333,907 

3.30 

3.30 

For the half year 

ended 
30 September 1021 

1,421.16 

302,801,601 

4.69 

4.69 

For the year 

ended 
3 I March 2022 

2,462.85 

309,050,586 

7.97 

7.97 

~

00Kfie/O' ~ 
~ -
~ * .. ....., _q [/ 

..... <.fl • ~ 

,,✓, - ~ - - C.~ 
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41 Capitalization Statement 
The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain 
future development of the business. The Group's capital structure mainly constitutes equity in the form of unit capital and debt. 
The projects of SPY s are initially funded through construction financing arrangements. On completion, these loans are 
restructured into lease-rental discounting arrangements or debentures. The Group's capital structure is influenced by the changes 
in regulatory framework, government policies, available options of financing and the impact of the same on the liquidity position. 

The Group monitors Capital using ratio of 'Net debt' to 'Gross asset value (GAV) of all SPYs. For this purpose, Net debt is 
defined as Long-term borrowings + Short-term borrowings + current maturities of long-term borrowings. The Group's adjusted 
Net debt to GAV ratio as at 30 September 2022 and 3 I March 2022 are as follows: 

Particulars As at 30 September 2022 As at 31 March 2022 

Borrowings 53,181.76 51,655.35 
Lease Liability 825.92 248.17 
Gross debt 54,007.68 51,903.52 
Less : Cash and cash equivalents (2,296.90) (2,043.65) 

Adjusted Net debt 51,710.78 49,859.87 

Unitholders' Funds 
-Unit capital 88,289.05 89,867.31 
-Other equity (2,145.12) (1,046.38) 
Total Shareholder's funds 86,143.93 88,820.93 

Debt/Equity Ratio 0.60 0.56 
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42 Related Party Disclosures 

A. Related parties to Brookfield India REIT as at 30 September 2022 

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pie Ltd- Sponsor 
Brookl)rop Management Services Private Limited - Investment Manager 

Axis Trustee Services Limited-Trustee 

The Ultimate parent entity, sponsor groups and fellow subsidiaries, with whom the grou1J has related party transactions during the period, consist of the below entities: 

Ultimate parent entity 
Brookfield Asset Management Inc. (BAM), ultimate parent entity and controlling party 

S1Jonsor 
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte Ltd- Sponsor 

Sponsor eroup 
a) BSREP II India Office Holdings II Pie. Ltd . (BSREP II India) 
b) Kairos Property Managers Private Limited (Kairos) 
c) BSREP Moen Cl L.P 
d) BSREP Moon C2 L.P 
e) BSREP India Office Holdings Ill Pie Ltd. (BSREP India Office Ill) 
I) BS REP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd. (BS REP India Holdings) 
g) BS REP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. (BS REP India Office IV) 
h) BS REP India Office Holdings VI Pie. Ltd. (BS REP India Office VI) 

Fellow subsidiaries 
a) Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 
b) Technology Service group LLC 
c) Arliga India Office Parks Private Limited 
d) Brookfield Property Group LLC 

Brookfield India REIT's interests in subsidiaries arc set out in note I"- Organization structure. 

Directors & Key personnel of the Investment Manager (Brookprop Manacemcnt Scn1ices Private Limited) 
Directors 
Alcila Krishnakumar (Independent Director) 
Shailesh Vishnubhai Haribha~1i (Independent Director) 
Anuj Ranjan (Non-Executive Director) 
Ankur Gupta (Non-Executive Director) 

Key management personnel of SPV's 
- Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech StruCCures Private Limited 

Subrata Ghosh- Managing Director 
Neeraj Kapoor- Company Secretary (till I st August 2021) 

- Festus Properties Private Limited 
Lalit Kumar- Company Secretary 

- Shantinikctan Properties Private Limited 
Kanika Dhingra - Company Secretary 

Key personnel 
Alok Aggarwal - Managing director and chief executive officer - India office business 
Sanjccv Kumar Shanna - Executive vice president and chief financial officer- India office business 
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H B. Rcl.11tcd rt ,· lransaclioru : 

Na lure or tunuclionf [nlitfs Name 

TTW"ltt Ftc [xpcnse 

-A-.is Tru~1L'\! St.-niccs Limitcd 

Rcimbuncmcnt or eipcn,c incurred b~· (exdudinJ: GSO 
- Drookprop ManagcmL-nl S..:nic~-s Pri\'alc Limit..:d 

- BSREP lndia Oflicc I loldings V ~c Ltd 
- UrooH1dd Property Group I.LC 

Rcimbuucmenl or upcnre incurred on l,ch.1.lr or (odudin~ GSl) 
- Mowit:iinstar India Onie.: P:irt;:s Pri\'atc Limilcd 

luuc or Unit C.tpila l 
- BSREI' !11di:1 Office I loldinJ,!s IV Pt.:. LtJ. 

lnlemel & Connccti,·icy 01arges 
- T,xhnolo~•y &·rvic.e Group LLC 

Property maruigement fees 
- Brookprop Mnna gcml.-nt &.,·vic~'S Pri\.ah: LimilL'J 

Jnnstmcnt management rcu 

- Brookprop Mana gcmcnl S.:r.ic~"S Pri\.atc Limittd 

Comptnution lo kc~· man as:emcnl pe r,onncl ofSPV's 
- Short-lcnn employee bcndits 

- Posl~mploymenl h .. -ndits • 
- Olhcr long-tcm1 lx.,1dits 
-Ol.herFl.-cs 

Pn1,·bion for Gratuity and compensated ab,enccs lransfc.r lo 
- Arliga India Office Park.-; flri\.a1c Limi!t:d 

Pn1,·iJion for G ratuilJ' and compcn,atcd JlbJcnccJ l ransfc r from 
- Mountaiml3r India Onie.: Parks Pri,·a1c Limi1cd 

Pro,·ision for Bonus t ram rer to 
- Arli ga India Office Parks Pri\.al.: Limit .. -.J 

Prol'it ion fo r Bonus tr;iin1rc r from 
- Mountainst.ar India Office Parks Pri\'atc LimiL.:d 

Rcpaymtnl of Unit Capib l 
- llSREP India Ollie.: 1-ioldings V l'tc. L1d. 
- BSllEP India Offict Holdings Ptc Ltd. 

- Kairos flrop,.:rty Managl.'TS l'\1. Lid . 

- BS REP Moon C I LP. 
- BSREP Moon Cl LP. 
- BSllEP II India Olliec Holdin g.~ II 1'1.c. Lid. 
- BSREI) lndi.a 01Tice I loldings Ill \'le. Ltd. 

- BSREP lnJia OfTict lloldings IV P'lt. LLd. 

lnlcrcst Distribulcd 
- DSREP lnJi.a Office I loldin gs V i'tt. LtJ . 
- BSREP India Offic.e Holdin gs Ph.: Ltd. 
- K:iiros Property M1nagl.'TS P\1. Ltd . 

- BSREI' Moon CI LP. 
- BSREP Moon Cl L.P. 

- BSREP II lndia Ollicc 1-!oldings ll l'tc. Lid. 
- 0SREP India OfJie(! Holdings Ill 11\c. 1.Ld 

- BSREI' India Offic.e I loldings IV l'te. Lid 

Other Income Dislrihulcd 
- DSREP India Ollie..: Holdings V Pte . Lid . 

- BSREI' India OClicc Holdings l'lc LtJ . 
- Kairos Property ManagL-rS r-.1. Ltd. 
- BSREI' Moon C l L.P. 
- BSREP Moon Cl L.P. 
- BSREP II InJia Onicc I loldin~ II !'ti:. L1J 
- BSREI' lnJia Oflicc I loldings Ill l'lc. Ltd. 

- BSREP India OOicc Ho\Jings IV l'tc. Ltd . 

Tou l 

Tota l 

Tolal 

T otal 

Total 

Total 

Tot;al 

ToUI 

Tolal 

Tota l 

Tota l 

Tolal 

Tola( 

Tota l 

Tola l 

Fortheqwrtcr For the qwrte r For the qwrtcr 
mded ended ended 

JO Scplcml>cr 2022 JO June 21122 JO Scplcmhcr 2021 

0 .74 0 ,74 0.74 
0.7~ 0.7~ 0.7~ 

0.22 0.56 1.89 
9.26 

(0 .34) 2.32 
(0. 12) 2.f!fl 11 .15 

0 . 10 0. 15 0.0..\ 
O.IO 0. 15 0.0-1 

7.62 6.80 3.54 
7.62 6.80 J .~ 

60. 19 57.6 1 45.44 
60.19 57.61 -15.,U 

20.26 20.32 24 .92 
20.26 20.32 2-1.92 

2.05 2.05 1.76 

0. 12 0. 12 0. 10 
0. 12 0 . 14 0. 11 
2.29 2.JI 1.97 

,i 

138.54 116.35 53 .09 
106.24 89.22 40.7 1 

8.67 7.28 3.J2 
2.05 1.72 0.79 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

7 1. 90 60.39 27.55 
9-1 .02 78.% 36.03 

39.59 33 .25 
~61.01 387.17 161.~9 

132.59 154 .78 2-17.1 1 
101.67 118 .69 189.57 

8,30 9.69 15.'17 

1.96 2.29 J .66 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

68 .8 1 80.3) 128.JO 
89.98 IOS .04 167,77 
37.89 44 .23 

~~1.20 515.05 75 1.98 

4.87 4.87 24.4 1 
3.73 3.73 IS.72 
0 ,30 0,30 1. 53 
0,07 0.07 0.36 
0 .00 0.00 0.00 
2.5] 2.53 12 .67 
3.3 1 3.31 16.56 
1.39 1.39 

16. 20 16.20 7-1.25 

For the h;ii lr ycar For lhc half , ·ca r For the halrycu· For the year 
ended ended c.ndcd ended 

JO Scpteml>c r 2022 JI l\farch 2022 JO Scpleml>c r 2021 J I l\brd,2022 

1.48 1.47 1.48 2.95 
IA8 IA7 l.~8 2.95 

0.78 3.05 2.69 5.14 
1. 22 25 . 17 26.39 

1.98 
2.76 ~.27 27.H6 32. 13 

0.25 2,31 0.50 2.81 
0.25 2.JI 0.50 2.81 

4.550.17 4.550. 17 
~ .. "i50. 17 -1.550.17 

14.42 10 .40 6.67 17 .07 
I..\.U I0A0 6.67 17.07 

11 7.80 95 .35 91.34 186 .69 
117.flO 95.35 91.l -l lli6.69 

40,58 35.JO 45 .91 81.21 
~0.58 JS.JO ~5.9 1 81.2 1 

4.10 4.90 3.67 8.57 

0.24 0.22 0.21 0.43 
0 .26 0.27 0.22 0.49 
~.60 5.39 ~-10 9A9 

0 .29 0.29 
0.29 0.29 

5.67 5.67 
5.67 5.67 

0.23 0.23 
0.2J 0.23 

7.54 7.54 
7.5-1 7.S-1 

254 .89 19.1.29 53 .09 2<17.38 
195.46 148.98 40.71 189.69 

15 .95 12. 17 3.32 15.49 
3.77 2.87 0.79 3.66 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

132.29 100.84 27 .55 128.]9 

172.98 IJU!5 36.03 167 .88 
72.8-1 

8-18. IH 591.00 161.~9 75U9 

287.37 387.49 247.21 634.70 

220.36 297 . 1-1 189 .57 486.71 
17.9') 24 .25 15.47 39.72 
4.25 5.74 3.66 9.40 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

149 . 14 201.IO 128 .JO 329.40 
195 .02 262 .97 167 .77 430.74 

82. 12 
956.25 1,178.69 751 .98 1,930.67 

').74 13 .53 24A l 37 .94 
7.46 10.37 Ul.72 29.09 
0.60 O.S5 1.53 2.38 
0 . 14 0.20 0.36 0.56 
0.00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 
5.06 7.02 12 .67 19.69 
6.62 9.18 16.56 25.7-1 
2.78 

32 .. IO -U.15 7~.25 115.~0 
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.U 8. Rcbled art,· l ranuctionJ : 

Natu~ of lranuclion/ [nlily', Name 

Security depo,i l r-eccind b.,ck 

- Mountain star India Olli~ !'arks l'ri\'alc Limited 

Income ,upport rcccind 

Mounlainstar India Ollicc Parks l'ri\·ai.: l.imih:d 

Income ,upport rccci,·cd in ad,·ance 

Mountainst.1r India Offic.: !'arks l'ri\·a1c Limiled 

Total 

Total 

Total 

For 1hc qu., rtcr For the quarter For the quarter 
endcd ended ended 

JO Stptcmbc.-r 2022 JO J une 2022 JO Stptembtr 202l 

179. 12 177.66 

179.12 177.66 

ltJ .90 
19,90 

Fo r the half ~·car For the halfyur For Che lulf~·ear For lhc year 
ended ended ended cndtd 

30 September 2022 31 March 2022 30 Scpttmbc r 2021 JI Ma rch 2022 

7.43 7.43 
7.H 7AJ 

3:56.78 228 .14 228. 14 
J56,7H 228.U 228.14 

ltJ.90 
19.90 

•As the liabilities for the gratuity and comrcns.11L-J al~nccs arc prmidcdon an aclu.:irial h:isis, andcalculaled for the respccti\'e SPV as a whole, lhc said liabilities pertaining sp,.x:ifically to KMP arc not kn01m for current rcriod and hence. not includ.:d her.: . 

Oubtand ing ba lanceJ 

Trade Pap hie (net ofwilliholdln~ tax) 
- 0rookprop Managi.."tncnt Sen.ices l'ri\.ite Limik-J 

Prepaid cipcmer 

- Axis Truskc Scn.ic.:s Lid 

Othcrrcceh·ahlcs 
• Mountains tar lndi:J Ollicc Parks Privale Limit.:d 

Fin.111Ke rccei\·able,* 
- Mountainstar lndi:J om~ Parks Prin!c Limit.:d 

Other Payable 
• Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited 

Vendor Ad,·ancc-Othcn (ncl of wilhho lclin~ tu) 

- Technology 5(.,-,.ic.: ip-oup LLC 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Tot.al 

Tola! 

Tot.al 

Ali.al Al.II 

30 Scpltmbcr 2022 JI March 2022 

18.:54 
IH.~ 

1.47 
l.-t7 

0.02 
0.02 

86:5.44 
865.-1-1 

19.90 
19.90 

16.8.:1 
16JU 

0.01 
0.01 

1.162. 13 
1, 162.13 

3. 17 
J.17 

•Represents incom.: ~upport pro1·ided by Mounlainslar India Ofliix (•arks Pri\':llC l.imilcd lo SDPL Noida as part of Income support :J g_ru:mcnt st:Jrting quarter ended JI March 2022 until lhc l1uart1..T ending 31 March 2024 
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43 Uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19: 

The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to cause disruption to business activities as well as disrupted travel and adversely impacted local , regional, national and international economic 
conditions. Brookfield India REIT has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COYID-19 on the carrying amounts and fair value of investment property 
(including under development). As a result, future revenues and cash flows produced by investment properties could be potentially impacted due to this prevailing uncertainty. ln 
response, Brookfield India REIT has adjusted cash flow assumptions for its estimate of near-term disruption to cash flows to reflect collections, vacancy and assumptions with respect to 
new leasing activity. In addition, Brookfield India RE[T has continued to assess the appropriateness of the discount and terminal capitalization rates giving consideration to changes to 
property level cash flows and any risk premium inherent in such cash flow changes as well as the current cost of capital and credit spreads. Further, in developing assumptions relating to 
possible future uncertainties in the Indian economic conditioris because of this pandemic; Brookfield India REIT, as at the date of approval of these Condensed Consolidated Financial 
Statements, has used internal and external sources of information including reports on fair valuation of investment properties from property consultants, economic forecast and other 
information from market sources on the expected future performance of Brookfield lndia RElT. Based on this analysis, Brookfield India RE[T has concluded that there is no impairment to 
the carrying amount of investment property and the fair value of investment property disclosed in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements represents the best estimate based on 
internal and external sources of information on the reporting date. 
The impact of COVID-19 on Brookfield lndia RElT Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

44 Assets Acquisition 

(i) On 8 February 2021 (the acquisition date), Brookfield India RE[T acquired 100% of the equity interest and compulsorily convertible debentures of four SPVs as described in more 
detail in Note I - Organization structure; in exchange for units of Brookfield India REIT amounting to Rs. 45,270.45 Million (the "Purchase consideration"). 
The management applied the optional concentration test, under Ind AS 103, and concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business because substantially all of the fair 
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in investment properties, with similar risk characteristics. Accordingly, this transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition. 
The management identified and recognized the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and allocated the purchase consideration to the individual identifiable assets 
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of acquis ition. 

The allocated value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the four SPYs as at the date of acquisition were: 

Assets Amount (in million) 
Prooertv, olant and eauioment 98.22 
Investment property 100,378.03 
Investment property under development 723.34 

Other assets 6,848.43 

Total Assets (A) 108,048,02 

Liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities of long term borrowings) 56,776.42 

Other liabilities 6,001.16 

Total Liabilities (B) 62,777,58 

Net Assets (A- B) 45,270,44 

(ii) On 24 January 2022 (the acquisition date), Brookfield lndia REIT acquired 100% of the equity interest and compulsorily convertible debentures of SDPL Naida as described in more 
detail in Note I -Organization structure; in exchange through combination of units of Brookfield India REIT of Rs. 4,550.17 million and cash consideration of Rs. 13,153.83 million, total 
amounting to Rs. 17,704.00 million. Brookfield lndia RE[T has also incurred directly attributable expenses in relation to this asset acquisition, amounting to Rs. 118.22 million, resulting 
in the total purchase consideration of Rs. 17,822.22 million (the "Purchase consideration"). 
The management applied the optional concentration test, under Ind AS 103, and concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business because substantially all of the fair 
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in investment properties, with similar risk characteristics. Accordingly, this transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition. 
The management identified and rCCOb'11ized the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and allocated the purchase consideration to the individual identifiable assets 

and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of acquisition. 

The allocated value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of SDPL Naida as at the date of acquisition were : 

Assets Amount (in million) 
Property, plant and equipment 29.3[ 

lnvestment property 35,344.03 

[nvestment orooertv under develonment 1,110.75 

Other assets 3,699.40 

Total Assets (A) 40,183.49 

Liabilities 
Borrowings (including current maturities oflong term borrowings) 20,464.86 

Other liabilities 1,896.41 

Total Liabilities (B) 22,361,27 

Net Assets (A- B) 17,822,22 
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45 Management fee 

Property Management Fees 
Pursuant to the Candor Amended and Restated Service Agreement dated 01 December 2020 with SPPL Noida and Candor Kolkata and agreement dated 11 February 2022 with SDPL 
Noida, Investment Manager is entitled to a yearly fees @ 3% of the income from operating lease rentals as recorded in the books of accounts of SPPL Noida, Candor Kolkata and SDPL 
Noida, payable on a monthly basis, exclusive of applicable taxes. The fees has been determined for providing real estate operating services to CIOP in relation to the Operational Services 
rendered by it with respect to SPPL Noida, Candor Kolkata and SDPL Noida. The said Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2022 amounts to Rs. 47.07 
million and Rs. 92.94 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager. 

Pursuant to the Festus Service Agreement dated O I December 2020, Investment Manager is entitled to a yearly fee of 3% of the income from operating lease rentals as recorded in the 
books of accounts of Festus, payable on a monthly basis, exclusive of applicable taxes. The fees has been determined for providing real estate operating services to Festus in relation to the 
management and operation of the Kensington and any other properties developed by Festus from time to time ("Festus Properties"). The said Management fees for the quarter and half year 
ended 30 September 2022 amounts to Rs. 13.12 million and Rs. 24.86 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the 
Manager. 

REIT Management Fees 
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 17 July 2020, Investment Manager is entitled to fees @ I% of NDCF, exclusive of applicable taxes (also refer note 48). The fees 
has been determined for undertaking management of the REIT and its investments. The said Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2022 amounts to Rs. 
20.26 million and Rs. 40 .58 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager. 

46 Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited ("Candor Kolkata"), Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited ("SPPL Noida") and Seaview Developers Private Limited ("SDPL 
Naida"), which became subsidiary of Brookfield India REIT after it was acquired by it in February 2021, February 2021 and January 2022 respectively, had received certain amounts as 
share application money ("Share Application Money") prior to 31 March 2014, against which Candor Kolkata had not allotted shares; SPPL Noida and SDPL Noida had not allotted 
shares or refunded such Share Application Money. The segregation and maintenance of such Share Application Money in a separate bank account, and the utilization of such Share 
Application Money for general corporate purposes, was not in accordance with Para1,,,-aph 8(4) of the Unlisted Public Companies (Preferential Allotment) Amendment Rules, 2011 (the 
Rules). During the period ended 31 March 2021, these subsidiaries had filed application u/s 441 of the Companies Act, 2013 for compounding of offence. 

Pursuant to the hearing held on 30 December, 2021, Hon'ble Regional Director accepted the compounding application(s) filed by Candor Kolkata, SPPL Naida and SDPL Naida 
compounded the offence by levying a compounding fees, amounting to Rs. 0.40 million for Candor Kolkata, Rs. 1.05 million for SPPL Naida and Rs. 0.51 million for SDPL Naida, and 
passed the order dated 25 January 2022, 24 January 2022 and 24 January 2022 for Candor Kolkata, SPPL Naida and SDPL Noida, respectively. The said compounding fees has been paid 
by the respective subsidiaries within the requisite timelines during the year ended 31 March 2022. 
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47 Details of utilization of proceeds of IPO are as follows: 

Objects of the issue as per the prospectus 

Partial or full pre-payment or scheduled repayment of the 
existing indebtedness of our Asset SPVs 
General purposes (refer note below) 

Issue expenses (refer note below) 

Total 

Proposed utilization Actual utilization upto 
31 March 2022 

35,750.00 35,750.00 

350.00 672.45 
1,900.00 1,577.55 

38,000.00 38,000.00 

Note: Amount of Rs. 322.45 million has been used for general corporate purposes from the proposed utilization towards issue 
expenses. 

48 Distribution Policy 

In terms of the Distribution policy and REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCFs of our Asset SPVs are required to 
be distributed to Brookfield REIT, in proportion of its shareholding in our Asset SPVs, subject to applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act. The cash flows receivable by Brookfield REIT may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal 
loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from our Asset SPVs/ CIOP, sale proceeds out of disposal of 
investments of any or assets directly/ indirectly held by Brookfield REIT or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or 
in such other form as may be permissible under the applicable laws. 

At least 90% of the NDCFs of Brookfield REIT ("REIT Distributions") shall be declared and made once every quarter of a 
Financial Year by our Manager. The first distribution shall be made upon completion of the first full quarter after the listing 
of our Units on the Stock Exchanges. Further, in accordance with the REIT Regulations, REIT Distributions shall be made no 
later than 15 days from the date of such declarations . The REIT Distributions, when made, shall be made in Indian Rupees. 

The NDCFs shall be calculated in accordance with the REIT Regulations and any circular, notification or guidelines issued 
thereunder including the SEBI Guidelines. 

0 0 1<.fie/O' 
~ 
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49 a) The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2022 are the derived figures between the unaudited figures in respect of the 
half year ended 30 September 2022 and the unaudited published figures for the quarter ended 30 June 2022, which were both 
subject to limited review. 

b) The figures for the half year ended 31 March 2022 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year 
ended 31 March 2022 and the unaudited published year-to-date figures upto 30 September 2021 which were subject to limited 
review. 

50 "0.00" Represents value less than Rs. 0.01 million. 
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Disclaimer 

This report is prepared exclusively for the benefit and use of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust ("Brookfield India 
REIT  or ) and / or its associates and for, presentations, 
research reports, publicity materials, press releases prepared for the disclosure of valuation of assets forming part of 
the portfolio of Brookfield India REIT and does not carry any right of publication or disclosure to any other party. The 
Company may share the report with its appointed advisors for any statutory or reporting requirements. Neither this 
report nor any of its contents may be used for any other purpose other than the purpose as agreed upon in the Letter 

15 March 2021 and addendum dated 15 September 2022 without the prior written 
consent of the Valuer. 
 
The information in this report reflects prevailing conditions and the view of the Valuer as of its date, all of which are, 
subject to change. In preparation of this report, the accuracy and completeness of information shared by the 
Company has been relied upon and assumed, without independent verification, while applying reasonable 
professional judgment by the Valuer. 
 
This report has been prepared upon the express understanding that it will be used only for the purposes set out in the 
LOE dated 15 March 2021 and addendum dated 15 September 2022. The Valuer is under no obligation to provide the 
Recipient with access to any additional information with respect to this report unless required by any prevailing law, 
rule, statute or regulation. 
 
This report should not be deemed an indication of the state of affairs of the real estate financing industry, nor shall 
it constitute an indication that there has been no change in the business or state of affairs of the industry since the 
date of preparation of this document. 
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1 Instruction 
1.1 Instructing Party 

Brookfield India REIT (hereinafter referred to as the  or the ) has appointed Mr. 

Shubhendu Saha, MRICS, registered as a valuer with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (IBBI) for 

the asset class Land and Building under the provisions of the Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) 

Rules, 2017 (hereinafter referred as the Valuer ) to undertake the valuation of office properties located 

across Gurugram, Noida, Kolkata and Mumbai (together herein referred as Subject Properties  mentioned 

below). 

S.no Asset Location City Type REIT Ownership 

REIT Portfolio  

1 Candor Techspace G2 Sector 21 Gurugram IT/ITeS SEZ   100% 1 
2 Candor Techspace N1  Sector 62 Noida IT/ITeS Park 100% 
3         Candor Techspace N2                                 Sector 135  Noida IT/ITeS SEZ 100% 
4 Candor Techspace K1 New Town Rajarhat Kolkata IT/ITeS SEZ 100% 
5 Kensington Powai Mumbai IT/ITeS SEZ 100% 

1Candor Kolkata One Hi-  P

now amalgamated in Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited w.e.f. January 9, 2019) has an agreement with Gurgaon 

Infospace Limited (GIL). The title to the land is held by Gurgaon Infospace Limited, a third party and is not affiliated to the Candor Kolkata 

One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited. Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited has developmental rights with respect to 

the property pursuant to a Joint Development Agreement (JDA) with GIL entered on November 16, 2006 as amended from time to time. 

Under the said agreement Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited is entitled to 72% of the gross sale revenue and deposits 

from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL is entitled to receive balance 28%. 

The exercise has been carried out in accordance with the instructions (Caveats & Limitations) detailed in 

Section 1.7 of this report. The extent of professional liability towards the Client is also outlined within these 

instructions.  

1.2 Purpose and Date of Valuation 
It is understood the purpose of this valuation exercise is for the disclosure of valuation of assets forming part 

of the portfolio of Brookfield India REIT under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate 

Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 [SEBI (REIT) Regulations], as amended, together with circulars, 

clarifications, guidelines and notifications issued thereunder by SEBI and also disclosure as per fair value 

accounting under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS 40). 

This va Summary Valuation Report filing by the 

Brookfield India REIT with SEBI and the stock exchanges where the units of the Brookfield India REIT are listed. 

Additionally, any other relevant documents such as publicity material, research reports, presentation and 

press releases may also contain this report or any part thereof. This Summary Valuation Report is a summary 

s  06 November 2022 issued by Mr. Shubhendu Saha. For the detailed 

valuation reports, you may write to reit.compliance@brookfield.com.   

1.3 Reliant Parties 
The Reliant Parties would mean Brookprop  or 

), Brookfield India REIT and their unitholders and Axis Trustee Services Limited Trustee . The 

reliance on this report is extended to the Reliant Parties for the purpose as highlighted in this Summary 

Valuation Report. The auditors, debenture trustees, stock exchanges, unit holders of the REIT, Securities and 
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Exchange Board of India (SEBI), and credit rating agencies, would be extended reliance by the Valuer but 

would not be liable to such parties, except in case of gross negligence and wilful misconduct by the Valuer  

The valuation exercise is conducted strictly and only for the use of the Reliant Parties and for the purpose 

specifically stated. The Instructing Party shall make all reliant parties aware of the terms and conditions of the 

agreement under which this exercise is being undertaken and take due acknowledgements to the same effect. 

1.4 Limitation of Liability 
 The Valuer has provided the services exercising due care and skill but does not accept any legal liability 

arising from negligence or otherwise to any person in relation to possible environmental site 

contamination or any failure to comply with environmental legislation, which may affect the value of the 

properties. Further, the Valuer shall not accept liability for any errors, misstatements, omissions in the 

report caused due to false, misleading or incomplete information or documentation provided to him by 

the Instructing Party. 

 maximum aggregate liability for claims arising out of or in connection with the Valuation, 

under this contract shall not exceed the professional indemnity insurance obtained by him. As on the 

LOE  and this report the professional indemnity insurance maintained 

by the Valuer is for INR 50 Million (Indian Rupees Fifty Million). 

 In the event that any of the , Manager, Trustee, Brookfield 

India REIT  or other intermediaries appointed in connection with the disclosure of valuation of assets 

forming part of the portfolio of Brookfield India REIT Claim Parties

with, arising out of or attributable to the Valuation, the Claim Parties will be entitled to require the Valuer, 

to be a necessary party/ respondent to such claim and the Valuer shall not object to his inclusion as a 

necessary party/ respondent. However, the legal cost with respect to appointment of lawyers by the 

Valuer as a respondent/ defendant shall be borne by the Client. If the Valuer, as the case may be, does 

not co-operate to be named as a necessary party/ respondent to such claims or co-operate in providing 

adequate/ successful defence in defending such claims, the Claim Parties jointly or severally will be 

entitled to initiate a separate claim against the Valuer in this regard and his liability shall extend to the 

value of the claims, losses, penalties, costs and liabilities incurred by the Claim Parties.  

 The Valuer is neither responsible for any legal due diligence, title search, zoning check, development 

permissions and physical measurements nor undertake any verification/validation of the zoning 

regulations/development controls etc. 

1.5 Professional Competency of the Valuer 
Mr. Shubhendu Saha, the Valuer for the Subject Property is registered as a valuer with IBBI for the asset class 

Land and Building under the provisions of The Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 

since 15 May 2019. He completed his Bache  from the School of Planning and Architecture, 

New Delhi in 1997 and Master  in Management Studies from Motilal Nehru National Institute of Technology, 

Allahabad in 1999. 

Mr. Saha has more than 20 years of experience in the domain of urban infrastructure and real estate advisory. 

From 2009 to 2015, he was the national practice head of Valuation Advisory services of DTZ International 

Property Advisers Private limited (now known as Cushman and Wakefield Property Advisers Private Limited), 

a leading International Property Consulting firm in India. He also led the business solutions and consulting 

services for the property management business of Cushman and Wakefield India Private Limited from 2015 

to 2017. In early part of his career, he worked with renowned organisations like ICRA Limited, Copal Research 
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was with PwC as Director Real Estate Advisory before he started his practice as an independent valuer. 

As the leader of valuation services business at DTZ, Mr. Saha authored India specific guidelines of the RICS 

on and development land, which became 

part of the 7th edition of Red Book. He is the first registered valuer under the provisions of the Companies 

(Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 to undertake the valuation of REIT assets for an IPO. Mr. Saha 

also led the valuation 

Business Trust and led numerous valuation exercises for multiple private equity funds, real estate funds, 

financial institutions, developers and corporates across asset classes of commercial, retail, residential and 

hospitality. His clientele includes, Mindspace REIT, Embassy REIT, Air India, HDFC, Religare Health Trust, Duet 

Hotels, DLF, RMZ, K Raheja Corp, Embassy Group, Citibank, Tishman Speyer, IL&FS, HSBC, IDFC, Ascendas India 

etc. 

1.6 Disclosures 
The Valuer declares and certifies that: 

 He is eligible to be appointed as a valuer in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zz) of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 along with SEBI (REIT) (Amendment) 

Regulations, 2016 with the valuation exercise having been conducted and valuation report prepared in 

accordance with aforementioned regulations. 

 He is not an associate of the Sponsor, the Instructing Party or the Trustee for the Brookfield India REIT. 

 He is registered with IBBI as registered valuer for asset class Land and Building under the provisions of 

the Companies (Registered Valuer and Valuation) Rules, 2017. 

 rience in leading large real estate valuation exercises comprising 

investment portfolios of various real estate funds, trusts and corporates comprising diverse assets like 

residential projects, retail developments, commercial office buildings, townships, industrial facilities, data 

centres, hotels, healthcare facilities and vacant land and therefore has adequate experience and 

qualification to perform property valuations at all times.  

 He has not been involved in acquisition or disposal within the last twelve months of any of the properties 

valued under this summary valuation report. 

 He has educational qualifications, professional knowledge and skill to provide competent professional 

services. 

 He has adequate experience and qualification to perform property valuation and is assisted by sufficient 

key personnel who have the adequate experience and qualification to perform property valuation.  

 He is not financially insolvent and has access to financial resources to conduct his practice effectively and 

meet his liabilities. 

 He has ensured that adequate and robust internal controls are in place to ensure the integrity of the 

Valuation Report.  

 He is aware of all statutes, laws, regulations and rules relevant to this valuation exercise.  

 He has conducted the valuation exercise without any influence, coercion or bias and in doing so rendered 

high standards of service, ensured due care, and exercised due diligence and professional judgment. 

 He has acted independently and with objectivity and impartiality in conducting this valuation exercise. 

 The valuation exercise that has been undertaken is impartial, true and to his best understanding and 

knowledge, fair and in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate 

Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 along with subsequent amendments. 
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 He or any of his employees involved in valuing the assets of the Brookfield India REIT have not invested 

nor shall invest in the units of Brookfield India REIT or in securities of any of the Subject Properties being 

valued till the time he is designated as the Valuer and not less than six months after ceasing to be the 

Valuer of the Brookfield India REIT. 

 He has discharged his duties towards Brookfield India REIT in an efficient and competent manner, utilising 

his professional knowledge, skill and experience in best possible way to conduct the valuation exercise. 

 He has conducted the valuation of the Subject Properties with transparency and fairness and rendered, 

at all times, high standards of service, exercise due diligence, ensure proper care and exercised 

independent professional judgment. 

 He has not and shall not accept any remuneration, in any form, for conducting valuation of any of the 

Subject Properties of Brookfield India REIT from any person or entity other than Brookfield India REIT or 

its authorised representatives. 

 He has no existing or planned future interest in the Client, Trustee, Manager, Brookfield India REIT, the 

exercise is neither contingent upon the values reported nor on success of any of the transactions 

envisaged or required as part of the disclosure of valuation of assets, forming part of the portfolio of 

Brookfield India REIT, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate 

Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended, together with clarifications, guidelines and 

notifications thereunder in the Indian stock exchanges together with the clarifications, guidelines and 

notifications thereunder in the Indian stock exchanges. 

 The valuation reported is not an investment advice and should not be construed as such, and specifically 

he does not express any opinion on the suitability or otherwise of entering into any financial or other 

transaction with the Client or the SPVs. 

 He shall, before accepting any assignment from any related party to Brookfield India REIT, disclose to 

Brookfield India REIT, any direct or indirect consideration which the Valuer may have in respect of such 

assignment  

 He shall disclose to the Trustee of Brookfield India REIT, any pending business transaction, contracts under 

negotiations and other arrangements with the Instructing Party or any other party whom the Brookfield 

India REIT is contracting with or any other factors which may interfere with his ability to give an 

independent and professional conduct of the valuation exercise; as on date the Valuer has no constraints 

towards providing an independent professional opinion on the value of any of the Subject Properties.  

 He has not and shall not make false, misleading or exaggerated claims in order to secure or retain his 

appointment. 

 He has not and shall not provide misleading opinion on valuation, either by providing incorrect 

information or by withholding relevant information. 

 He has not accepted this instruction to include reporting of the outcome based on a pre-determined 

opinions and conclusions required by Brookfield India REIT. 

 The valuation exercise has been conducted in accordance with internationally accepted valuation 

standards as required by SEBI (REIT) Regulations and The Companies (Registration of Valuers and 

Valuation) Rules, 2017. 

 He notes that there are encumbrances, however, no options or pre-emptions rights in relation to the 

assets based on the title report prepared by Ind-Legal, Fox & Mandal and DSK Legal (hereinafter 

 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
 

 

 

Summary Valuation Report Page 8

 

1.7 Assumptions, Disclaimers, Limitations & Qualifications to Valuation 
While the Valuation Report has been prepared independently by the Valuer, the report and this summary is 

subject to the following: 

a. The valuation exercise is based on prevailing market dynamics as on the date of valuation without taking 

into account any unforeseeable event or developments, which could impact the valuation in the future. 

b. Global economy was deeply impacted during the outbreak of COVID-19, which was declared as a Global 

Pandemic on 11 March 2020. Several measures to contain the impact from the Global pandemic which 

included national lockdowns, which was followed by several vaccination drives, follow-up booster drives 

etc. 

As the impact from the COVID-19 related pandemic started to moderate, restrictions were slowly lifted 

in a phased manner by respective state governments until the Ministry of Home Affairs revoked all the 

restrictions by the Centre from 31 March 2022 and commented that the disaster management act will 

not be invoked for COVID-safety measures.  

The commercial real estate sector has shown significant resilience during the Covid struck period. 

Majority of the markets have started to open-up and corporates have started to encourage the 

employees to return to office. This is also driven by record high levels of attrition witnessed across 

industries, which has led to strong hiring trends in terms of fresher and lateral hires. New Gen-Z (born 

between 1997 -2012) employees are in high demand by the employers, however, work from home period 

has significantly dented their wellbeing as they struggle to bond with teams. This has led to employers 

revisiting the need for training, interaction etc, thereby increasing the relevance of office infrastructure 

for such corporates.  

While some organizations have been contemplating strategies with respect to the hybrid work models - 

flexible arrangement, allowing employees to combine onsite and offsite work as required, we expect the 

strong growth in the IT-BPM sector, increased interests into Indian offshore centers by several IT/ITeS 

corporates and GCCs is expected to drive significant demand for the commercial real estate sector.  

c. The valuation exercise is not envisaged to include all possible investigations with respect to the Subject 

Properties and wherein certain limitations to the investigations and inspections carried out are identified 

so as to enable the Reliant Party/Parties to undertake further investigations wherever considered 

appropriate or necessary prior to reliance. The Valuer is not liable for any loss occasioned by a decision 

not to conduct further investigation or inspections. 

d. Assumptions, being an integral part of any valuation exercise, are adopted as valuation is a matter of 

judgment and many parameters utilized to arrive at the valuation opinion may fall outside the scope of 

expertise or instructions of the Valuer. The Reliant Parties accepts that the valuation contains certain 

specific assumptions and acknowledge and accept the risk that if any of the assumptions adopted to arrive 

at the valuation estimates turns out to be incorrect, there may be a material impact on the valuations. 

Complete set of assumptions are mentioned in Valuation Reports dated 06 November 2022.  

e. The valuation exercise is based on the information shared by the Instructing Party or the Client, which 

has been assumed to be correct and used to conduct the valuation exercise while applying reasonable 

professional judgment by the Valuer. In case of information shared by any third party and duly disclosed 

in the report, the same is believed to be reasonably reliable, however, the Valuer does not accept any 

responsibility should those prove not to be so.  

f. Any statement regarding any future matter is provided as an estimate and/or opinion based on the 

information known at the date of this report. No warranties are given regarding accuracy or correctness 

of such statements. 
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g. Any plan, map, sketch, layout or drawing included in this report is to assist reader in visualizing the 

relevant property and are for representation purposes only with no responsibility being borne towards 

their mathematical or geographical accuracy. 

h. Except as disclosed by the Client, it is assumed that the Subject Properties are free from any 

encroachments and available on the date of valuation. 

i. For the purpose of this valuation exercise, reliance has been made on the Title Reports prepared by the 

Legal Counsels for each of the Subject Properties and no further enquiries have been made with 

authorities in this regard. It is understood that the Subject Properties have encumbrances disputes and 

claims, however, the Valuer does not have the expertise or the purview to verify the veracity or quantify 

these encumbrances, disputes or claims. For the purpose of this valuation exercise, it is assumed that 

respective Subject Properties have clear and marketable titles. 

j. The current zoning of the Subject Properties has been assessed on the basis of review of various 

documents including title reports shared by the Instructing Party and the current land use maps publicly 

available. The same has been considered for the purpose of this valuation exercise. Additionally, it is also 

assumed that the development on the Subject Properties adheres/would adhere to the development 

regulations as prescribed by the relevant authorities. No further enquiries have been made with the 

competent jurisdictional authorities to validate the legality of the same.  

k. The total developable/developed area, leasable area, site/plot area considered for this valuation exercise 

Certificate shared by the Instructing Party and the same has been checked 

against the approvals/layout plans/building plans provided by the Client. However, no additional 

verification and physical measurement for the purpose of this valuation exercise has been undertaken. 

l. In absence of any information to the contrary, it is assumed that there are no abnormal ground conditions 

nor archaeological remains present, which might adversely affect the current or future occupation, 

development or value of the Subject Properties and the Subject Properties are free from any rot, 

infestations, structural or latent defect; no currently known deleterious or hazardous materials or suspect 

techniques are used in construction or subsequent alterations or additions to the property and comments 

made in the property details do not  purport to express an opinion about an advice upon the conditions 

of uninspected parts and should be taken as making an implied representation or statement about such 

parts. 

m. It is also stated that this is a valuation report and not a structural survey. 

n. Unless specifically disclosed in the report, no allowances are made with respect to any existing or 

proposed local legislation relating to taxation on realization of the sale value of the Subject Properties.  

o. Given the evolving and maturing real estate markets in India, any comparable evidences (if any) or market 

quotes provided has been limited to basic details such as area of asset, general location, price/rate of 

transaction or sale and any other specific details that are readily available in public domain only shall be 

commencement and end dates, lock-in period, rent escalation terms etc. with respect to Subject 

Properties is based on the documents/information shared by the Client/Instructing Party and the same 

has been adopted for the purpose of this valuation exercise. While few lease deeds have been reviewed 

on a sample basis, the Valuer does not take any responsibility towards authenticity of the rent rolls shared 

by the Client. Any change in the aforementioned information will have an impact on the valuation 

estimates and, in that case, the same would need to be reassessed. The relevant information sources are 

mentioned in Valuation Reports dated 06 November 2022. 
p. All measurements, areas and property age quoted/mentioned in the report are approximate. The areas 

of Subject Property are based on Architect  certificate as mentioned in (k) above. 



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
 

 

 

Summary Valuation Report Page 10

 

q. The Valuer is not an advisor with respect to any tax, regulatory or legal matters with respect to by 

Brookfield India REIT

the Subject Properties has been made and the same is assumed to be valid based on the information 

shared by the Client/Instructing Party. No consideration shall be / has been given to liens or 

encumbrances against them. Therefore, no responsibility is assumed for matters of a legal nature. 

r. Kindly note that quarterly assessment of cash flows has been undertaken for the purpose of this valuation 

exercise. 
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2 Valuation Summary
The following table highlights the summary of the market value of each of the Subject Properties which is 

part of the proposed Brookfield India REIT as on 30 September 2022.

S. 
No.

Asset 
Name 

Leasable area (Million sq. ft.) 1 Market Value (in INR Million)

Completed
Under 

Constructi
on

Future 
Development

Potential
Completed

Under-
Construction 

/ Future 
Development

Potential

Total

REIT Portfolio
1 G2 3.92 NA 0.10 45,637 613 46,250 
2 N1 1.96 NA 0.86 19,550 2,746 22,296 
3 N2 3.76 NA 0.77 38,686 2,284 40,969
4 K1 3.06 0.56 2.12 22,175 4,326 26,501
5 Kensington 1.56 NA NA 27,548 27,548 

TOTAL 14.26 0.56 3.85 1,53,596 9,969 1,63,564
Note: All figures in the above table are rounded. 
1. (Dated: 03 November 2022 for G2, N1, N2 and K1 and 30 September 2022 for Kensington).
2. * Candor Kolkata One Hi-

-Tech Structures Private Limited w.e.f. January 9, 2019) has an agreement with 
Gurgaon Infospace Limited (GIL). The title to the land is held by Gurgaon Infospace Limited, a third party and is not affiliated to the Candor 
Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited. Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited has developmental rights with 
respect to the property pursuant to a Joint Development Agreement (JDA) with GIL entered on November 16, 2006 as amended from time 
to time. Under the said agreement Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited is entitled to 72% of the gross sale revenue and 
deposits from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL is entitled to receive balance 28%.

Brookfield India REIT Portfolio Composition (Market Value)

Completed as on 
30 September 

2022, 94%

Under-
Construction / 

Future 
Development, 6%

Completed as on 30 September 2022 Under-Construction / Future Development
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2.1 Assumptions, Disclaimers, Limitations & Qualifications 
This Summary Valuation Report is provided subject to a summary of assumptions, disclaimers, limitations and 

qualification detailed throughout this Report which are made in conjunction with those included within the 

sections covering various assumptions, disclaimers, limitations and qualifications within the detailed 

Valuation Report. Reliance on this report and extension of the liability of the Valuer is conditional upon the 

tion is for the use of the parties mentioned in 

Section 1.3 of this Summary Valuation Report. 

 

 

Prepared by 

 

 

 

 

(Shubhendu Saha) 
IBBI/RV/05/2019/11552 
Regd. Address: 53, Anuradha Apartments, A2, Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110063 
M: +919910386675 
E: shubhendu_leo@hotmail.com 
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3 Valuation Approach and Methodology 
3.1 Purpose of Valuation 

The purpose of this valuation exercise is to estimate the value of the Subject Properties forming a part of the 

portfolio of Brookfield India REIT, for the disclosure of valuation of assets forming part of the portfolio of 

Brookfield India REIT under the SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014, as amended, together 

with clarifications, guidelines and notifications thereunder. 

3.2 Valuation Guideline and Definition 
Given the purpose of valuation as mentioned above, the valuation exercise has been carried out to estimate 

issued in 2021 and effective from 31 January 2022. 

As per IVSC International Valuation Standards The estimated amount for which 

an asset or liability should exchange on the valuation date between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an 

-length transaction after proper marketing and where the parties had each acted knowledgeably, 

prudently and without compulsion  

3.3 Valuation Approach  
The valuation for the Subject Properties being Market Value, has been derived by adopting income approach, 

utilising the discounted cash flow method with rental reversion. 

The income approach is based on the premise that value of an income producing asset is a function of future 

benefits and income derived from that asset. Using this valuation method, future cash flows from the property 

are forecasted using precisely stated assumptions. This method allows for the explicit modelling of income 

and cost associated with the property. These future financial benefits are then discounted to a present-day 

value (valuation date) at an appropriate discount rate. A variation of the Discounted Cash Flow Method is 

mentioned below. 

Income Approach - Discounted Cash Flow Method using Rental Reversion 
Given the market practice in most commercial/ IT developments involves contracting tenants in the form of 

pre-commitments at sub-market rentals to increase the attractiveness of the property to prospective tenants. 

Such benefits are typically extended to anchor tenants. Additionally, there are instances of tenants paying 

above-market rentals for certain properties as well (primarily owing to market conditions at the time of 

contracting the lease). In order to arrive at a unit value for these tenancies, we have normalised the impact 

of such sub/above market leases on the valuation of the Subject Property by estimating the rental revenue 

achievable at the end of the term, based on the expected rents in the market. 

3.4 Valuation Methodology  
In order to compute the Market Value of the Subject Properties it is prudent to understand the market 

dynamics and the location where the Subject Property is located (existing and future supply, demand from 

occupiers, average office space take up by an occupier in a particular sector, existing vacancy numbers and 

the rentals, likely growth of the office space etc.). Understanding of the micro market positioning (where the 

Subject Property is located) with respect to a location is also very important.  The next step then becomes to 

understand the situation of the Subject Property (current achievable rentals, vacancy numbers, competing 

supply in the micro market etc.) with respect to the micro market.  

Each of the steps required to assess the Market Value of the Subject Properties is detailed below.  The same 

have been elaborated in the Valuation Reports also. 
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Market and Location Assessment: 
The Client appointed Cushman & Wakefield (CWI) to prepare an independent industry and market research 

report, which has been relied upon and reviewed by the Valuer to develop the understanding and assess the 

relevant micro-markets of the Subject Properties. The said review, was carried out in the following manner: 

i. Market dynamics influencing the rents along with Subject Property rents were studied in detail. 

Further, the location setting of the Subject Properties in the respective micro-markets were assessed. 

Analysis of the micro-market was undertaken primarily based on the findings of the industry/market 

report prepared by CWI and readily available information in public domain to ascertain the transaction 

activity of office space. The analysis entailed review of comparable properties in terms of potential 

competition (both completed and under-construction/future developments), comparable recent lease 

transactions witnessed in the micro-market along with the trends in leasing within the Subject 

Properties in recent past, wherever available. This analysis enabled the Valuer to have an informed 

opinion on the market rent (applicable rental for the micro-market where the respective Subject 

Subject Properties for leasing vacant spaces, potential leasable area under development or planned as 

well as upon re-leasing of the existing let out area). 

ii. For tenants occupying relatively large space within the Subject Properties, where there may be some 

instances of areas being let out at lower than market rent, it is assumed that the leases shall revert to 

market rent following the expiry of the lease, factoring appropriate re-leasing time. 

Portfolio Assessment: 
i. As the first step, the rent rolls (which includes review of corresponding leases deeds) on a reasonable 

sample basis were reviewed to identify tenancy characteristics for the Subject Properties. As part of 

the rent roll review, major tenancy agreements were reviewed on a reasonable sample basis. For 

example, for G2 we have reviewed lease deeds of top 10 tenants contributing nearly 90% of gross 

contractual rentals of the subject property).  

ii. For anchor/large tenants, adjustments on achievable market rent or additional lease-up timeframe 

have been adopted upon lease reversion wherever relevant. 

iii. Title reports, Architect  certificates and other related documents as mentioned in earlier sections of 

the report were reviewed for validation of area details, ownership interests of the Subject Properties. 

iv. Physical site inspections were undertaken to assess the current status of the Subject Properties. 

Preparation of Future Cash Flows: 
i. Net operating income (NOI) has primarily been used to arrive at the Market Value of the Subject 

Properties. The cash flows for the operational, under construction and future development area have 

been projected separately for the purpose of estimating and reporting valuation in accordance with 

the SEBI (REIT) Regulations 

ii. The projected future cash flows from the property are based on existing lease terms for the operational 

area till the expiry of the leases or re-negotiation, whichever is earlier, following which, the lease terms 

have been aligned with market rents achievable by the Subject Properties. For vacant area, under-

construction area and future development area, the achievable market rent-led cash flows are 

projected factoring appropriate lease-up time frame for vacant/under-construction/future 

development area. These cash flows have been projected for 10-year duration from the date of 

valuation wherein 11th year NOI is capitalized (for assessment of terminal value based on NOI). These 
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future cash flows are then discounted to present-day value (valuation date) at an appropriate discount 

rate. 

Each of the lease was assessed to project the cash flows for a period of 10 years. The assessment was 

carried out in the following manner:   

Step 1 

Rental income from existing tenants up to the period of lease expiry, lock-in expiry, 

escalation milestones, etc. is projected whichever is applicable. In the event of any 

vacant spaces, achievable market-rent is assumed for future income for such spaces 

with suitable time for leasing up the space. 

This data is then used to generate market aligned revenue stream from existing and 

potential tenants for the desired time period.  

Step 2 

In the event the escalated contracted rent is higher than the achievable market rent by 

15%, the contracted terms are ignored, and the terms are reverted to market. In the 

event the escalated contracted rent is below 115% of the achievable market rent, the 

contracted terms are adopted going forward until the next lease review/ renewal. Intent 

of this step is to project the rental income for respective leases until lease expiry as well 

as post expiry. 

Step 3 

Computing the monthly rental income projected as part of Step 2 and translating the 

same to a quarterly income (for the next 10 years and NOI of the 11th year  considered 

for calculation of terminal value). 

 

iii. Recurring operational expenses, fit-out income (wherever applicable, however, the same has not been 

included in the NOI for the purpose of arriving at the terminal value by capitalisation) and vacancy 

provision have been adopted in-line with prevalent market practices and conditions. In addition, 

appropriate rent-free periods have been adopted during lease roll-overs to consider potential rent-free 

terms as well as outflows towards brokerage. For all Subject Properties, operational revenues and 

expenses of the respective properties are reviewed to understand the recurring, non-recurring, 

recoverable and non-recoverable expenses and accordingly estimate the margins on the common area 

maintenance income, which accrues as cash inflows to the Subject Properties and normalised for the 

purpose of cash flow projections. The 1-year forward income for the 11th year has been capitalized to 

assess the terminal value of the development at the end of year 10. 

3.5 Information Sources 
Property related information relied upon for the valuation exercise have been provided to the Valuer by the 

Client and the market data has been provided by Cushman and Wakefield, unless otherwise mentioned. The 

documents provided has been assumed to be a true copy of the original. The rent rolls have been cross 

checked with the lease deeds on a sample basis only to ensure its correctness.   
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4 REIT Portfolio 
4.1 Candor Techspace IT/ITeS SEZ, Dundahera, Gurugram (G2)  

Property Description 
G2 is located at Old Delhi  Gurugram road, Dundahera, Gurugram, Haryana  122001, India. The approximate 

land area of G2 is 28.526 acres (based on review of .   

Statement of Assets 
G2 constitutes 13 completed buildings along with future development area. The listing of buildings under each 

component is as follows: 

Completed buildings with Occupancy Certificate (OC) received  Tower 1, 2, 3, 4 (Amenity Block-1), 4A 

(Amenity Block-2), 5, 6, 7, 8A, 8B, 9, 10 (MLCP), 11 

Future development  The future development has leasable area of 99,924 sq. ft. The leasable area of the 

future development is indicative and is subject to change once the internal business plans are in place or the 

construction is completed. 

The area statement for G2 is as follows: 

Components No. of buildings Leasable Area (sq. ft.) Usage type 
Committed 
Occupancy* 

Completed 13 39,16,845 IT/ITeS SEZ 85.27% 
Future Development NA 99,924 IT/ITeS SEZ NA 
Total 13 40,16,769   

Source:  (Dated: 03 November 2022), ^Rent Rolls as on 30 September 2022, Lease Deeds/Leave and License 
Agreements. 
*Committed Occupancy = (Occupied area + Completed area under Letters of Intent)/ Completed area 

Brief Description 
G2 is an IT/ITeS SEZ office space developed in a campus format offering large floor plates with significant open 

/ green areas and number of amenities for occupiers. There are 13 completed buildings comprising 11 office 

towers (including one MLCP) occupied by multiple tenants and two amenity blocks - Block 4 (Amenity Block- 

1, with 67,802 of leasable area) and 4A (Amenity Block-2, with 22,675 of leasable area). The amenity blocks 

constitute retail area of 90,477 sq. ft. catering to all basic requirement of occupiers viz. F&B (in form of multi- 

cuisine food courts and in-house kitchens), pharmacy, bank ATM, creche, sports arena, wellness centre, 

convenience store, dental clinic etc. In addition, Tower 10 (MLCP) constitutes 98,796 sq. ft. of office area and 
289,035 sq. ft. of car parking area to cater to 499 cars parking. G2 has two entry and two exit gates, which are 

managed according to the campus traffic circulation plan. Apart from regular upgradation activities, G2 has 

witnessed a major revamp (both inside and outside the campus) leading to overall improved aesthetics. G2 

has been awarded IGBC Platinum Rating for sustainability in addition to the group wide ISO certification for 

Quality, Environmental and Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems namely ISO 9001, ISO 14001 

and OHSAS 18001. 

G2 is located in an established office, residential and retail micro-market of Gurugram. The office supply in 

the vicinity comprises investment and sub investment grade developments, constituting a mix of IT and Non-

IT developments primarily skewed towards IT. Some of the prominent office developments in the vicinity 

include DLF Cyber City, DLF Cyber Park, Ambience Corporate Tower etc. 

G2 is within close proximity to some of the renowned hotels like The Oberoi/ Trident, Hyatt Place, Radisson, 

Leela Ambience etc. and is well connected to major locations in the city as well as in the NCR via multiple 

modes of communication.  

The distances (approximately) to G2 from major landmarks of NCR are as follows: 
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02 km from NH 
48 (Delhi Jaipur 
highway)

03 km from IndusInd 
Cyber City Rapid 
Metro Station

09 km from 
Gurugram 
Railway Station

09 km from 
IGI Airport

03 km from DLF Cyber City
23 km from Connaught 
Place

The map illustrating the location, infrastructure and nearby office developments is provided below:

Note: The DMRC Yellow Line metro is proposed to be extended from HUDA City Centre to Udyog Vihar, via Old Gurugram 
and finally terminating at DLF Moulsari Avenue rapid metro station. However, exact locations of metro stations are yet to 
be finalized. Also, a station for Delhi Alwar RRTS is proposed at Old Delhi Gurugram road in Udyog Vihar near subject 
property. The source for the said metro routes is the information available in the public domain and may differ subject to 
final approvals.

Source: C&WI Research (Map not to scale)
Key Assumptions

Particulars Unit Information
Revenue Assumptions (as on 30/09/2022)

Lease Completion of Completed Building Qtr, Year Q3 FY 2024-25
Current Effective Rent INR/sq. ft./mth 81
Achievable Market Rent INR/sq. ft./mth 88
Parking Charges INR/bay/mth 5,000

Development Assumptions

Remaining Capital Expenditure INR Million
Future Development: 327

General Development: 157

Expected Completion Date Qtr, Year
Future Development: 

Q3 FY 2024-25
Other Financial Assumptions

Cap Rate % 8.00
WACC (Complete/ Operational) % 11.75
WACC (Under-construction/ Future Development) % 13.00

Market Value
The market value of financial interest* in G2 as on 30 September 2022 is as follows:

INR 46,250 Million
(Indian Rupees Forty-Six Billion Two Hundred and Fifty Million Only)

* Candor Kolkata One Hi-
-Tech Structures Private Limited w.e.f. January 9, 2019) has 

LEGEND
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an agreement with Gurgaon Infospace Limited (GIL). The title to the land is held by Gurgaon Infospace Limited, a third 
party and is not affiliated to the Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited. Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech 
Structures Private Limited has developmental rights with respect to the property pursuant to a Joint Development 
Agreement (JDA) with GIL entered on November 16, 2006 as amended from time to time. Under the said agreement Candor 
Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited is entitled to 72% of the gross sale revenue and deposits from the tenants 
arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL is entitled to receive balance 28%.  



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 
 

 

 

Summary Valuation Report Page 19

 

4.2 Candor Techspace IT/ITeS Park, Sector 62, Noida (N1) 

Property Description 
N1 is located at Plot no. B2, sector 62, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh, 201301, India. The 

approximate land area of N1 is 19.250 acres (based on review of Certificate). 

Statement of Assets 
N1 constitutes 9 buildings and can be segregated under three components viz. completed, under-construction 

and future development buildings. The listing of buildings under each component is as follows: 

Completed buildings with Occupancy Certificate (OC) received  Block 1, 2, 3, 6, 5 & 7 (Amenity Block I and 

II) & Block 8 

Future development buildings  Block 4A and Block 4B. The leasable area of the future development is 

indicative and is subject to change once the internal business plans are in place or the construction is 

completed. 

The area statement for N1 is as follows: 

Components No. of buildings Leasable Area# (sq. ft.) Usage type 
Committed 

Occupancy** 
Completed 8 19,57,084 IT/ITeS Park 86%^ 
Future Development 2 858,460 IT/ITeS Park NA 
Total 10 28,15,544     

Source:  (Dated: 03 November 2022), ^Rent Rolls as on 30 September 2022, Lease Deeds/Leave and License 
Agreements and Client Information 
*Committed Occupancy = (Occupied area + Completed area under Letters of Intent)/ Completed area 
#The leasable area is increased because of the change in efficiency.  
 

Brief Description 
N1 is an IT/ITeS office space developed in a campus format offering large floor plates with significant open / 

green areas and number of amenities for occupiers. There are eight completed buildings comprising five office 

towers occupied by multiple tenants and one building comprising three amenity blocks. Block 5 is recently 

completed office tower with 491,051 sq. ft. of leasable area. Amenity Block constitutes retail area of 39,196 

sq. ft. catering to all basic requirement of occupiers viz. F&B (in form of multi-cuisine food court), 24x7 

paramedics, Day Care Centre, bank ATM, salon, convenience store, pharmacy etc. In addition, there are two 

future development buildings (Block 4A and 4B) comprising office blocks. Further, Block 8 constituting 79,761 

sq. ft. shall offer a separate F&B hub and shall be open to public along with inhouse occupiers.  N1 has two 

entry and two exit points, which are managed according to the campus traffic circulation plan. N1 has been 

awarded 5 Star rating by the Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE) in addition to the group wide ISO 9001,14001 

and OHSAS 18001 Certification.  

N1 is located in sector 62 of Noida, which is an institutional sector characterized by the presence of large 

public and private sector institutions like The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, IIM Lucknow Noida 

Campus, Jaipurian Institute of Management, Jaypee Institute of Information Technology, Symbiosis Law 

School, Bank of India, Staff Training College etc. The office supply in the vicinity comprises investment and sub 

investment grade developments, constituting a mix of IT and Non-IT developments primarily skewed towards 

IT. The other prominent office developments in the vicinity include Embassy Galaxy Business Park, Logix Cyber 

Park, 3C Knowledge Boulevard & Green Boulevard, Stellar IT Park, Okaya Blue Silicon Business IT Park etc. N1 

is one of the largest IT/ITeS office development in terms of leasable area in sector 62, Noida. 

N1 is within close proximity to some of the renowned hotels like Radisson, Park Ascent etc. and is well 

connected to major locations in the city as well as in the NCR via multiple modes of communication.  
The distances to N1 from major landmarks of NCR are as follows: 
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01 km from NH 24 
10 km from DND 
Flyway 

 
02 km from 
Sector 62 Metro 
Station 

 
16 km from New 
Delhi Railway 
Station 

 
32 km from 
IGI Airport 

 
7 km from Sector 18 
(Noida CBD) 
16 km from Connaught 
Place (Delhi CBD) 

The map illustrating the location, infrastructure and nearby office developments is provided below: 

 
Source: C&WI Research 

(Map not to scale) 
Key Assumptions 

Particulars Unit Information 
Revenue Assumptions (as on 30/09/2022) 

Lease Completion of Completed Building Qtr, Year Q4 FY 2023-24 
Current Effective Rent INR/sq. ft./mth 50 
Achievable Market Rent  INR/sq. ft./mth 54 
Parking Charges INR/bay/mth 3,000 

Development Assumptions 

Remaining Capital Expenditure INR Million 
Under Construction/ Future 

Development: 4,268 
General Development: 139 

Expected Completion Date Qtr, Year 
Block 4A  Q4 FY 2026-27 
Block 4B  Q4 FY 2025-26  

Other Financial Assumptions 
Cap Rate % 8.00 
WACC (Complete/ Operational) % 11.75 
WACC (Under-construction/ Future Development) % 13.00 

Market Value 
The market value of the full ownership interest in N1 as on 30 September 2022 is as follows: 

INR 22,296 Million 
(Indian Rupees Twenty-Two Billion Two Hundred and Ninety-Six Million Only) 
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4.3 Candor Techspace IT/ITeS SEZ, Sector 135, Noida (N2) 

Property Description 
N2 is located at Plot No. 20, 21, Noida  Greater Noida Expressway, Sector 135, Noida Uttar Pradesh  201304, 

 

Statement of Assets 
N2 constitutes 14 buildings and can be segregated under three components viz. completed, under-

construction and future development buildings. The listing of buildings under each component is as follows: 

Completed buildings with Occupancy Certificate (OC) received  Tower 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 11A 

Amenity Block-1 (Ground Floor) and Amenity Block-2 

Future development buildings  Tower 12 and Amenity Block-1 (First Floor)*. The leasable area of the Tower 

12 and Amenity Block-1 (First Floor) is indicative and is subject to change once the internal business plans are 

in place or the construction is completed. 

The area statement for N2 is as follows: 

Components No. of buildings Leasable Area# (sq. ft.) Usage type 
Committed 

Occupancy** 
Completed 14 37,64,117 IT/ITeS SEZ 75.5%^ 
Future Development 2 770,873 IT/ITeS SEZ NA 
Total 16 45,34,990   

 (Dated 03 November 2022), ^Rent Rolls as on 30 September 2022, Lease Deeds/Leave and License 
Agreements  
*The first floor of Amenity Block-1 is considered as future development and has not been counted as an additional tower for the purposes 
of computing the no. of buildings in the future development component.  

**committed occupancy = (occupied area + completed area under letters of intent)/ completed area 
#The leasable area is increased because of the change in efficiency.  

Brief Description 
N2 is an IT/ITeS SEZ office space developed in a campus format offering large floor plates with significant 

open/ green areas and number of amenities for occupiers. There are 14 operational buildings comprising 12 

office towers occupied by multiple tenants and two amenity blocks. Amenity blocks constitute a total planned 

retail area of 64,297 sq. ft.  The current operational retail area caters to all basic requirement of occupiers viz. 

F&B (in form of multi cuisine food courts), creche, bank branch and ATM, indoor sports, 24X7 Paramedics, 

convenience store, etc. In addition, Tower 11 A which has recently been developed and Tower 12 (a future 

development) is being developed with modern age aesthetics, which intend to create differential experience 

for the occupiers viz. walk through along waterbodies, larger lobby area, improved amenity area etc. In 

addition to three existing entry and exit points, an additional entry/exit gate is planned in near future, which 

shall further improve traffic movement both inside and outside the campus. Regular upgradation activities 

are being undertaken within the campus to ensure its upkeep as per the modern age requirement. N2 has 

been awarded IGBC Platinum Rating for sustainability and 5 Star Rating by the Bureau of Energy Efficiency 

(BEE) in addition to the group wide ISO 9001,14001 and OHSAS 18001 Certification. 

N2 is located within Noida-Greater Noida Expressway micro-market, which is being developed as an integrated 

vector with presence of residential, institutional, commercial, IT/ITeS, and SEZ developments. It is one of the 

established IT /ITeS and SEZ office destinations of Noida and enjoys excellent physical infrastructure along 

with social infrastructure to support the expansion of real estate activities. The office supply in the vicinity 

primarily comprises investment grade developments, constituting a mix of IT and Non-IT developments. Some 

of the prominent office developments in the vicinity include Logix Techno Park, Oxygen Business Park, NSL 

TechZone IT SEZ, Express Trade Tower  II, Advant Navis Business Park etc. N2 is the micro-  

integrated SEZ office development. N2 is within close proximity to some of the renowned hotels like Sandal 
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Suites by Lemon Tree etc. and is well connected to major locations in the city as well as in the NCR via multiple 

modes of communication. The distance of N2 from major landmarks of NCR are as follows:

14 km from DND 
Expressway
5 km from Noida 
Expressway

04 km from Sector 
142 metro station

27 km from New 
Delhi Railway 
Station

36 km from Indira 
Gandhi 
International 
Airport

14 km from Sector 
18, Noida 
28 km from 
Connaught Place

The map illustrating the location, infrastructure and nearby office developments is provided below:

                                                                                                                                                                              Source: C&WI Research
(Map not to scale)

Key Assumptions

Particulars Unit Information
Revenue Assumptions (as on 30/09/2022)

Lease Completion of Completed Building Qtr, Year Q3 FY 2026-27
Current Effective Rent INR/sq. ft./mth 54
Achievable Market Rent INR/sq. ft./mth 57
Parking Charges INR/bay/mth 4,000

Development Assumptions

Remaining Capital Expenditure INR Million
Under Construction/ Future 

Development: 3,973
General Development: 234

Expected Completion Date Qtr, Year Tower 12 Q2 FY 2026-27
Amenity Block - Q2 FY 2023-24

Other Financial Assumptions
Cap Rate % 8.00
WACC (Complete/ Operational) % 11.75
WACC (Under-construction/ Future Development) % 13.00

Market Value
The market value of the full ownership interest in the N2 as on 30 September 2022 is as follows:

INR 40,969 Million
(Indian Rupees Forty Billion Nine Hundred and Sixty-Nine Million Only)
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4.4 Candor Techspace IT/ITeS SEZ, New Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata (K1) 

Property Description 
K1 is located at Plot No. 1, DH Street no. 316, New Town, Rajarhat, North 24 Parganas, West Bengal, 700156, 

India. The approximate land area of K1 is 48.383 acres .  

Statement of Assets 
K1 constitutes 12 completed buildings along with one under construction building and future development 

area. The listing of buildings under each component is as follows: 

Completed buildings with Occupancy Certificate (OC) received  Tower A1, A2, A3, B1, B2, B3, C1*, C2*, C3*, 

G1, G2, G3 

Under - Construction Building: Tower Commercial admeasuring 560,816 sq. ft, which is expected to be ready 

by Q2 FY 2026.  

Future development  The future development constitutes IT/ITeS leasable area of 980,448 sq. ft. and mixed-

use leasable area of 1,142,725 sq. ft. The leasable area of the future development is indicative and is subject 

to change once the internal business plans are in place or the construction is completed. 

Components No. of buildings Leasable Area (sq. ft.) Usage type 
Committed 

Occupancy** 
Completed 12 3,060,655 IT/ITeS SEZ 84.0%^ 
Under-
Construction/Future 
Development 

NA 2,683,989 IT/ITeS/ Mixed-use NA 

Total 12 5,744,644   
Source:  (Dated: 03 November 2022), ^Rent Rolls as on 30 September 2022, Lease Deeds/Leave and License 
Agreements 
*Towers C1, C2 and C3 have partial occupancy certificates. Full occupancy certificates will be obtained once the entire project is complete. 
These buildings are fit for occupation as Information Technology and IT enabled services business (use group)/ Business building for the 
portion, which has received the occupancy certificates. 
**Committed Occupancy = (Occupied area + Completed area under Letters of Intent)/ Completed area 

Brief Description 
K1 is an IT/ITeS SEZ office space developed in a campus format offering large floor plates with significant open 

/ green areas and number of amenities for occupiers. There are 12 operational buildings comprising 12 office 

towers occupied by multiple tenants wherein Tower A2 offers multi-cuisine food courts, in-house kitchens, 

bank branches and ATM, creche, pharmacy, medical centre and other retail outlets and Tower A3 offers 

amenities such as gymnasium, swimming pool and table tennis at the ground floor. In addition, there is  under-

construction commercial cum retail development of ~5,60,816 sq ft which is being developed through Joint 

Development Arrangement with a third party and future development comprising IT/ITeS and mixed-use  

developments. K1 has two entry and exit gates designed to ensure smooth traffic movement both inside and 

outside the campus. Regular upgradation activities are being undertaken within the campus to ensure its 

upkeep as per the modern age requirement. K1 has been awarded IGBC Gold rating for sustainability and 4 

Star Rating by the Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE) in addition to the group wide ISO 9001,14001 and OHSAS 

18001 certifications. 

K1 is a prominent IT/ITeS SEZ, and the largest campus style office development in eastern India. K1 is located 

in an established office micro-market, which has witnessed a gradual shift of office space occupiers from 

Central Business District of Kolkata. The office supply in the micro-market comprises largely investment grade 

developments, constituting a mix of IT and Non-IT developments primarily skewed towards IT. K1 has a 

prominent frontage on one of the main arterial roads viz: Major Arterial Road (East  West). The road connects 
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K1 to Shapoorji Sukhobrishti (via SP Sukhobrishti Complex Road) in east and Narkelbagan, Bishwa Bangla 

Sarani in west, respectively. Further, K1 is located at distance of 1.5 km from the upcoming metro station-

CBD 1. Some of the prominent office developments in the vicinity include DLF 2 SEZ, TCS Geetanjali Park, 

Ambuja Ecospace, Mani Casadona etc.

K1 is within close proximity to some of the renowned hotels like The Westin, Fairfield by Marriott, Lemon 

Tree, Pride Plaza, etc. and is well connected to major locations in the city via multiple modes of 

communication. The distance of K1 from major landmarks in the city is as follows:

01 km from 
Street No. 368

1.5 km from 
proposed CBD-1
Metro Station

14 km from Sealdah 
Railway Station
17 km from Howrah 
Railway Station

12 km from 
Netaji Subhash 
Chandra Bose 
International 
Airport

01 km from Narkel Bagan
06 km from Sector V, Salt 
Lake
18 km from Park Street 
Area

The map illustrating the location, infrastructure and nearby office developments is provided below:

Source: C&WI Research
(Map not to scale)

Key Assumptions

Particulars Unit Information
Revenue Assumptions (as on 30/09/2022)

Lease Completion of Completed Building Qtr, Year Q1 FY 2025-26
Current Effective Rent INR/sq. ft./mth 43
Achievable Market Rent-Office INR/sq. ft./mth 41
Achievable Market Rent- Mixed Use-Commercial INR/sq. ft./mth 44
Achievable Market Rent - Mixed Use-Retail INR/sq. ft./mth 59
Parking Charges INR/bay/mth 3,000

Development Assumptions

Remaining Capital Expenditure INR Million
Future Development: 13,044

General Development: 7

Expected Completion Date Qtr, Year
IT/ITeS Q2 FY 2028-29

LEGEND

Subject Property

Major Roads/National Highway

Airport

Howrah Railway Station

Kolkata Metro Railway
(North-South Line)

Kolkata Metro Railway
(East-West Line)

KEY TO SUBMARKETS

CBD:
Park Street, Camac Street, Theater 
Road, AJC Bose Road

SBD:
Park Circus Connector, Topsia, Kasba, 
EM Bypass, Ruby, Rashbehari 
Connector

PBD:
New Town, Rajarhat, Salt Lake Sector V

Rajarhat 32 - 42

30 - 40

30 - 40

CBD90 - 110

Rashbehari 
Connector

75 - 95
Salt 

Lake
Park Circus 
Connector

70 - 90

37 - 47

35 - 45

To Barasat

To GariaTo Joka

To Haringhata

Camac Street, 
Theatre Road

AJC Bose 
Road

Ruby

Topsia

Rashbehari 
Connector

New Town

Rajarhat

NSCBI 
Airport

Howrah 
Railway 
Station

Kasba

PBD

SBD

CBD

Sector V
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Mixed-use  Q3 FY 2028-29 
 
  

Other Financial Assumptions 
Cap Rate % 8.50 
WACC (Complete/ Operational) % 11.75 
WACC (Under-construction/ Future 
Development) 

% 13.00 

 
Market Value 
The market value of the full ownership interest in K1 as on 30 September 2022 is as follows: 

INR 26,501 Million* 
(Indian Rupees Twenty-Six Billion Five Hundred One Million Only) 

 
*  includes 0.56 million sq. ft. of commercial cum retail development which is under construction, Gurgaon 
Infospace Limited (GIL) shall pay Candor Kolkata a sum of INR 1,000 million (inclusive of GST) (out of which 
INR 600 million has already been received) in instalments and be entitled to receive 28% of revenue 
comprising rentals, CAM margins, parking, and any other revenue. 
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4.5 Kensington (A & B) IT/ITeS SEZ, Powai, Mumbai (Kensington) 

Property Description 
Kensington is located at Hiranandani Business Park, CTS No. 28A, Powai, Mumbai, Maharashtra  400076, 

India. The approximate land area of Kensington is 8.96 acres  

Statement of Assets 
Kensington constitutes one building with two wings (Kensington A & Kensington B) and is categorized under 

one component viz. completed building. The listing of building is as follows:  
Completed Buildings with Occupancy Certificate (OC) received  Kensington (A & B) 

The area statement for Kensington is as follows: 

Components No. of buildings Leasable Area (sq. ft.) Usage type 
Committed 

Occupancy** 
Completed 1 1,562,541* IT/ITeS SEZ 95.1%^ 
Total 1 1,562,541   

Source:   (Dated: 30 September 2022), ^Rent Rolls as on 30 September 2022, Lease Deeds/Leave and License 
Agreements  
*Total leasable area for Kensington 

 
**Committed Occupancy = (Occupied area + Completed area under Letters of Intent)/ Completed area.  
Note: Occupancy as stated in the table above, includes the spaces, which are currently occupied by Apollo India Services LLP and Baker 
Hughes, which would be vacated by Q2 FY 2023. Considering the said Apollo India Services LLP and Baker Hughes spaces, the occupancy 
shall be 91.5% (vs 95.1% as shown in above table) 

Brief Description 
Kensington is an IT/ITeS SEZ office space comprising one ready and operational building with two wings 

(Kensington A & Kensington B) occupied by multiple tenants. The large parking requirement is catered by four 

parking levels contributing to 1,721 parking spaces. Kensington has two entry and two exit points providing 

access to D.P. Road and internal wide Road.  

Kensington is the only private IT/ITeS SEZ in the Mumbai region excluding Thane and Navi Mumbai and is well 

positioned in the Andheri & Powai micro-market due its proximity to the residential areas, well developed 

social infrastructure and the upcoming metro stations (IIT  2.6 Km from the Subject Property). The office 

supply in the vicinity comprises investment and sub investment grade developments, constituting a mix of IT 

and Non-IT developments. Some of the prominent office developments in the vicinity are Supreme Business 

Park, Scorpio House, L&T Business Park, Delphi, Godrej IT Park, Solitaire Corporate Park, Kanakia Wall Street, 

Times Square, Raiaskaran Tech Park etc.  

Kensington is within close proximity to some of the renowned hotels like Meluha The Fern and The Beatle and 

is also well connected to major locations in city via multiple modes of communication. The distance of 

Kensington from major landmarks in Mumbai Metropolitan Region (MMR) is as follows: 

 
04 km from LBS Marg 
14 km from Eastern 
Express Highway 
08 km from Western 
Express Highway 

 
4.2 km from Kanjurmarg 
Railway Station 
2.6 km from upcoming 
metro station (IIT) 
 

 
6.5 km from Chhatrapati 
Shivaji International 
Airport 
11 km from Mumbai 
Domestic Airport 

 
2.3 km from IIT Powai 
11 km from Bandra Kurla 
Complex 
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The map illustrating the location, infrastructure and nearby office developments is provided below: 

 
Source: C&WI Research 

(Map not to scale) 
Key Assumptions 

Particulars Unit Information 

Revenue Assumptions (as on 30/09/2022) 
Lease Completion of Completed Building Qtr, Year Q3 FY 2023-24 

Current Effective Rent INR/sq. ft./mth 98 

Achievable Market Rent INR/sq. ft./mth 125 
Parking Charges* INR/bay/mth 5,000 

Other Financial Assumptions 
Cap Rate % 8.00 
WACC (Complete/ Operational) % 11.75 

 
*The subject property has 1,721 car parks. We have assumed the car parks to maintain status quo. The parking charges are assumed to 
be applicable over and above the applicable lease rent. 

Market Value 
The market value of the full ownership interest in Kensington as on 30 September 2022 is as follows: 

INR 27,548 Million 
(Indian Rupees Twenty-Seven Billion Five Hundred and Forty-Eight Million Only) 
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